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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

--------------- x
In the matter of: :
CONSUMERS POWER COMPANY :

. Docket Wos. 30-323
(Midland ynits 1 and 2) : 50-330
--------------- ‘

Room 20i-A

Evaerect M. Dirksen Bldg.
219 S. Dearborn Street
Chicago, Illinois

Pricday, 21 January 1377

Hearing in the abcve-entitled matter was convened

pursuant to notice, at 9:30 a.m.

BEFORE:
FREDERIC J. COUFAL, Esq., Chairman
EMMETH LUEEKE, Memoer
J. VENN LEEDS, Memb>er

APPEARANCES :

(As heretofore notad.)
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CHAIRMAN CCUFAL: Tha plan is to proceed with Mr.
Bikel this morning.

MR. CHERRY: I wantc to ask a coupla of questions
of Mr. Eeina firset.

MR. ROSSO: Mr, Chairman, I have a preliminary
motion before we get started on that.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Wait a minute. Mr. Cherry said
he had a couple more questions, preliminary questions, of
Mr. Heins. Is he around?

MR. ROSSO: Yes; Mr. Heins is here.

But I do have a preliminary motiocom.

CHAIRMAN CCUFAL: PFine.

MR. ROSSO: Mr. Chairman, yesterday Dow Chemical
Company provided to all of tha parties a copy -- and to the
Board -- a copy of a document entitled presentatisn of
Michigan Air Pollution Contiol Commission, January 18, 1977.

In this procesding the precedent has bzea set
where the Board previcusly marked as its own exhibits,

Roard Exhibits numbers 1 and 2, two documents which had been
produced by the Dow Chemical Company and which the Board at
least thought it_wantod to have in the record.

I would move at this time that the Board mark the
document entitled, Presentation to Michigan Air Pollution

Control Commission, Ja wmary 18, 13977," prcduced by Dow, as
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Board Exhibit number 3 and admittel into evidence in the
record.

CHAIRMAN CCUPFPAL: If we do that, do you have
anough copies?

MR. ROSSD: Yes, 3ir. Copies were provi@ed to
evaryone except tile reporter vesterday and we do ﬁavo enough
copies so that we cculd give them to the reporter today.

CEAIRMAN COCPAL: Is thore objaction?

MR. CHERRY: Yes; I obiect. The prcper times to
produce he Dow exhibit iz when Dow pecpls are on the staund
ready for cross-examipation. I don't miand it being marked
but obviously it can'%t be offared iato evidaancz until there
is some foundation for it.

CHAIRMAN COUTAL: 2ces anycna alse havs one.

MR. BOEFLING: Yes, Mr. Chairman. I thisk it would
be more appropriate to bhold off on that until that witness
returns to the stand for cross-ezamination on the document.

CHEAIRMAN CCUPAL: Mr. Wesseal?

MR. WESSEL: I had nothing tc say until that com-
ment, but that witness, the man that presented it for Cow is
a man named Hunter Henry who bhas replaced !Mr. Temple on the
Dow position. That witness has not been called and see ro
reason why he would be. Mr, Tampie will be here.

I just want the Bcard tc know that is a Ccapany

statement.
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MR. CHERRY: I have no cbjecticon tc Mr. Temple
being the witness, if he understands and knows the document.
I don't care about Mr. Heanry. It just doesn't make sense
te mé. You don't put documents in evidence --

MR. WESSEL: I have no ccmment on that.

MR. CHERRY: This is Dow Chamical Company's posi-
tion to the Comission, how ever you want to put it in.

MR. ROSSC: I think it is very important tu¢ have
this document in evidence, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Bunter Eenry
has not been called as a witness in this procseding.

As Mr. Wessel has said, this is a Déﬁjcorporata
position. It ocught to be in the record. The precedent has
already been set in this procs=eding fo: tha Board to put
docunents in the reocord of its own volition when ever it felt
that the documenés wera important. b

And I move again that the Board do so in this
casa.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Dr. Laeds points out to me that
Mr. Oreffice is going te be here for the Dow position. He
would be an appropriate witness by whom to get in it.

MR. ROSS0? I am sorry.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Mr. Oreffice is going to be here
as I understand it, and Dr. Leeds points out to me that thac
would be an appropriate witness through whom to get the

document in, if that is your desire.
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‘rbs It may be marksd as Bcard Exhibit 3. And it may
\ be cfferad, at least through the testimcny of Mr., Oreffice
when ha testifies.
~
J MR. RCSSO: Pine.
I will now hand the reporter 3 copies so that they
may be marked for an exthibit, Boaxrd Zuxhibit 3,
(Whereupon, the doccument entitled
Prasentation to Michigan Air
Polluticn Control Commissiocn,
January 18, 1277, was marked
Board Zxhibic Number 3 for identi-
fication.)
' MR. CEERRY: I3 the Board marking it as exhibit
: ‘3?
CHAIRMAN COUFAL: We are putting a number omn it;
Board Exhibit 3, to identify it.
Do yocu cbject to the Board marking it?
MR. CHERRY: Sure. It is aot your dccuuent. It
seems to me if he wants it, he should mazk it._
The other two werc initiated as Beoard exhibits.
It seams to me that this should be marked as Consumers Power
exhibit and they should have the cbligation of getting a
/ witness hera to identify ic.
. MR. BOEFPLING: Mr. Chairman, is Mr. Cherry going

oy - to ccntinue his examinaticn on Intervenors' 10 and 11?7
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The Staff dcesn't have copies of them. We understood that
#e' would get them this morning, sc we could follow the cross.
MR. CHERRY: I have taken care cf all that.
May we have Mr. Helins on the stand, please?
CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Mr. Heins?

Wheraupon,

GORDON L. HEINS

resumed the stand cn behalf of the Applicant and, having been
previcusly sworn, was examined and testified further as fol-
lows:

MR. CEERRY: WYas that marked as a Beard exhibit?

CHAIRMAN COUPFAL: 1t has been marked as a Board
Exhibit. I think it wzs invited by the Board. The Board askec!
for the rerort originally.

CROSS-EXAMINATION (Continusd)

BY MR. CERRY:

Q Mr. Weiis, you have been previously sworn. Do
you know, Mr. Heins, the relationship between safaty cf
nuclear power plants and degradation or failurs of steam
generator tubes?

A No.

Q You 40 not.

In your consideration that you believe based cn
everything that you have discussed with persons whca you

did not iden¢ify, that thare would be further degradations
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of the steam genarator tubas bdetween now and 1981 or 1982,
was there anv discussion as to whether that avent nr earizs
of events would cause a safety problem at Palisades?

MR. ROSSO: Objection. Safety at Palisades is
certainly not an issue on remand in this proceeding.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Well, the issue of whether or not
Palisades stays on the line, I suspect, is relevant to the
inquiry we are making now.

And I presume Mr. Cherry will g=t in%o that.

MR. ROSSO: But, sir, that iz a question that dces
not have to ds with safzty at this point in time.

MR. CHERRY: Well, I think the Board understands.

CHAIRMAN COUTAL: The point is, I suppose, that the
Palisades wculd be shut dewn for one reason or another for
safety reasons by the Commissicn or scmeone in authority
whether or anct Midland itself shut down.

And we are not going te go into an examination of
Palisades steam genarator tubes, but if there is a point to
be madz that scmebody could shut Paliszades down for safety
reascns on account of the steam generator tubes, then that
is relevant to whether or not tie load forecaster --

BY MR. CHERRY:

Qe Do you have the quastion in miand, Mr. Heias?
~ Ne.,

MR CHERRY: Could we have the question read.
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barba (Whereupcn, the recortar read the pending gques-
‘ tion as requestad.)

THE WITNESS: I do not recall any mention or
discussion of the safaty problams, Cne cof the re¢sponsibili-
ties that I had in my job is that of the group ca.led the
system protection and laboratory services departmert.

These are the people who do -- have done the tast-
ing, nondestruc;iVQ testing, on the Palisades stz2am genarators.

I have taken z considerable interest in this,
althcugh I do not have the ba:skground nor the experience
iA nondestructive testing. I have talked at langth with
these people, the superviscrs and tho manager of that depart-
‘ ment, and it is my understanding that at this tire there is

a considerable margin required by tha Nuclear Regulatory

Commission in tube wall thickness. At this point plugging

is required. There has to b2 scmething in the order of

50 percent original tube wall thickn:ss remaining in order to

leave the tube unpiugged. -
In my consideration, the conservative nature of

this criteria plugging -- tube plugging has led me to feel

secure in the safety aspects of the steam generating tubes.
MR. CHERRY: Mr, Chairman, I move to strike every-

(,; thing; except: No; he did not have any discassiocas. His’
gratuitous opinion.qn-safaty; he is now a self-proclaimed

.‘ nonexpert who doesn't understand the information.
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CHAIFMAN COUFAL: I think the response was non-
responsive. I will agrse wita that and strikae the part of
it that you mentionad becaus:z it was net raspcnsive.

MR. RCSSO: I am 3orry, dMr, Chairman., X didn't
understand you. I amn having troubis hearing you.

MR. CHERIY: < movad to strilke cverything after
the answer no, ard the Doard Chairman just sustained my
mction on the grounds that --

CHAIRMAN COUFMAL: That it was non-responsive.

MR. ROSSC: I wouald ask you to Teeonsidaer that.
I think it was responsive. This man was asked whathar he
had any discussions with regard to safety at the Palisades

plant duza to the %“ube degradation, azmd he answered with re~

gaxrd to the discussions which he had which raiaved to safety.
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ggl CHAIRMAN COUFAL: When the transcript comes out,
g you can renew your motion, Mr. Rosso.

~y BY MR. CHERRY:

1 Q Now dc you know, Mr. Heins, hcw many steam generator
tubes, i° “ey fail during a loss of coolant accident, renders
under the emergency core cooling system that you have at
Palisades, renders that system ‘noperable?

A No.
**R. ROSSO: Obiection.
CHAAIRMAN COUFAL: It has been answered.
BY MR. CHERRY:

. Q Now if I ask vou to assume with me, Mr. Heins,
that five steam generator tubés, if they failed, could render
inoperabl2 the emergency core <ooling system. I ask you to
assume that fact.

Would you still feel comfortable in permitting
the Palisades plant, from a safety stardpoint, given your
broad exparience, to operats'for the next seveﬁ years?

HR; ROSSO: Objection, on two bases.

One, there has been no tesimoney with regard to
any failure of steam generator tubes at Palisades; and two,

(‘) now we are begianing to try, in this case, the question
of the steam generator tubes at Palisades and any imagined

‘ questions of safety therato.

And I suggest that this line of gquestioning has gone
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far enough and that the Chairman can see where it iz going now.
it is totally irrslavant.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: I agree. I think it is
irrelevant.

MR. CHERRY: I would like t¢ just point out for
the record, and then I will go on. This gentleman has testified
that a certain element of conthnued degradation of steam
generator tubes is used as a conservative projection for him
to have a certain megawatc derazing by the year 13381.

I have chiecked last night both with NRC personnel
and it is my understanding that the ALC weuld never permit
a olant to operatz for seven years with that kind of problem.

I am serving notice con Consumers. I am filing 2
motion based on Mr. Heins testimeony, with the NRC, to cobject
tothe permanent operating license and to reopen the Palisades
hearing on the basis of Mr. Hein:z exper: tastimony‘that there
is going to be a ceontinued degradation.

S0 we will see you as a witness thers.

I think it is relevant, tecause I think that this
wiiness is trying awfully hard to say whataver he fsels is
comfortable ~-but it is beyend his expertize == has, in
effect, given an overall projection aa to Palisades operatiocn.
And it seems to me that if, theref&re, this witness has
opened himself up based on his cwn testimony as to whether

or not the plant can operate under NFC regulations, that, in
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turn is r2levant to the question of the load forecast. Because
if the NRC shuts the Palisadec plant down tomorrow and it was
fixed by 1981, than you would have on line the full megawatt
generating capacity in connection with the load forecast.

Se I would ask you “ust to consider that fact. I
think my quetion is extremely relevant.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: I understand the point of view
that you made, Mr. Cherry.

I think the obj2ction is ¢g~od and it is sustained.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q Mow Mr, Heins, do ycu know if Consumers Power Company
nas inquired of the Nuclear Regqulatory Commission as to whether
or not Palisades can operate within NRC safety regulations,
assuﬁing a continued degradation of st2am generaitor tubes
betwesen ncw and 19817

A I do not know.

Q You do not know.

Do you think that is a relavant inquiry in connec-

tion ..th gour,assumgﬁion on forecasting, Mr.Heins?

~ .

MR. ROSSO: Mr, Chairman, again I cbject'to this
line of questioning as irrslevant.
CEZAIRMAN COUPAL: Cverruled.
BY MR, CHERRY:
Q Do you think that is a relevant inquiry under your

assumption for the load forecast?
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A Yes, that is 2 relevant question.

Q But you haven't made that inquiry?

A That is correct.

Q Now if the NRC would not permi: Palisades to operate

under the aszsumption you have postulated, then vour load fore-
cast is incorrect.

Is that corract?

A ¥o, not necessarily.

DR. LEEDS: Excuse me, Mr. Charry.

I think the reccrd mignt be confusad at this point.
You are asiiing about load forescast.

I am having difficulty understandiag how --

MR. CHERRY: I will amead my question and say:

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q Weuld your reserve amalysis or the proiections you
have set forth about what your available reserve wiil ba,
would those be in error if the Nuclear Ragulatory Commission
would not permit Palisades to operate under the circumstancas

you havs poztuiated?

A Not necessarily.
Q Please explain your aaswer.
A As I said yestercday, thers is one other sericus

matter, very serious matter which concerns me rscarding
the genmerating capability of the system. And that is the

supply of oil to 1586 megawatts of oil-fired capacity dependent
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at this moment on impertinc ecrude.
Q Where is that in th2 testimony?

That conoxn of yours, where is that in the tastimony

as the basis for your calculation of reserves, Mr. Heins?
A Cn page 1ll, in the paragraph -- second paragraph
there is scme mention of this point.
Q Page 1l1l.
What paraqgrach, Mr. Heins?
A The seccnd paraqrapa con that paga.
Q The sentence that says:

"While we have contracted for adequate fuel
supplies for these units through 1981, delivery
is contingent upon continuaing approval by the
Canadian Naticnal Energy 3oard andl U. S. authorities."

Is that rvight?

A That and the other sentences in that and the
following paragraph that relate to Exhibit 12,
Q I sse.

"Curtailment of cor“ract deliveries or the
refusal or inability of supoliers to extend the
contracts beyond 1981 could result in inadequate oil
supplies for Karn and Weadock."

Is that correct?

A I believe you read thatcorrectly.

Q Now, if you couldn’t get any money to build the
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mné Midland plant, would . that affact you: reserve requirement?
A If we could not build Midl:nd, yas.
Q Okav.

=

If there was a war betwean Canada and the United
States, would that affect yvcur raeserve raquiremants?
A I don't know. ’
I presume it would.

o] Why do you prasume it wonld, sir?

A If the nations were at war, I would prszsume that
all transfer of cocmmcdities micht cease.

Q Arnd if averycne iniha State of Michigan got
hepatitis and couldn't work, you wouldn't have a labor force,
is that true alseo?

MR.ROSSO: Mr. Chairmen, all right, I think I have
to object to that me. We think this has gone on far enough.

If the meon £fell on us wa would all be dead.

MR. CHERRY: That is preci:ely what I want to
show abcut these sentences in this testimony.

May I have a ruling on that?

MR, ROSSC: I object.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: You made your point, I think,
Mr. Cherry. I will sustain the cbjection.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q Now, do you have available the contracts for

fuel supplies which you have deemed adequata for 1922317
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A No, I do not have them,

Q Have you ever read :-hem?
A No.

Q You have never read them?

How do you know thea that delivary is contingeant
upon continuing approval by the Canadian Yaticnal Energv
Beard?
A Ihave discussed this matter wiih those men from
the fuel supply department who ara responsikle Zfor these affairs.
Q You are a messenger. You f£ind out what everybody
else believes, and you tell --
MR, ROSSO: Mr. Chai.man, I objact.
First of all, the witnessz's answer was interrupted.

Second of all, counszel insists on inserting

' grataitous comments like "I se2," and things like that while

the witness is trying to answer.

And third of all, he cut the witness off whils
he was trying to answer.

And fourth cf all, I objec: tc the characterization
of this witress, the systems planning managar for the entire
company, as a messengsr.

CEAIRMAN COUFAL: All right.

Finish your answer, Mr. Heins.

THE WITNESS: It i3 as stated before, a matter of

me not doing all the work associated with running an entire
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Consumers Pcwer Company.
I have respeonsibilities for certain areas and it
is always necessary for me to depend upon others whose
judgmsat I trust and value, and whose integrity I trust and
depend upcn.
BY MR.CHERRY:
Q Who wrote this tesztimony, Mr. Beins?
A Mr. Lapingki and I wrota this.

I believe I wrote the majocrity of it.
Qe Okav.

I want to go through each paragraph, and you tell
me what you have personal knowledge about. In other words,
let's say you have alrsady told me that you do not have personl
knowledge of the load forecast which begins cn page 2, is
that correct?

MR. RCSE0: I object, Mr. Chairman.

This isn't going to get us anywhers.

CHAIRMIL! CCUFAL: I don't know whether it is going
to get us anywhere or not.

I think counsel has got a right to go through tha
testimony and see what information here is that of the witness
and which is garnered from somewhere else.

MR. RCSSO: All right, sir. But you kncw, when you
have a corporate situaticn --

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: I understand. I understand that

Q
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the witness must get information from other persons.

MR.CHERRY: I am not objecting that the witness
must get informaticn Irom other persons.

I am cbjecting that the witness doesn't have the
information. It is not an ac?eptable answer.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: I overruls the obiect, Mr. Cherry.
Go ahead.

B8Y MR. CHERKY:

Q It is true though., Lf ' I ask you questicns about
load forecasting, vou told me yesterday that you did not know
the factors that went inte the coding probabilities and you
didn't sufficiently understand the Eickel study discussed,
ig that right?

MR. ROSSO: That is a mischaracterization of the
testimony.

CHAIRMAN CCUFAL: He asked if that is correct.

Now, Mr. Rossc, this iz cress-examinaticn. Counsel
has got scme latitude in how he asks his questions.

Go ahead, Mr. Cherry.

BY MR. CHIRRY:

Q Is that corr-ect, Mr. Heins?
A I do not recall testifving te that.
Q Okay.

What are the factors that were used by the

Executive Review Committee in the probability of ccding analysis?



mmlC

'(z‘-

1761

A I have no knowledge concerning those factors that
ware used in the probability and ceoding of the %TBxecutive
Board forecast.

Q So that it is true that yocu cannot tell me anything
about how the lcad forecastino was actually arrived at
by thz energy board, otkLar than they wers great people wﬂ%
wera sincere and 4id their job and 4id it well?

A I cannot tell vou tha factors that they considered
while making their subjective assezomant.

Q In fact, ycu cannot i2ll mes anvtiing about it except
the people whc wer: on it?

A I cculd describe in generzl, the process that was
used.

Q But you don't knocw that, you didn't partlcipate

in that procaess did you?

A I dic not particpate in that process.

Q So you don't Xnow that, isn't that correct?
A I don't kncw that.

Q Okay.

And in connection with the Bickel analysis yasterday,
I tendered a computer coda to you and you werern't able to deal
with that, is that corract?

Because if ycuare, I will put them vight back in
front of yocu.

A The exhibit that you presented to me vestarday
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menll
afterncon, I am not competent to read through that, understand

it and explaia it toc vou.
Q Okay.
So we have now covered pages 2 and 3 of your
=stimony as having nc personal kncwledge.
The information as contained on page 4, do you
have personal xnowledge to how those figuras wefe arrived at?
MR. RC3SS0: Which figures are we refsrring to?
I object %o the gquastion and asik which figures are
we referring to?
CIAIRMAN COUFAL: <Can you supply the figures.
MR. CHERRY: All figures on page 4.
BY MR, CHERRY:
Q Co you know how any of them were arrived at, to
' your cown personal xnowladge?
A Yes.
Q All richt.
HYow was %he 5.2 perdent annual growth rate projected?
Give me the factors and Ehe analysis of how it was?
Tell me when you did that projection?
A This was a projection,to coafizrm the study that
was dcne by Mr. Bickel.
Q Oh, so the page 4 still deals with the Bickel
study?

MR, ROSSC: Mr. Chairman, I have to object again.
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mml3 ' committee that you have no knowledce about, that is how they
‘ operated; and the Bickel study which you doa’t understand.
: Is that correct, or isn't it?

(‘ ‘ ! MR. ROSS0: Mr. Chairman, the witness has been
trying to answer the question further. #He was interrupted
first when Mr. Cherry started to speak; he tried to speax
twice while Mr. Cherry was speaking and Mr.Cherry continued on.
He hasn't finished his answer.

I ask Mr. Cherry to let him finish his answver.
CHAIRMAN CCUFAL: Fipish yecur ansver, Mr. Heins.
THE WITNZSS: I cdo have some understanding of the
Bickel study technigues.
‘ The materials you presented to me yesterday, I
could not read, explain and interpret to you.
T also said yesterday that there would be a lavel
of the Bickel study tzchniques beyond which I do not go.
BY MR, CHZERRY:
- Q What level?
CHAIRMAN CCUTAL: Are you finished, Mr. Heins?
THE WITNESS: The numbers on page 4, the 32
percent, 23 and 41 percent were calculateu by myself.
BY MR. CHERRY:

J Q How?

A By looking at the projected main system energy

, sales for residential, commercial and industrial .-
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He asked,do you know how anv of <he figures on
‘
page 4 were dsrived.

The witness said, yes.

Then he pcints to one particular cne, asxs
quetions akout that one, and taen savs it iz a characterization
of the record, therefcre all of page 4 is something that you
dan't know anything about.

Let him go through each figure on page &, if that
is what he wants.

CEAIRMAN COUFAL: Just a nminute, Mr. Cherry.

Mr. Heins had not finished his answer when vou
interrupted, Mr., Chercy.

: Go ahead and finish vour answer.
THE WITNESS: That 3.2 percent {s our p:ojggted
annual salss average cunlative growth rate,compounded
growth rate.

It waz determined by probability assessment and
confirmed by the 3ickel acudy.

BY MR.CHERRY:

Q I know all that.

But vou can't tell me about the probability
assessment since you don't understand the Bickel study
sufficiently ¢to deal with the computer papers.

All I want to know is, dces page 4 fall within

one of those two categories, i.e. the exacutive review
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Q Anéd where did vou get that?
A -- Zetermining parcentads.
The projection was that of tha energy forescast
azecut.ve review committee, 5.2 nercent.

Q Then what did ycu do?

A Calculated the components of rasidential, commercial

and industrial sales of total snergy salas,
Q Hdow did you do thai?
Tell me the steps invoived?

A I tcok the projiscted residential ener sales -~

Q What is that number?

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Let him £inish his answer,
Mr. Cherry.

THE WITNESS: <-- total hours, and divided it by the
total main system sales for the year. I did this for several
vears through the period, for the '80s.

BY MR, CHERRY:

Q Well, let‘s go through.

I want 0 go through each of the details. Can
you give me the information and use that in connection with
arriving at the 32 percent figure?

A You want the numbers?
Q I want you to go through the calculaticn for me,

Mr. Heins, so you can explain to me how vou arrived at 32

percent.
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malS
‘ A I will need a reference sh2et froem my black
notabook, which is filed under page 4.
,;) (Decument handed to witnecs.)
‘ This is the one.
Q Can I see what you are lcciking at, Mr. Heins?
A Surely.
Q By the way, dc you have the figuresAthat you
reviewsd last night?
A Yes, I do.
Q Mav I have them?
MR. CHERRY: I have mad2 a set of exhibits Ior
tha staf{f, for Cow, and cne each fcr the members of the Board.
‘ I have not made one Zor Consuners since they have all the

exhibits, thev prcduced it.
The document that !ir.Heins referred to i3 Dow
Project Proposed Revision Main System Elactric Sales Foracast by
Class, is Exhibit 11.
CEAIRMAN COUFAL: 1Isg that Exiibit 11 attached to
the . testimony?
MR. CHERRY: No.
My Exhibit 11, HMidland Intervenor's.
MR. ROSSO: I'm sorry, sir. I was dealing with
some questions we had here at counsal table anéd I missed

what was said.

°

CHATRMAN COUFAL: Mr. Cherry said that the figursas
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“hat the witnese is now considering on thazt piece of paper
=hat he got from his rotsbook, as I undsrstced it, Mr. Cherry
said that piece of paper iz in Mr. Cherry's Exhibit 11,

Is that what you said, Mr. Cherry?

MR. CHERRY: Yes, sir.

I wili show you what it lcoks like, and then vou

can £ind it in the exhibit.

.CHAIRMAH COUFAL: 1Is it a paper entitled Main
System Electric Sales Forscagt by Class?_ Iz that thg dociment
we are talking about?

MR. CHERRY: Right.

THE WITNESS: Thesa arz the calculations that I

did last night, which I understzod to be reguasced ya2sterday
attarzcon. ; |

MR. CHERRY: I have hers five yo llOn pagas,

Ms. Reporter. Would vou mark tham as #idland Intervenor's

. Group Exhibit 12.

(Whereupon, five yeliow pages,
handwritten, ware marked
Midland Intervenor's Group
Bxhibit 12 for iueatifimtion.)
. BY MR, CHERRY:
Q Mr. Heins, you say you have calculated the numbers
on page 4 of your testimony by refereance to the document,

Main System Zlsctric Sales Forecast by Class, which appears in
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Exhibit 11 of the Intervenor's.
Is that correct?
Y I haven't seen you:i Exhibit 11.
(Mr. Cherry showing decument towitness)
Q I have just describsd the document I am holding in
ny hand.
I3 that the document you us2d to ficure, to
calculate the ligures oa page 4 of vour testimony?

MR. ROSSO: Could the witness be allowed to

examine the document and corrcborate that it is in fact the
same thing “hat he has before him?
{(Document handed towitness.)
THE WITNESS: Yea, that iz the same document,
Y MR. CHERRY:
p Where d%d you get the figures that appear on
the top line in the column entitled "Residential,” and go
across the column?
Where did yoﬁ get those Zigures?
A These are the results of the Bickel confirmatory
class-~by-class study of future electric growth.
' Q You mean they come from the remainder of the
Midland Exhibit 117
B This item F was material furnished to Dr. Timm,

which was intended tr demonstrate a concise -- in a concise

form to him, the process »nd the steps used in the Bickel




1769

confirmatory study.
I weculd expect that these numbors would eithe:
ke in this material or calculable I{rom this material.
Q Can you confirm that for me?
A No.
I am not competent tc read that matarial and
explain it to you.
Q Do yvou know, Mr, Heins, whether or not the figures

that appear opposite “Residential” have been arrived at using

all applicable . factors in the document we are taliing about, .

Exhibit 11?7

MR. ROSSO: OCbiection to the question as vague.

What coes all applicable factors mean?

CHAIPMAN COUFAL: I doan't know whether that is a
question that acan be ansverad by an expert in this rcom
or not.

Can it, Mr. Heina?

THE WITNRSS: Actually to answer it -- I can't
answer it honestly. I kanow of many of the facters,but whether
that is an exhaustive list of all of them, I don't kncw.

BY MR, CHERRY:

Q Tell me the factors that will impinge uron arriving
at that residential set of numbers at the tcp of the column?
A Some of the factors that would impinge upon

determining the residential future elactric sales would be the
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the population growth or change in Michigan in our servica
area, the acquisition of new or differant appliances and
enargy-using preoducts by those resideats in our service area,
the way people live, the number of people per residential
meter, life style, the type of housing that they would live
in -- bigger, smaller, better insulated,multiple unit -~ the
conservation -~ the effect of the botta:Ausa of the cost
of energy and other commcdities and products which they might
want.

Q You mean the higher price night decrs2ase the amount
of enerqgy?

MR. ROSSO: Has the witness finished his answer
to the prior question?

CAAIRMAN COUFAL: Hae you, Mr. Heins?

THE WITNESS: I have not.

MR. ROSSO: May I move then that that last
question be struck until the witness ~ompletas his answer to
the prior question?

CHAIRMAN COUPAL: Yes.

Finish your answer, Mr.Heins, then we can get
Mr. Cherry's question r=ad hack.

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir.

The availability of other energy forms, the
anticipation in the thinking of people conceraning this

availability even before the change is in order,the general
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. aconomic conditionz of the State of Michigan, and how

enmployment moves, wacther pacple are wvworking or not, the

~ weathaer.
- Perhaps tha< 13 all I should take time to rscollect.
BY MR. CHZRRY:
Q Take all “he time you need, iMr. Heins.
Jave you complated your anawer?
A No.
I will continua a2ttampting to think fadditional
factors.
Q Okay.
A I will close with the poszible availability of a
. v unique or large energy-using device that we haven't forese=n.

That is an important estinate.

Thcse are all the factozrs I can think of at this

moment.
Q A large anergy devicas that we haven't forsseen?
A Yes, sir.
Q Such as an electric power power witness.

MR, ROSSO: I'm sorry, I Jidn't get that last
comment. Or an electric what?
(:) MR. CHERRY: Witness.
MR. ROSSO: Move to strike.
‘ . CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Strike it.

MR. CHERRY: That i3 an unforessen element in the
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fature that might ~-
BY MR. CIERRY:
Q Now Mr. Heins, were all of chese factors used in
the projection of the residential numbers that are in the

docunent we ars talikiang about?

A I balisve they wera,
Q Hdow was the unforaseen future machine used?
A The simple asssnce of the possibility of semething

of this nature that we can now foraesee impact -- we did not
postulate the addition of aa electric septic tank or an elsctrie

car over the period of this forccast.
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o So it wasn't one of the factors that was usead?

MR. ROSS0O: Objection. The witaess has answered
the question.

CIAIRMAN COUFAL;r}OV;rruled.

I don't understand the status c¢f the answer.

THE WITHESS: 1In the past, grcwth in electric
energy --

4R. CEERRY: Excuse me. I have a question. <Jould
I get my question answared?

B7Y MR. CHERRY:

Q Baged on your angwar, iir. Heins, this future
machine impact was not one of the factors because you don't
know what it is, correct?

MR. ROSSO: 1I'm going tc object. That's a mis-
characterization. I pray the Chairman will allow the witness
to answer the question in his own way.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Answer the guestion, Mr. Heins.

MR. CHERRY: Answer my question.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: ©D2id you consider these possible
future events?

THE WITN 'SS: We considered them and decided not
to enticipate such a thing. That's the consideration of the
factor.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q Now, Mr. Bickel worked on the computer study, is
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:.that correct?

A Item "?
Q It's Exhibit 11, Midland Intervenor's, is what it's
is marked.

Now, did Mr. Bickel --
CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Weit a minure, He hasn't
answerad.
MR, CHERRY: I t¢hink he said yes.
CHAIRMAN COUFAL: I missed it, than.
pid you say yves?
THE WITNESS: Mo, sir.
CHATRMAN CCUFAL: No, he didn't say ves.
Answer the guestica.
THE WITNESS: This is My. Bickel's werk, 7es.
BY MR, CHERRY:
) Did Mr, Bickel congider all of those factors when
he zrived at the numbers you used to calculate the figures
on page 4 of vour testimony?
A In my discussions with Mr., Bickel --
o Just a moment, now. Did Mr. Bickel use the facters
you've just told us about ii arriving at the figures that
you used to arrive at the numbers on page 4 of ycur testimony?
If you know, tell pa; if you don't know, I'd
like to go on. I don't want to speak to hat.

CHAIRMAN COUZPAL: He’'s trying to tell you, Mr.
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Cherrv.

MR. CIZERRY: He's trving to give a speech.
CEAIRMAN CCUFAL: Answer, Mr. Heins.
THE WITNESS: To the best of my knowledge, yes.
BY MR, CHEPRRY:

Q How did Mr. 3Bickel use price?

A My understanding of his use of price?

Q That's right. .

A Price of what?

o Well, what relevant price of what commedicy is

relevant to these numbers you peostulated?

R Cost of all itams -- housing. energy, groceries --
would enter into the expectad use of elactricity.

Q I meant price of electricity.

A Mr. Bickel did a subjective consideration of the

effects of price elasticity on the probable future usage of

electricity.

Q .What did he conclude in this subjective considera-
tion?

A T don't kncw whai the resuits of that particular

aspect were, Mr., Cherry.

2 ¥You don't know whether he cencluded that the price
of electricity would incr=ase or decrease residential usage?
You don't kncw whather he did that or not?

A He assumed an increasing price in slectric energy
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.t: 4 over the periocd.
Q And an increaczsing usage?
~ A Yes, and an incraesing usage.
ik Q So that Mr. Bickel's assumption was thaz the

higher the price, the more energy wilil be usad?

MR. ROSSO: Objecticn, Mr. Chairman. That's a
mischaracterication of the testimenv.

MR. CEERRY: Domn it, air, I'm entitled to an
answaz to thasa questions. I'm getting tired of this.

Send him tc law schcsl go he can learn hew to
be a lawyer.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Strike that.

, Answer the quastion, Mr, Heins.

THE WITNESS: The growth rate that . :sulted in
the residential anticipated usage reflacts a higher price of
energy and some anticipated sudijective consideratioﬁs an
these higher prices and their effact on customer usage.

This grocwth rate that we’'rs anticirating for
residential is lcwer than we had experienced in the pericd
up until 1973, when the oil'embatgo took place.

BY MR, CHERRY:

(;} Q Are you telling me that the increase of price will
decrease or increase the usage you would otherwise estimate,

or have no effect?

®

A The assumption that we are making iz that an
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iacreasing price at some point will result in decreasing use

of alactric energv.

Q At what poine, Mr. Hainsg?

A I don't know.

Q Doss Mr. Bickal Xnow, do ou know?
A I don't knov.

Q You don't imow if ha knows.

Now, vou told me earlier, Mr, Heins, that part of
your concern in connection with vour calculation of reserve
was that the cil suppliars with whom you ncw have contracts

aight not renew after 1981, iz that corract?

A Cur concern predatas 1981.
Q Thay might not renaw tomorrcw?.
A The contract calls for daliverias through 1981,

but both the Canadian Governmant and *ha Unitad States SGovern-
ment, through the Federal Energy Authority, havae exercised
some control over tha amount of cil that we get. It is
antiré]y possible that, although the contract calls for de~
liveries through 1281, thal the supply can be reduéad or even
shut coff before that.

o Anything is possible, but what I want to know is:
is this speculation on your part, or is it based on informa~
tion that vou rzceived from FEA, tha Canadian Naticnal Energy
Board, or the United States authorities.

A This information was gained by my company from
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blté6 these agencies and perhaps others. This information was then
: ’ related to me by those whe arz r2sponsible for fuel supply.
| Q And pe& .= at your company told you that they
‘) were informed therse was a serious problem about continuing to
raceive oil L.gplizs under thase ccntracts?
& Yes.
Q Havs you rsported that, do you knew, in your
Securities and Exchange filipgs? Have yvou infoimed your share-
holders abouf the pogsibility that you would not have oil
next year or the year.after?
MR. ROSSO: Objection. Irrelevant.
CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Overzuled.
’ THE WITNESS: As I recall, it has been mentionéd.
in thbse documents that I have had an opportunity to raad.
BY MR. CHERRY:
¢ Which ones, Mr. Heins?
A The Securities and Exchangz2 Cormission filings
that had to do with selling stocks or bonds.
Qe Can vou identifv cne for me?
A If I saw one, I would probably remember whether or
not I had read that one.

e I'm asking you if you can identify any dccument

C

that you believe you saw the statement in.
MR. ROSS50: OCbjection. I think the witness has

. already answered that question to the best of his ability.
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CHAIRMAN CCUFAL: Overruled.

THE WITNESS: When I see these documents, it's
generally in the draft stage.

MR. CHERRY: €lir, may I have the witness answer
the question as zo whetar he can now identify any documents
to which he referred?

CEAIRMAN COUPAL: Yes.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q Answer my quastion, Mr. Heins.
A I cannot at this mcment idencify a particular

document of that sort. When I ses these éccumeats, it's in

the draft stage and I will see several conies as changezs are
made and they are cetting nearer completion.

fhe date upon which the document is issued,
published and submitted, or filed, I never -- raraly pay any
attention to that particular late; therefore, I canace identify
a date ard a particular document associated with that date.
- Q S0 you read the drafts and anticipate the arrival

of the final copy?

A Yes.

Q And someone else prepares the final copy?

A Yes,

d And you don't always look at the final ceopy?

A Yes,

Q So how do you know what was in the draft was in
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the final copy?

A I have no dir=zct knowledge cof that.
Q So vou really don': know whether there's been any

information to the SEC about thiz precblam.
A - That's cozrzct.
2 Why did you tell ma you did xnow?
MR, ROSSO: Objection. Argumsntativa.
IRMAN COUFAL: Sustaianed.
THE WITNESS: May I answer?
CHAIRMAN CCUF AL: 1lo. Your counscsl objected tc
it.
BY MR. CHERRY:
Q Who at your company has told you €nat he or she
has bazen infurmed by the Canadian Naticnal inergy Ecard that

there is this problem with regard to fuel supply?

A Mr. Beek and Mr. Van Rieman.,
e They have both tolé vou that?
B Yes.

MR, CHERRY: Ky, Chairman, I will give notice
ncw that I want to gpsak to wither lir., Beek or Mr, Van
Rieman, and I'll work cut a zchedule.
BY MR. CHERRY:
Q Who has told vou frcem th2 companv that he has been
informed there arz serious prcblems with oil supplies undar

vour contracts and that he's been told tiat by someone who isg
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a U. S, authority?
A Mr. Beei and Mr. Van Rieman have re.ayed that sort |
of information to me. I canno% gc bevond that. ;
Q okay.
The last time that Consumers Power Ccompany sent .

out bids for oil, do you know hcw many bid responses they

received?
A I do not kncw the precise aumber. I was told =--
Q If you don't knocw, then don't tell me what you

were told, Mr. Heins. If you den't itnow -~ my question was
"Dc you know," okay?

MR. ROSSO: Mr. Chairman, the whole aeriez'oﬁ;
questions here is about what scmeone else told him, and now
the witness tries to answer this cne by telling him whaé
someone else told him and now he cbjects.

Selective infurﬁa:ion like this, sir, is juét vot
the proper way to go about getting the truth.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: There is a device called redirect,
Mr. Rogso, that you can use. IZ vou feel the information
should be in, you can ;pproach it on redirect.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q Would you agree with me, based on your kncwledge
from whatever source, if I told you that the last gina
Consumers sought bids for cil they got fifteen responses

from suppliers willing to supply oil?

LA
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'bltlﬂ A I szuspect the number iz reasonabla That's ay
Yo apderstanding.
[+ ] And you regard a market where a bidder sends out

O

bida and receivas fiftasen respenses as a market that presents

prcblams of shortage? Do ycu racard thet as such a market,

Mr. Heins?
A Yes.
Q You do.

What is ycur backgreund in ecencmivs, if any, siz?

A Enginesring econemicez I have siudiad and ased,
2 Engingering. You mean the cost of phvsical equip-
nent?
, A Cost and econcmic calculatiocns acsociated with
that.
Q I'm just talking about the zupply and demand of

products in the marketplace. Do you have = backgrsund in :
that?
A I have a2 college course in »rinciples of accnonics.
b You 20ld me also yesterday, or yo2n told the Staff,
that there were letters of intent with the cities of Lansing
and Holland for the purchasze of electricity from Midland,

is that correct?

.

A I do nct recall my answer being of that naturs.

3 Are there letters of intent?

®

RS I do not know of any letters of intent with
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.cl.‘-. Lansing and Holland.

Q Do vou know of any letters of intent with aaybody
~ to purchase electricity from Midiand?
,

A I know of a letter. Yasterday I was told it micht
rot be casidered a letter cf intanc.
Q I see.

Who told ycu that?

A I cverheard you say that.
Q What letter were you referring to?
A There's a letter or mamorandvm that axtists in

which ths partiss agresed tc work ahead at preparing --
MR. ROSSO: Pardon ms?
‘l') BY MR. CHERNY:

Q Go ahead, Mr, Heins.

A Thers is a letter in which the parties agreed to
work ahéad towards preparing a2 contract which would afford a
way of making an agreement, a meeting of the minds, concarning
the sale of some generating capacity.

2 And wneo are those parcies?

A Thoce parties were Consumers Power Company,

Northern Michigan Electric Cooperative, and Wolverine Elsctric

(:/ Cecperative.
Q Do ycu have a letter of intent with the City of
. Holland, Michigan, or the City of Lansing, Michigan?

A To my knowledge, no.
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Q Bo you haave any cbligation to sell Hollarnd or
Lansing electricity from the 4icland generating facility if
it ever gets constructed?

A I don't know.

Q You don't know whethar you have this cbligation.

Do you have any firm contracts -- do you kncw what

a firm contract is in the zlectric industry? ’

A I think I do.
Q What is your understanding?
A Well, & €irm contract is cne Zn which w2 undartake

to provide electric zervice to a custcme- o the best of our

ability.
Q That’s your undarstandinc of 2 firm contract?
A Semething of thit nature.
Q Sonséhing ©. that na*ura.

How is eloctricity bought and soid generally, Mr.

Heing, among wholiesale users?
A A wholesale user, whick nigat ke a zunicipality

or city, they make a contract with us in which we agree to
provide electiic energy to them for their requiremeats based
on certain prices and =o on.

I believe the statement is made in there that we
will do all that we can to previce the service, and indeed we
do provide generating backup in in effort to maintain reliable

service to that type of customer.
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Q But if you're unable to do so, then there is an
escape clause in these agresments that we're talking about?

A T think there's sowe gort of clause concerning
events beyond our contrel.

Q If you have it, you'll sell it; if you don't have
it, you won't sell it.

a If wve have it -- ard we maka prudent plans to pro-
vide recerve capacity so that we will have it -- we will pro-
vide it to tham.

Q But are you suggesting that if the Midland Plant
doesn't go on line that, based on information you have,
éonaumars Power Company will be in violation of some under-
standing or agreement you have with cocoperatives to supply
alactricity on a2 firm basgis?

A It's my understanding we would not be in violation
of a contract. Thare is no coantract yet.

Q You woulé z2grese with me, Mr. Heins, that therefore
it iz not proper to include in your calculation of nat
generating capacity salss to persons with wbom you had no
coatract? Would you agree wiih mo?

A No.

Q Even though you don’t have a contract, you think
nonetheless it is proper to include in the calculaticn of

your net generating capacity the amount of sales to such

persons?



1786

‘1?.14 A The project=d amount of sales, yes.
Qe At what price?

o MR. ROSSO: T have to cbject to that question.

- Mr. Heins hasn’'t besen testifying about the price at which
electricity will be scld. He's been testifying about the
need for electricity in the Consumers Pcwer Ccmpany service
area and the plans cf the cocmpany to meet thcse nzeds.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Ovarruled.
BY MR. CHERRY:
Q What is the orice that you project vou will sell
to these persgsons?
A If we have such an agreement with the cocperatives,
. it would not be a2 wholesale contract. It 'muld be an iater-

change agreement with them.

The cost for capacity and energy in these inter-
change agreements changas pericdically with system conditions
and costs and so on, just as our rates change periodically
through rate cases. .

Q Have you arrived at any understanding with thase
persons as to the length of time for such a contract which
is entered irnto?

A I do not recall that.

Q Have vou arrived at an understanding with these

Fersons as to any term or cendition of chis prospective

\‘ @)

arrangement?
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,‘ .:15 A It is our understanding that it would be for the
life of the plant.
-y Qo This is a firm understanding you have with these
- perscns?
A It is my understanding of the understending.
Q It's your undarstanding.
2xd this understanding that vou have of these
understandines, as you have described, is for firm snergy
or for capacity of Midland?
A The agreamant that wve would hore to conclude with
the cooperatives would make them cvmers of an undivided interest
. in the generating plant.
~ Q And is that figure 'ZThat is the subject of your

understanding of thes2 underatindings that haven't been
entered into the 272-megawatt figure that you usad in your
tagtimony?
MR, ROSE0: I objec:z to the characterizationg.of
the testimony. e
CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Overruled.
THE WITNESS: The 272 megawatts that I mentioned
. is the amount of capacity that we have come to an understanding

that will be includad in the contract.

O

BY MR. CHERRY:

e What if Midland is delayed? Are vou obligated to

‘@

sell 272 meqawatts to these groups from some other source?
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A as I understand, we heve no contractual obligation
+o do this; but as a gystem planner I further undarstand that,

based upon the load projections and the capacity ficures that

they have given to us, that they would be iIn +rouble generating-

wise sometima during ¢his neriod of the 1302 and they might
have to request purchase of capacity and enexgy £rcm the
system.

They said that ghey might not have time to build
a pvlant of their cwn.

Q Thev might not hava sime 2nd *hey might be in
trouble. .

So you're telling me .ow that, on the basis eof
analysis which you have ma&a of figures given by them, you
have done a locad foracast and a raserve analysis of sach of
these cooperative systems and hava ccncluded yourself that
they really need shis power and can't get i+ frcm any other
sourca?

MR. ROSSO: Chijecticn. !

CIATRMAN COTTAL: COverruled.

MR. ROSSO: 8ir, may I explain ay ok“ection?

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Please do.

MR. ROSSO: Mr. Heins never testified that he
made a lcad forecast, and the grestion gated that he made the
load forecast.

CHAIRMAN CCUFAL: 1€ that's what his answer is
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going to be, Mr. Rosso, he's free to say so.

MR, CHERRY: 1I'm going to star:t asking for costs,
Mr. Ros=so.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q Mr., Heins, 4o ahead.

A I did not make a lcad forscast of the cocperatives'
future system conditions. Thay bring them to the neetings
that we have, and rthey are p-apared by themselves or by their
consultants.,

Qe Do you know if thev're correct or accurata, what-
ever they mighi show?

A We think they may be accurate.

Qe Do you know that they ars correct or accurats,

whataver thay might show?

A I cannot know any future situation.

Q You haven’'t locked at the figures, richt?

A I have locked at the figures.

Qe Well, have you formed an opinion as to whether or

not they accurately portray?

A I have an opinion that these locads they 22 pro-
jecting could be accurate reprzsentations of the future needs
of their systems.

Q Could be?

A Yes.

Q Just lika your projections could be accurate
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‘11:18 nredictions for Consumers’ needs.
l A I cthink that's fair.
\ Q And could not be.
(:; A And could not be.
Q Now, Mr. Heins, do you underztand Consumers' obli-

gations that they are required to sell electricity to these

ccoperatives?
A No.
Q As a matter of fac:, your company had a big anti-

trust snit dust recently and cri=d to prevant cooperatives

from buying into Midland, isn't that right?

A I can recall antitruat proceedings, but it wasn't
/‘ my undarstanding that that was the subject of those proceedings.
o} Is it your testimony that, besed on what you know,

these ccoperatives have no alzernative but ¢to purchase power
from the Midland facility in 1989 and beyoad?

A I'm sorry. Would you repeat that?

Q Is it your understanding that these cooperatives
we're talking about have no other altermative for the power
they might need other than buyin; the power from the }(idland
nuclear facility?

C A It's my understanding they have no practical
alternative. They would have the possibility of installing
. gas turbine type generation, which has a relatively short

lead tinme,
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‘blt 19 : The fears and concsrns that they have concarning
the possi®la shortcomings in fuel supply for those davices
make them an 'mattractive and perhaps unfeakible alternative.

Q My question was, do you know whether they had any
alternative. I take i: the ansver to my question is yes, they

hava other alternatives.

A They have that qualified alternative.
Q Any other?
A Diesel-driven generacors would alsc be sihort laad

time type ganeration,
e How about buving the power from somazone 2lse
besides Consumers Power?
‘ A That would be a possibility for them, tso.
Q It would be a possidbility. '

Have you analyzed all the other svatems from which
these cooperatives could purchase power and determined that
no pewer is available for 1989 on for these cocoperatives?

A No. We have --
e Just a moment now.
MR. CHERRY: #r. Chairman, he said no.
CHAIRMAN COUFAL: I know he said no, Mr. Cherry.

Do you need to qualify your answer, Mr. Heins?

O

THE WITNESS: I'd like to, Mr. Chairman.
’ MR. CHERRY: Qualify vour no.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Go ahead.

- —— . —— . —— A —— . ——— T — e, e et e
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THE WITNESS: I have not made a detailad analysis
of all these cother systaiea, We do rely on their projected
reserve figures that are furnished to us by them and fael
chat in the future there i3 a dwindling of reserve, generation
resezve, level in the entire ECAR area.

This is substantiated by filings mada by ECAR with

the FPC.
BY MR, CHERRY:

Q By wvhat £iling?

A Filings mada by ECAR cn behalf of ECAR companies
with PPC.

Q2 Which particular f£filings?

A I think they’'rs in raspoase to Crder No. 323,

] Which responsze? I mean, that’s a continuing

docket., 1It's been going on about fifteen yeara., Which
response?

A The last cne, which wacz dene in the spring of '76,
is the one that I have rafcorence to.

Q So your testimony is, if we lock in the spring
of 1276, we'll find information from these cocperatives that
¥.11l tell us what, Mr. Heins?

A No. If we look a2t the ™CAR filings that were made
in the spring of '76 wa will find during the period that
we're discussing here that ZCAR reserves 4o docliﬁe scmewhat.

Q ECAR reserves decline somewi.at.

——— —— e e e e e g . - S— DU
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.blt 21 o Have you made an aralysis of all of the systams
+hat make up BCAR's reserves?
A Again, I must say no.
C:) e Do you know whether that decliniag reserve is an

accurate perirayal of what will occur based on the information

that is available?

A I do not know that.
Q But you rely on it nevertheless?
A I do rely on it.

MR, CHERRY: Can I have this document marked as
Midland Intervenor's Exhibit Ho. 1l3.
(The document referred to
‘ ‘ was marked Midland Intervenor's

Exhibit No. 13 for identifi-

cation.)
BY MR. CHERRY:
Q Does the name "Ferni" mean anythinq to you?
A Fermi is a nmuclear plant that Detreit Bdis"ati'is
building.

Q Is that plant on line?

A No. |
Q Q So it's a prospective nuclear power plant?

A Yes, it's under coanstruction.
9 o It hasn't got an operating license vet, has it? i

A I don't kxnow, Mr., Cherry.
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Q You don't know.
Mr. Eeins, do vou kncw whether the cooperatives
with whom you've been talking have entered into a firm under-
staﬁding with Permi for purchase of electricitcy, either

capacity or firm'anergy?

A Mo, I don't. I know that ther2 have eon dis-
cussions.
Q Excuse me. If you don'% know, then ¢hat's all

I want, okay?

MR. ROSSC: Mr. Chairman, I'm sorry, but the witness
nad not yet completed his anawer. iiay he have an cpportunity
to do =o?

MR. CHERRY: What's the sense of all this stuff
going on the recoré? The man doezn't know. Why prolong it?

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: You may answer, Mr. Heins,

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

I know there have been discussions concerning the
sale of an undivided intarest in the Fermi Plant to the
cooparatives. Closging with the REAs was schedulad on cr about
thia t%ya, and I have no knowledge as to whether that contract
has beéan executed or not. It may have been executad since
I left Jackson.

BY MR. CHERRY:

1 If that contract has been exacuted, then sone of

the cooperatives with whom you have been talking about %o
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‘lt 23 purchase electricity from Midland may no longer need that
elactricity, is that correct?
A Not according toc tue cecoveratives.
O
Q They have told you they want to buy from both

Midlanéd and Fermi?

A Yes.
Qe Who has told YOu that?
A Mr. Xeene and Mr., Jcaason., Mr. Johnison is with

the lortherm Michigan Electric Coopurative., Mr. Keene is
with the Wolverine Blectric Cocperative.
The plan ia, that they have told us, is that they

vant to buy from Fermi and thay would also like to buy Irom
’ us. This would provide some baclkup to thom when one of thcse

plants was out of gervice. It would ernabla them to sell back

to the parties that are selling them the undivided interest

a portion of that capacity until it was neaded by the coopera-

tives, and thair locad growth leads them to beliave that they

wculd need the total amcunt at scme point in the future,

Q 72 megawatts?
A  The amocunt on our Midland unit that we have been

discussing is 272 msgawatts.

77N\ & Oh, they want to buy that p.us whatever they can
./

get from Permi?
‘!’ A That's what they have tcld us.

Q How much are they going to get from Fermi?




(

¢ 1796

A I believe the number is 220 megawatts.

Q So they want a total of a little over 492 mega-
watis?

s Right.

Q Okay.

Would you take a look at Exhibit 12 of your testi-
ucny? Are you with me?

LY Yes.

Q What is the figure that'sz in parentheses on the
line mariked "Purchasze,” under the column marizad "Cancel
Midland”? Is it 422 in parentieses?

A Jes.

Q Can you tell mz what that figure is ccmposed of?

MP. ROSSO: Just for clarification cf the record,
sir, is that for the vear 19817

MR. CHERRY: That's the only tine it appears =--
no, it's under “Cancel Midland.” I'd like to deal with
reality,

MR. RCSS0: For the year 19817

MR. CHERRY: Well, yes, that's correct.

(Pause.)

THE WITNESS: That number 432 is comprised of,
as I recall, the sale of 313 megawatts of loading and puwap
Storage to Commonwealth 2discn, the sale of 60 megawatts of

the Campbell 3 unit, which we are anticipating, the purchase



1797

of 20 megawatis Zrom a generacing plant in Luddington,
Michigan, that we do not own, and 2 small hydro generating
corporatiocn called Wolverine Zlectrie Corp.

BY MR. CHERRY:

[+ The sale to Welverins or the purchase by
Wolverine?
A Wolverine Power Corp., I cuess is the name, is

a small hydro gensrating plan%, and we buy frem them, so that
20 is the sum of the purchase from this Wolverine Power Corp.
and an industrial plant in Luddington which sells us capacity,
also.

There is an additional 74-megavatt aale,

anticipated salza, to municipals in Michigan,

2 From what source?
A From Midland.
Q But that's under the column that said “Cancel

Midland."” How could you sell electricity from Midland if
you cancelled it?

A Our pesition in this was that the municipals, if
Midland were cancelled, would be in such a situation that they
would not have time to react, 2nd that in order to ensure
that we would have capacity and energy to sell to them in
cagse that was the alternative they had to pursue we included
dhieir requirements in that year,

Q Do * understand that under "Cancel Midlan¢“* the
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74 megawatits i3 projectad from the Midland Flant to be

sola? 1Is thac right?

A No, wa're projecting it wculd be 3cld off the
gystem to them. If they reached aa ngreement with us, it
was for this amount, 74 megawatts; if the plant were delayed,
+that thers would be a necessity to provide them with capacity
from some source. It would be off the system. Cartainly,
if Midland isn't thers, it wouldn't omm {207 MiSland.

o Yeu just told me the source of that 74 megawatts
in the computaticn was Midland., Did you maka a mistzaie when
you said that?

MR. ROSSO: Objection. Argumentacive.
CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Sustained. I don't believe
that's what ba told you.
the unswar :f:dcgfgfyés ggu%ga17Ea;:gégztgg?s:&gnhgzggabggki::d
(Whereupen the Ra2porter read from the record
as requested.)
BY MR, CHERRY:

e Now, when I asked you what the source of the 74
megawatts was, you said Midland. The Reportar just read that
back. What did you mean when you said Mid%and?

A I meant that the agreexeat which we contemplated
with tn; municipals would be for their purchasa of an

undivided interest in Midland and that aut.cipated negotiations

would go ahead on this, that we would at scme peint in the
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future reach agrz2emeat and 2azer intc a contract with them
to provide them that undivided interest in Micland.

v That's what you meant?

A If subsequent to that Midland were cancelled, we
felt that we had an obligation to try to supply them from
the systcam.

13 With an undivided interest in 74 megawatts of
generating capacicy?

A The sum of the amounts th~. :ha2y have been talking
total 74 megawatts.

& You told me that the 74 was an undivided interest

in Midland, the capacity sale, not a firm energy sale,

correcs?
A Yu,meuh--fmuwema%rmm.
g cs‘ay.

If Midland is cancelled, you contemplate selling
these cocperatives 74 megawatis of aA undivided interest
in some cther facilicy?

A We have not -- wa did havs this interest in
Campbell 3, and we would presunabl¥ sall them an interaest in
Campbell 3, also, if not Midland for some rzason. They
haven't told us what they would like.

g wWhat's the justificaticn, then, for including
the 74 when you say "Cancel Midland® if you had no discussions

whatscevaer about the sale of an undivided interest in any
of your other facilities?
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A We have had discussions concerning the sale of an
undivided interest in Campbell 3. Wa have proceeded in our
discussions with the municipals eon the assumption that Midland
would be built and would be available. And we would hope to
entar into & contract with them on that basis.

Q But if Midland is cancelled, weould you affirmatively
ge ocut and try to sell an undivided interest in oné of your
other facilities to these conperatives? L ’

A We would pot go out and try t§ sell. We would sit
down with them and ask them what their prcbliems 7era and how
we might help them.

Qe Then it may or may not arrive at the 74 megawatt
figure; correct?

A Yes. As I s:atea bafore, it was my assumption to
include there the 74 megawatts as a prudent measure in plan-
ning for the possibility of helping them if the Midland
capacity was not available.

Q Yow you said that they would need turnarcund tine.
How much turnaround time dc these cooperatives need, based
on your expert judgment?

A I didn't use that term. I am not sure what ycu
mean by --

Qo You said that if Midland wera cancelled, they
wouldn't have encugh time to turnaround -~ I think that is

what you said.
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MR, ROSSO: The wiiness doesn't recall using the
language. Parhaps w2 cculd have it defined and then we could
get over this hump.

BY 47, CHERRY:

Q Did you tell me that one of the reasens you thought
it prudent to include the 74 megavatts was because if Midland
was canselled, thevy wouldn't have time to react? Did you
use these words?

A I believa react -- I said they may not have the

time to react to provide ths capacizy tc take care of their

neads.

a What time are vou talking abcut? What periocd of
time?

i If they wers to tuild a substantial coal-fired

steam electric generating plaant, the construction period has
to be in the ordar of 7 to 2 years for that now.

Q 7 to 9 years to build what?

A To build a coal~fired staeam slectric generating

plant of the-size, 160 megawatts or greater.

Q Are you seriocus?
A Yes.
Q Do you want to buy one for $302 in St. Louis

with a turnkey job, guaranteed 2 years, to oparate?
MR. ROSSO: Objection.

CAAIRMAN COUFAL: Sustained.
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"iirb3 BY MR, CHERRY:
Mo o What i3 the basis for your 7 and 9-vear projaction

for construction of a 160 megawatct fossil-fual plant?

O

A The ergineering and censtruction dapartment cf our
company has furnished us with comstruction lead zimes for
units. 160 megauztt sizc is one thav the city of Lamsing

mailt on their sveten as Laeir most recant unit, that vent
in service abent two ard a half€ years ago. And it is of a size
that they would be interesteZ in.

Much smaller steam-fired <cal =-- coal-firad steanm
electric generating plants, in the order of 20,30 megawatts
might be built in 2 short time. 5Hut I have no knowledga of

’ : the sizes.
Qe You really don’'t have any specific knowledge about
schedules at all; do you?
MR. ROSSO: Objsction.
CHAIRMAN CCUTAL: Overrulad.
THE WITRESS: Only what I am told, #r. Cherry.
BY MR, CHEIRY:
Q Br the way, in the computation of +he 74 megawatts

wvas anything to do with the Fermi plant involved in that

céﬁpntation7

;> A I can't recall the omunicipal representatives
mentioning Fermi.

, Q Why the difference, then,in the purchua' category
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arbi in the Exhibit 12 of your tastimony, between as scheduled
‘ column 24 scheduled column in 1981 and the cancel itidland
column in 19312
A In the as scheduled column, we had the amount of
capacity that we proposed o 3ell o the <ccoperatives included
in that 472.
Q You just told me tiat is <he amount you got in.
the 432, as well.
A No; the 432 includad 74 megawatts which I felt
might becoma an cobligaticn for us to supply to tha municipals.
The 472 includes the amount proposed to bz takan by the
cooparatives 1f they should completa the coatract with us
’ and indeed buy an interest in the Midland plant. And that re-

presents the number of megawatts thsy would be taking that

ysar.

Q How many mogawatts is that?

A That is 40 nggawatts.

Q In aédition to the 742

A Yes.

Q For 2 total of what, Mr. Heins?

A 472.
i Q No; iow much out of the 472 is for the cocperatives?
‘) A Oh; thera would be a net sale to them of 40 mega-
’ watts. Their ownership would be for a larger amount;that

they would sell back to us all except 40 megawatts, which they
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falt they neecded at that time.
Q 8¢ that in 1981, if nidlard is on~lize and you
make this agreecment with tham. you will hava a net sale of

40 megawatts; corract?

& To the cocrorativaes; tha2t is the figure we have
usad.
Q But in 1931, if Midland is cancelled and you don't

give an undivided intersst, you will hava a net sale of
74 megawatts; is that corract?

MR. R0SSQ: I cbject to the guestion as vague in
that it doesn’t spacify to whom the 74 megawatts would be
scld.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Overruled.

TEEZ WITNESS: Tha 74 megawatis is a proposed sale
to the municipals that we hava been talking with.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Qe Not to the ccops?
A Co:rect.
Q I see.

Are there any letters of intent ©r understanding
with respect t§ these municipal arrangements?
A Not to my knowledge.
Q I asked you, Mr. Heins, if the Fermi plant had
anything to do with the calculation of thes 74 megawatts in

the cancel Midland 1981 case that was involved in your
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testinony,
I now shew you Exhilbiz 13 of Midland Intervanors
and azk if you have gver seasn that belore?
A Yes, I have sesn this befors=.
o Wouid you describe it?
MR. ROSSC: =Excuse ma. I want to be sure that I
have the right BExhilit 13.
MR. CEERRY: The witness has ju3t bsen asked tc
dascribe it.
MR. ROS5C: I woant ¢S ke sure I am locking at the
right dccumentz.
BY MR. CHERRY:
Q Pescribe the document, Mr. Heins. Describe Exhibit
i3.
A Exhibit -- tas exhibit that I have marked Midland
Intervencrs Exhibit 13, is a sheet headed, Consumers-Edison,

Leads and Capabilities. Balcw that, (as of September 197§).

Q You have sean chat befora?

A Yes.

Q Whare does it come {rom?

A This is prazpared by my company, by those working

under my supervision and diresction.
Q Do you understand the exhibit?
A Yes, I do, Mr. Cherxy.

Q Can ycu defino it for me?
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Q okay.
% in the lower right-nand corner of Exhibit 13.
It mentions the Farmi plant.

A The lower right-hand coraer, in the year 1585 under

the heading of remarks; summer capacity, winter capacity; there

is a menticn of Formi.

Q Now it is mentioned in othar yeears as well, isn’t
it?

A Yes, it is.

Q Which years?

A Is is mentioned ia that same <clumn reading up,

it i3 mentioned in 1934, 1983, 1362, 1531, 1380,

& Now using thiz dccument, doas it refrash your
racollection a3 to whether or not the F=rmi capacity had
anything to do with the calculaticn of the 74 megawatts underxr
your <cancel Midland column in 3xhibit 11, tc your testimony,
in the year 19312

A There is material on this document wh.~h was used
in that -- in those thinkings and calculaticns assoc. “ted
with that, such as their stataments on there regarding ¢
anticipated lcad, our anticipated ~-- |

2 The Fermi information; the Pexrmi information,
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MR, ROS30: HMay the witness please complete his

CEALRMAN COUFAL: Had vou ccmPleted your ansver,
Mr. Heirs, with regard to the question you were asked?

THE WITNESS: Yes; I think so. Other information
has been uled.

BY MR. CHIRRY:

Q That wasn't my question, Mr. Heins. My question

was:

Pirst of all, was che Fermi plant capacity figure
at all usgd in connecticn with the 74 megawatts,cut of that

fiéu:a on Exhibit 1l of yocir testimony. You said you didn't

I then handed you this documen and asked you if
it had any infommation about Fermi ca it. .You saidﬁyns.
My gquestion is now:

Does the information cn Exhiibit 13 with respect to
the Formi plant refresh ycur recollection so that you can now
tall me whether Fermi capacity had anything to dc with the
calculation of the 74 megwatts in the cancel Midlarnd column
that you described earlier from your Exhibit 11?

The 74 negawatts is a proposed sale toc the munici-
pals. There has been deleted in cancel Midland column, as

I said, the 40 megawatts which was anticipated as a sale to

the cooperatives in that year.
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The 49 megawazits that we nad oroposed to sell to
the cooperatives in that year, we mads the assumption that
they would buy -- take additicnal capaeity from their Fermi
purchase of Detrcit Ediscn and noit -- ané then have the re-
quirement thet the municipals might have.

The cooperatives,; if thoy purchasad the 220 mega-
watts from Permni duering this period whcn Fermi can produce
moro than they require, wouid have enough additicnal capacity
so that the sell back to Detroii .'dison would be reduced and
the ccoperatives would take that 49 megawatts that we had
anticipated coming from our system. from Detreit Bdison.

Q Now the 74 megawatts could be mat by Fermi sﬁ?plus
in each of the ye=ars that ara shcwn on your Exhibit 11; is
that corract?

A In the year 1981, the column headed Mareh, this
states a Fermi gsurplus of 150 msgawatts, summer-wianter, If
the municipals did go to Detroit 2discn and work out an
arrangement to purchase capacity frem them, it would appear
that there is sufficient capacity feor them to cover their

needs from the Detroit Edizon Fermi unit.

Q Including the 74 megawatis thit you put in your ==
A Yes; that is what I am apeaking of.
Q Then we don't have to be too cencerned about those

municipals or cooperatives if all we are coucerned with is

taken care of because you have now agreed that can be taken
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care of frcm some other plant; right?
A I have ic be concerned kecause it is my under-
standing that they aaven't antered into negotiations with

Detreoit Edison for purchase of Fermi.

o But thev haven't decided to contract with you?
Right?

A who, tke municipals?

Q Do you xncw of anyone that has made a deal with
Fermi?

A The ccoperzatives have been negotiating and it was

my understanding there is a coantract that is going tc be
axecuted just abcut this time.

The municipals, I have no kncwladge of any deal
they have made gith Fernmi.

Q But there is sufficient capaciiy during the years
that you are concerned about in Exhibit 11, from the Fermi
plaant to supply the municipals ard the cooperatives to the
extent of vour kncwledge of thsir needs? Corract?

A Yes.

Q So if that is the only reason to build Midland,
we don‘t have to build Midland; right?

A If -- I don't see how I can answer that, Mr.
Cherry. I don't know what the municipals are willing to
’

enter into with Detroit Edison. We have an cbligation to

supply our customers, and as to the lcad of the municipals,
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if they have something to be served, it is part of our obliga-

tion. We nzed Midland to sarve our system.

c It is part of what obligacion of Consumers Pcwer,
Mr. Beins?
A Conswers Peower Company has aa cbligation to serve

these who require electric cnergy without discrimination.

Q You are saving tha: you are cbligatad to supply
the cooperatives and municipalities?

A I really don't know.

] So when you said it was zart of your obligation,
you didn't really mean that you had z -- scme eort of an
obligation imposed to sell tc the cooperatives and municipali-
ties?

MR. ROSSO: Mr. Chairman, I am going to object to
#his line of questioning. It calls for lagal conclusions as
to what the lsgal cbligations of the campany might be.

MR. CHERRY: He uced the tezm.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: He did use the term cbligation.
And you may tell us, Mr. Heins, what you meant by usage of
that word.

TBE WITNESS: I don't know what the legal obliga-
tions are. I do know that myself and my colleagues at
Consumers Power Company fzel a strong obligation to serve the

customeérs and customer needs.
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BY MR. CHERRY:

o You mean a meral obligation?

A 7es.

Q Poes that moral ocbligation axtend to inverted rate
structures?

MR. ROSS0: Cbkjection. This wiitness hasn't testi-
fied with regard to inverted rate structuras.
BY MR. CHEPRY;

Q I just want tc know if the charactex of the moral
obligation that you feel to sexve the customers includes also
a moral cbhligation to impose invertad rate structures through-
out the -- Michigan.

I just want o know if the wmoral chligation includes

that.
CHAIRMAN COUFAL: I sustain tha cbjection.
BY MR. CHOERRY:
Q Did ycu know that My, Youagdahli said that he

didn't want to have any obligaticr fcr social or welfare

purposes?
MR. ROSSC: Objection.
CHAIRMAN CCUFAL: Sustained.
BY MR. C3ERRY:
Q Is your obligation to sell electricity to Ccmmon-

wealth Edison any different frcm your cbligation to sell

electricity to the cooperaiives?
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"‘bu A We have a contract with Commonwealth Edison --
: Qa o it is <different?
A -- for a nortion of the ouiput of Luddington
- punp storage station.
e dow much?
L' our shara is 318 megawatis at tais tims.
/'. b} What is Ccsmonwealth Bdison's shara?
A Commonwealth Bdisor is huving 318 megawatts from

Consumers and Some amount very closa to thut from Detroit
zZdison. Comonwealth Zdison's share would be the sum of
these (wo.

e You mean vou have a contract which cbligates you

' to sell on a yearly basis 318 plus this other figure?
| MR, ROSSO: The gquesticn is vague. Objection.
CHAIRMAN COUPAL: Mo;:; I think it is a gced question.
Go ahead.
BY MR. CHSRRY:

e Co you have a contract with Ccxmenwealth Edison
obligating you to sell on a y=zarly basis 316 megawatts plus
this other amcunt that you would purchase as their shars from
the Luddington Pump Storage Station?

)

MR. ROSS0O: May I restate my objection. It is

U

vague on the basis that the “"you" is unspecified. ¥ho is

’ “you?"
MR. CHERRY: Consumers Power Ccmpany.



Larbl4

1813

TEE WITNESS: The other amount that you have ra-
farencz to, I am not sura I understand b>Hv that,

Q From Dstroi:c Edison. Tou refsrred to the shares
by the differeﬁt partners and you said Camonwealth Zdisen's
share was 31§ pluz thic other amount; dida't you?

Didn'« vou ¢2ll me that, Mr. H2ins?

A Coemronwzalth Edison is buying 31C megawatts from
Consumers Power Ccmpany and soume amount, just about the same
value, from Detroit Edison ccmpany's porticn of the Luddington
Punp Storage plant.,

The 318 megawatis --

Q Zou mear they are buying 318, alszo, from --

A It is junt about that szme number.

Qe So it 4is 536 megawarta?

o It is very close ¢o that.

Q What is the capacity of the Luddington Pump
Storage Saticn?

A 1872 megawatts.

Q Now my questcion is:

Does Coasumers Pcwer Company have a contract with
Camonwealth Edison obligating Consumers Power to sell on a
yearly basis 318 mejawatts to Ccummonwealth Edison f£rcm the
Luddington Pu.p Storage Station.

A There is a contract in existeunce between Consumers

and Commonwealth Eédiscn which has to do withk the sale of 318
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megawatts. The capacity of Luddington -- I am not sure I
know snough about that contract to aaswer vour question.

MR. ROSSO: I think, Mr. Chairman, we ara getting
into a guestion of contractual interprecation and legal
mattsers here which this witness is not gqualified to answer be-
yoerd what he has already answered.

8Y MR. CHERRY:

Q Mr. Heins, would it be your recclliection, based on
your earlier testimony, that this contract with Commonwealth
Edison would have the same kind of clause in it like you said
they all do, to the best ¢f Consumers Power's ability? Does
it have a clause likza that?

MR. RCSSO: Again, Mr. Chairman, I object on the
basis that we are gatting into having this witness interpret
that contract.

CHAIRMAN CCUPAL: He can answer if he knows.

THE WITNESE: I don't know.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q You don'% Xnow.

Is it possible, then, Mr. Heins, that you, that
is. Consumers, might not have to sell 318 megawatts to Comnmon-
wealth Edison if you needed it on your own system?

MR. ROSS0: Objsction again. That calls for an
intarepretation of the contract.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Overruled.
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‘rbls THE WITNESS: I don't know tha details <f that
ccatrace.
BY MR, CEERRY:
~ Q Well, have vou analyzed 4hat in connecticn with
your calculation of reserva to know whethar the 318 megawatt
sale to Commonwealth Edison is capable of being used on
Consumers' system, 1f it i3 nzcessary <o 40 so?
A I have includéad the 218 nmegawatts amount sala to
Commonwealth Ediscn in ny calculation ¢f reserves ~an the
basis that I have been tocld tLis is a ccocatractual <bligation
of Consumers Power Company.
furtharmorw, if Commonwealth Zdison iz depend -ag
‘ , upen that for their elzsctric supply, I can fully understand
chat if it is not available, their customers might suffer.
Q And have you analyzed -- .
A Consequently, I would include that as a prudent
measure ia my planning for the future.

- MR. CHECRRY: I move to strike the answer as not
responsive to my question. The questicn was whether or not
ne had made inquiry as to whether or not they dida't have
te sell to Comonwealth Edisca if they needed it on their

own system.

&

CHATRMAN CCOUFAL: Overrulad.

, BY MR. CHERRY:
Q Now I will ask the cuesction again:
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pDid you makes an inquiry as o whether or nct th;
318 megawatt cale o Commonwealth Edizon had to be made ., aven
if Consumers needed that amount for their cown system.
MR. ROSSC: Cbiject.cn. The question has been asked ‘
and answered.
CHAIRMAN COUPAX: Ovarrxuled.
THE WITNESS: = dec not know the contents of that
contract.
MR, CHERRY: M. Rosso, would you producs that
contract.
{Pause.)
While you arz ccnsidering that, I will ask Mr.
Heins another gquestion.
BY MR. CHERRY:
2 The 60 megawatts cf Campbell 3 --
MR. RCSSO: Excuse me, Mr., Cherry. I can't -~
BY MR. CEERRY
Q YOu said thers was a 60-megawatt sale cof Campbell

2, frcm Campbell 3.

A A propesed sale from Campbell 3.
Q To whcm?
A As I recall at the moment, I believe that amount

was -- has been discussed with the municipals. There was
some discussion regarding sale from Campbell with the coop-

eratives, We dlscussed the sale of Campbell 3, the Karn unit,
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of an intarest in these and %the Midland plant.
The sixz -- I can't rscall at the mcment.
Q Now vou includad the 60 megawatts into your cal-

culations as sale in the early 30s. Is that correct?

A Yes.

Q But you can't tell me to whou that sale is going
to ke made?

A It is my recollsction that it is to the municipals.

o Has ~he sale bean mada and subject to a contract

being eantered intc?
A do.
Q Ch, it hasa't been.
So you are nct cbligated to make that sale at this
point by any understanding?
A We have not come to any agreement regarding that
with the municipals.
Q They may not buy it.
A They may not.
MR. CEERRY: Can we take a short break, Mr.
Chairman? We have been going two hours,
CHAIRMAN COUPAL: You are right.
Who has got a suggestion about what kind of a lunch
hour you neec Or want to take?
MR. CHERRY: A half hour is gocd enough for me.

3

CEAIRMAN COUFAL: I am not suggesting we are going
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.barbl9 o tak=2 it now, but let's taka 19 minutes.
MR. REUPRIYW: Eeforas we broak, 2 minor item that
Mr. Cherry wants. He asked for the heat rates yesterday
—y rom Midland. I am going to pusa those count to the parties.
I have called and gotten them and had then typed and will
pass chem out during the break.
CHAIRMAN COUFAL: What are thsv?
< . MR. RENFRCW: Izat rates for zhe Midland unit.
(Counsel distributing documents.)

CHAIPMAN COUIAL: Let's break for 10 minutés.

{Recess.)

End #4

‘ fols.

7
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‘ mml CHAIRMAN @UFAL: Back on the record.
MELLTER Mr. Charry?
;) MR. CHERRY: Would vcu please mark these three

letters as Exhibits 14, 15 and 1s.

I have just azked the repcrter to mark Midland
INtarvenor'’s Sxhibit 14, ; leitsr from John Xeene O
Mr. Stafford, Consumer's Power Company, dated October 26,
187S8.
(Wharsupon, = ;sitar Jram Jols
Reene to Mr. Stafford, Consumers
Powxr Co., 10/26/76 was marked
Midland Intervencr's Exhibit 14
. : for identification.)

MR.CHERRY: As BExhibit 13, Hr. Brush of the Lansiag
Board of Water and Light, tc Mr. Xaiser of Consumsrs Power

Company dated October 14, 1976.

(Whersupcn, the letter £rom Mr. Bruash,
Lansing Bd. of Water & Light, %o
Mr. Kaiser, Consumers Powr Co.,
10/14/75, was marked Midland
Incervanor's Exhibit 15 for
identification.)

MR. CHERRY: And 28 Exhibit 16, a letter from

. Mr. Whitney of the Board of Public Works in Holland, Michigan,

to Mr. Kaiser of Consumers Pcwer Company.
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wcn2
. {Whaveupon, a2 latzer from Mr. Whitaey,
Board of Public Works, Holland,
N\ : . Michigan, to Mr. Kaiser of Consumers
W Pcwer, was marked Midland Intervenor's
Exhipit 1§ for identification.)

MR. CEERRY: I have distcributsd copies of these
latters tc the cther parties. I have two sets for the Board,
and I will get ancther onse.

{BEanding to the Beard.)

No. 14 is October 26, 1378 on Wolverine Blectric
staticnary; 15 is e the BDoard of Water and Licht stationary
of Lansing, and 16 is on the Board of Public Works end Power.

‘ CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Thank you.
BY MR. CHERRY:
Q Mr. Heins, I show you Exhibit 14, and ask if
you have ever se=n Exhibit 14 before, Midland Intervenor's
Exhibit 14,
(Banding ‘dccument to witness)
A Yes, I have seen it.
Q Does that letter correctly characterize the
status of negctiations between Consumers Power and Wolverine
(; Eleciric Company as of the date of the letter and today,
Mr.Heins?
. A Yes, in my view it does characterize today's
situation.

S s S e e e e e e e e e
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Q How about EBxhibit 15. LZam veou ever seen Exhibit 157
{Handing document to witness.)

A Yes, I have scen this refora.

Q And does Exhikbit 15 characterize ke present
situation with respect to the 3Zcard of Hater and Light
prospective situation as that letter sets forth?

A Yes.

Q Have you ever seen Exhibit 156 bafore?

{Banding documeat to witness.)
A Yes,
Q And if I ask you the sams guestions as I have on

Exhibit 15 with resrect to Exhibit 15, your answer would be --

A Yes.

Q -= the same?

A Zes.

Q Are thase thae lettars yuu &e referring to in

your testimony when you said there were certain letters --
in your oral testimony you zaid there were certain letters
of intent or understanding with there conparatives.

Are these the letters?

A No.
Q There are others?
A There is a letter between Consumers and the

cooperatives which states something tothe effect that we

will establish -~ we will work on the preraration of a contract
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in hopes of cening to an agraement of the kinds of terms angd

conditions. Thatvwas a separste latter.

Q But the same kind of situation. No'agreement has
been made yet, although they are interested in making one?

A That we have met on a fairly common ground and
thought we could go ahead with all the work in preparing a
contract.

Q But the situation i3 the same as is described in
Midland Intervenor's I iibits 14, 15 and 16 with these
cooperatives; that is, here is no concract, just an expression
of interest.

Is that right?

A We aremuch closer with the cooperatives.

Q Is there a contract?

A No.

Q Now isn't it true thatZzxhibit 14 with Wolwverine

Electric, to yeur understanding, indicates an alternate
source of supply for energy if they cannot arrange a deal
with Consumers and Midland?

P It says they will have to obtain a capacity in
energy as ahove-mentioned, from scme other source,

Q And you have already told me that there are other
Sources of energy available?

A Yes.

Q #nd isn't it also true that the Board of Power and




C

1823

Water and Licht has other sources c4iar than the purchaze of
power from eit@er Midland cor Consumers Pcwer Company, from
some other unit?
(Handing document to witness)
A It says they will be faced with the decision of
wither a rescheduling installation of the €0-megavatt oil-fired
combustion turbine from 1984 to 1981 or purchase oil powver

from Consumers Power Company.

Q So they have an altarmacive?
A Yes.
Q And they have an alternative that isn't even

stated in there. They can purchase power from someone other

' than Consumers if they didn't put in that 60-megawatt oil-

fired combusticon turbine, correct?

A They would have that als2rnative, and it isn't
menticned.

Q But you know that they have it?

A Ch, ves.

Q And Exhibit 16 alsc indicates that if nc contract

can be done with Midland, the City of Holland has an alternative?
A It says they would attempt to purchase the power

needed to meet their aystem demand.

Q And you just told us that they could do that
elsewhere?

A It says the first place they would look would be
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to Consumsrzs Power Company. Then they would look elsewhere.

Q But voutold us that they can lcok alsewhere?
A Surely.
Q Now weren't these letters written because someone

in Consumers Power Company said they would likes some letters
written just to help us out in case there is some Beoard
foolish enougii to believe that these are supported?

A No.

Q They weren't?

MR. RENFROW: Mr, Chairman, I have a document =-
perhaps we can cut this short - I only have one copy of ig.
It is the Consumers Power Cempany Participation in Ownership
304 Operation of Campbell 3 and Midland 1 and 2 by Northern
Michigan and Wolverine. . '

To the best of my knowledqge,none of the other
parties has got this decument. I would be glad to offer
it, Mr, Cherry. I think perhaps we can cut th rough some
of this and I will make copies of you want it.

. MR.CHERRY: Is that an exacuted document?

MR. RENFROW: Nc, it is not. We don't have any
axecuted copies.

MR. CHERRY: I'm not interested.

Has it been executed?

MR. RENFROW: There is no contract executed.

I will let you look at this.
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MR, CHERRY: As far as I am concerned, I will take
it gladly, but I won't ask questions on it if it is not in
affect.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q Now, Mr. Heins, the 272 megawatts that we have been
talking abcut, that is assumed in 2ll of your exhibits, is
it not? Not just Exhibit 11 and 12?

In other words, the inputs on the 272 carries
through all of the exhibit3? Production costs, evservthing?

MR. ROSSO: 1I'm sorry. May I have the question
read back? s
MR. CHERRY: I think the answer is yes, is that
what you said?

MR, ROSS0: I would like to keep track.

(Whereupon, the reporter read from the

record as requested.)

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q Will you answer that, Mr. Heins?

A The 272 megawatt sale from Midland was utilized
in the appropriate places in these exhibits.

Q In all of them?

A IN all of them. In some lccations, as we discussed
a while ago, such as the Midland, not every casge, we didn't
have to use all of that sale in the calculations.

Q But you used some of them?
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A We used some portion of it which we felt couldn't
be replaced by the other entities in the time paricd available
to them.

Q But you also admittzd that they could buy it from
Datroit Edison surplus Dased on Exhibit 13, right?

A The cooperatives may buy all of their requiremants
from a firm either gufficient, in their purchase a firm may
take care of it through this period.

Q Sc that when you assuned:hat the 74 megawatis was
necessary o haadle these peaks, and you didn't have other
alternatives, you now admitted that that was an incorrect
assumption?

MR. ROSSO: Cbjection.

That is not what the witness testified., It is a
mischaracterization of the testimony.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: He can answer the question.

THE WITNESS: I disagree with vour statemenct.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q To whom was the 74 megawatts to be sold?

MR. RCSSO: May the witness finish his answer, sir?
MR. CHERRY: He said he disagresd.

My next guestion =-

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Just a minute, Mr. Cherry.

You may tell us what youwere going to say.

THE WITNESS: I feel that my assumpticns were




C

1827

cocd, that they represented realistic cossibilitiss for the
future and planning for th: s2lactric cystem ra2guires their
consideration.

BY MR. CHERDY:

Q se you dona?

A Yes.

Q Are you sure?

A With that ansver.

Q To whem was the 74 megawatts pcstulated to be

sold, if Midland cancelled?

A The 74 mecawatts, I helieve, was postulated o
be scld to the municipals.

Q Okay.

Isn't thers an alternative to the municipzls buying
the 74 m=gawatts from you?

A There are reveral possible a2lternatives.

The feasibility of each iz different.

Q We just went thrcugh Exhibits 14, 15 and 16, and
you told me that they all had altarnatives, either to build or
to purchase, correct?

A Yes.

Q Mow did you assume in the Midland cancelled case,
that he 74 megawatts had to be solé to the municipalities
because there were no other alternatives?

A It was our assumption that the 74 megawatts was
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wmlO

sold tc them tc cever their nesds.
Q And 2¢c otler altarnative zcurce availablas tc them =--

did you make that --

A I did aot make that assumpticn.
Q You 4id aot. I see.
A I made the assunpcion tha% within the time available

to them, this might be their most prudesnt alterrative.

Q Migkt?

A Yes.

Q Might not be?

A Yes.

Q Now the 60 megawatts in Campbell, did that carry

through all of ycur Exhibits as well, where applicable?
i Yas.
Q And the Palisades assumptions vou made is carried

through to 21l of your exhibits, cost praduction runs, et

cetera?

A As applicable.

Q As aprlicable.

A Taking Palisades ocut cf service for reconditioning,
yes.

In the Midland not added case, it wasn't taken

out.

Q Why wouldi't you use some sarlier date than 1980

to take Palisades out of service and fix it up?
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A The date that we ara procosiag to use was '8.L and
'82, and represents the year in which the first unit at
Midland to be operating, becomes available and con the system.
The vears '8l, '82 when Midland is schedulsd to come on line,
provides us with the best situaticn from an operating reserve
standroint, to permit taking Palisades out of service fer
reconditioning.

Q Could vou take Palisades cut of service and
fix it up if it needs it befors 19807

A If we have a choica ia the matter, it would be
far more difficult to compansate for it prior to 12380,
assuming the Midland unit beccmes available in 1981.

The removal of Palisades for reconditioning is
tied to the time in which Midland becomes availakt'e and
commarcially in operation.

Q could 3o fix ia1eed Ntovs 1980 it you
wanted to -- I mean Palisades?

Coulé you, if Consumers wanted to, couald they
schedule tne fixing of Palisades pricr to 19807

A If it were necessary, we would attempt toc repair,
recondition the unit and bring it back in service as soon
as possible, if it became inuperational. My assumption --

Q My question was, do you know of any reason which
would prevent Consumers Power from shutting down Palisades

prior to 1981 and having it completely fixed to the axtent
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it is necessary and back on line at full negawatt capacity by
19807
Do you xnow of any reason that makes that impossible?
MR, ROSSO: I object.
I ask that that gquestion be stricken. He can ask
it aga’‘n after the witness has finished answvering the previous
question. The witness was cut off : . midstreanm again.
CHAIPMAN COUFAL: Overruled.

BY MR. CHERRY:

2 Mr.Heins, answer it.
A If it wwe ocur choice.
Q No, I didn't ask you for your choice.

I asked you if you know cf any barrier that would
make it impossible for you, that is Consumers Power Company,
to make al) necessary repairs to Midland within a timeframe
so that by 1980 it would ke cperating at its full megawatt
rating capacity?

A If some of that took place to force the unit down,
we would attempt to repair it, recondition it, get it back
into service as soon as possible. If -~

d QOkay.

Now that was not my question.

My questiocn was, do you know of any “ barrier that
woﬁld makz it impossible for you voluntarily, tomorrow

morning or at some time between now and 1980, to shut down

e e s e e ————



"I’mmd3

1831

Palisades, fix it up to the extent it is necassary, ad have
it on lin2 in its full megawatt capacity rating by 13802

De you know of anything that would make that
impossible if you wanted to dc it voluntarily?

MR, RCSSO: Objection agzin, Mr. Chairman. Again
the witress was cut off in micstream. His last word was "if".

CEAIRMAN COUFAL: OCverruled.

THE WITNESS: As I cannot fcretell the future, I
do not knew of any barriers tbat would absolutely j:sclude
this.

1 do know that it would be an 2xtremaly difficult
oprating zsituation if a2 unit as large as Palisades weres lost
from service for an extended pericd of time.

Whether tha purchased power to replace that and
the other reserves that we have would be adequate to
provide service to our customers, is something I simply
cannot know.

BY MR, CHERRY:

Q Did you make that inquiry, Mr. Heins?

A Yes, we did investigate tha2 reserve situation in
haru and with neighboring svstems.

Q Now you just told me that whether or not you would
have sufficient capacity to meet the needs of your customers
and you tock down Palisades is something you don't know

because you don't foretell the future. 1Isn’t that what you
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told me?
A Scmething of that nature.
Q Well, if you don't know, my next question was, did

you make an inquiry as %o whether or not it weuld be nossible
to gather information upen which you could nmake a djudgment
that you wonuld know?

A Yes.

.. 93 And 1fter having mede that inquiry you concluded
that you couldrn : make any jucgment?

A e concluded tiat the rasarve sitvation in the
years pricr to tha availability of the firat cn-lin2 Midland
unit was such that it would be axtramely difficult for us to
Plan to take Palisades dcwn for reconditioning.

Q But not impossikler

A Not impessible,




O

1833

Q Have you ever ask2d anybedy with whocm you are
interczonnected to sell you pcwer becycen '73 and ‘30 in
order to shut down Palisades during tnose two years?

A we did not reguest such iaformation and say it
was for the purpose of shutcing down Midland -- Paligades.

We have inguirad amongst our neighbors as to
their reserve situations for tiis pericd.

") But you haven't gone to utilities and said, "Lcok,
wa have a problem. We're losing megawatt rating each ysar at
Palisades, and we'd like to shut it down and £ix it up. Will
you help us out?"™ You saven't made that inquiry?

A We kave not made that inguiry, nor do we yet have

Palisades losiag capaciliy each ycar.
7

Q You told me it's baing derated 5 parcent per year
in your assumpticn.

A ¥o, I said that was my assumption for the sake
of planning, which is reflectid in this testimony.

Q You mean to say that your assumption is not based
on ary historical fact abcut losing 5 parcent power each
year?

A My assumption is based cn the fact that tubes
have been plugged in the past. To this time the tube plugging
has not cut into the rating of the Palisades unit,

Q why did you select the 5 percent derating each

year?
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A further tube pluggiag would result in some
derating of the uait.

9 Way did you select 5 perceat?

A The auxber of tubas that have bean plugced in

the oast seemed to indicatc a percentags reduction somewhere

in thie arza for the future if tha tube pluguing is necessary.

Q So that your assumption is based upon if the

tube plugging is necessary, which you don’'t know for sure,

correcct?
A That is rigat.
e It may result in a meguwatt ra2ducticn of a oumber

you're not certain of but you think it's 5 megawatta?

a Five cercent.

Q Five percent. But-yau're not certain?

A That's correct. j

Q And thera has been no reduction nistorically

for these genarator tube problams upcn which you cculd base
that assumption?

A Cn our Palisades unit, the historic plugging has
not resulted in any deratirg of the unit.

Q Incredible.

' I show you Exhibit 12 ~-- I'm really glad you
came, Mr. leins. I now show you Exhibit 12 and ask if you
can identify it.

MR, ROSSO: Mr., Chairman, thare ware a couple of

offhand remarks made there., I don't know, are those going
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on the transcript?

MR. CHERRY: I'm glad lMr. Heins came, and I'll
stats my rsasons,

One of the things we were very concerned about in
this care was the gquestion of need for pcwer. We locked
through very car=2fully all cf our background information,
and, quite fraakly, ve coatinued to be flabbercasted, beacause
in our judgmant we did not beliave that the case would be
put on so poorly. We're delighted !Mr. Heins is here to
support wihat we beliave is a very poor case. That's why I
said I wvas delighted that Mr. Hains was herz.

I want to give you the fullest explanation of my
chments &8 I can, Mr. Rosso.

MR. ROSSO: Can we move that all of that be
stricken from the record, sir.

MR. CHERRY: I would oppose that. He asked a
question, Ii‘c serfactly proper., 4nd I answered it.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Th2 only gquesticn he asked was
whether the offband remarks wers going in the record.

MR. ROSSO: And I asked it of the Chairman.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: And we will strike ycur response.

MR. CHERRY: Okay. Would the Reporter save it
for my closing argument, though?

BY MR, CHERRY:

Q Can you identify Exhibit 12, Mr. Heins?
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MR, HCEFLING: Mr. Chairman, I think we have
a preoblam with copies again.

MR. CHERRY: I was just given this this morning.
¥cu'll have to be patieant. I don‘t carry a lerox macaine
in my sockat,

These are work parars of Mr. Hains that Mr, Heins
thought I had. Had Mr. Rossc providzd copiss, we would have
had tham. I don‘t have them aow. I just wan: the withess
to idantify ic, and I will provide csopies for 2verybedy later.

MR, RCSS0: W2 had no id2a ycu were going to
intrcluce ascme axhibits, and conscequeatly we didn't have
any rcasoa to make copias of them.

MR. CHERRY: I'm sorry, Mr. ROSSQ =--

CHAIRMAN COUPAL: lNever mind, gentlamen. Let's
get alcng with it.

THE WITNESS: This sheet marked Midland Intervenor's
Group Exhibit 12 ==

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q The exhibit incluces all the sre2ts, Mr. Heins,
A Ch. The first she«t that I'm locking at -- there
ar2 five, marked Midland Intervenor’s Exhibit 12 -- is a
paper done by me this morning and caiculates the main system
efficiency factor for the years 1974 and 1975.
The main system efficiency factocr for 1974

calculates to 91.5 percent. The main system efficiency factor
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for 1575 calculates tc 91.2 ze2rcent.

(" And for what purpcse did 7ou xTake tha: calculation?
‘e At your racuesc,
iy Was that part of what was on Zxhibixz 10 that I

askel you to fill in the numbers cn?
L - N0, that was noct part of that exhibit. I have
the recsllection that you, or scuesne --

MFP.. HOEFLING: Excuse me. ;na Stcaff asked vcu
for tha efficizncy data for '74 and ‘73 and aleo the
efficiency data used in veur fovacast. =

MR. CHERRY: 8So that is respcneive to the Staff's
qussiicn:‘

THE WITMESS: I guess that's right.

MR, CHERRY: I can undsrstand. You know, it's

besn 12 hecurs since the gquestion,

BY MR, CHERRY:

a Mr. Heins, what about tha second page of your
Exhibit 12? Was that scmething prepared for ms?

A The second page ia the stack was preparasd in an
attempt €0 be responsive to your recuest of vesterday.

Q@ Can you explain tc me wha® you understccd was
my request in conpection with the s2cond page of Group
Exhibit 12 and what you digd?

A The sscond paga --

¢ Mr., deins, I don't want to confuse you. I will
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‘lc 5 Pui nunkers on those and say 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and then you
won't have anv problem.

~ This i8 ruw o 1 (marking). That msans puge

e number.

This is number 2 [(marking). That means page 2.
Thic is nunber 3 ‘marking). Tha% means pags 3.
This is aumber 4 ‘markincl, That means pzge 4.
This is numier 5 (marking). 2nd that means page
S ©of Exhibit 12, ckay?
I I want to go thircough each of the pages s0 you
| won't have any difficulty. That's why I've nunbared them,
_i; What is contained on paga 2 of Exhibit 127
' i ' A Paga 2 is a calculaticnel sheet prepared by me,
which is parallel to my Exitibic ;;; and the heading on it
says "Effect of Midland Delav on Reserves (Summer).® It
. i assumes Palisades in sarvice at 636 megawatts with ne

Midland sales to “muni‘s" or co-ops.

. Q What was the assunption as to Palisades on page
3 2 cof Exhibit 127 '
A Palisades in service at 686 megawatts.
Q And 63¢ megawatta represents what? The current
,-3 _: ¢ fatiaq of Palisades?
5 A Yes.

‘l” ' [+} Okay.

A And tae assumption of no Midland sales to "muni's”
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oL CC-OrS.

a And bow much -- what magawatts did you take out
for tha "muni's® and the <o-opa?

& For the year 1981, in tha column haadad "As
Schedul:d,” I reducad taat purchase antry from 472 to 338,
wiaich I wmaka to be 114 megawatte,

v} In other words, in that 472 all that was included

ags a 3ala to tke cocperatives Or municipalitise was 114 mega-

watts?

A Yes, that's zight, in that entry for 981.

Qe And there wars difforent zoducticns at different
points?

A Yas. In that year, 18281, Onit 2 comes on line,

A portion of chat is gold and taken by these other entitias.

In 1932, whes the second unil cones on line,
there is an additicnal -~ some amount of this that these
entities take,

a _ Go an=ad,

A In this sheet, which assumes Palisades in sarvice
and no sale of Midland to "muni's" and co-ops so that this
changing factor you menticned is not included, I have listed,
just as on my Exhibit 11, the capacity of the purchase, net
capacity resulting, load reserve and percsnt reserve year
by yeax for 1981 throuch 1984 under the sams headings as

listed cn Bxkibit 11, tre *Ar Scheduiad® column, column
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"Delay Midland to 12-81 and 82 or 6-32 and 83," and the

column headed “Midland Not Added.”

Q How abcut page 3 of Bxhibit 52
A Page 3 iz headed — .
Qe Zxcuse ma. By the way, under the assumptions that

are containaed on page 2 of Exhibit 12, you were to have
sufficient resarve in the evert Midland was delayed based
upen your statamen. that you wanted that 290 percent raserve,
would vou not?

A Yes.

Q okay.

Page 3 of Exhnibit 5.

A Page 3 of Exhibit 5 is headed "C. P. Ccmpany,
Bffect of Midland Delay on Reserves (No Midland Sales to
Co-ops or Muni's) ," and again it represents the years 1981,
‘82, '83, '84, and arranged ia three coiums -- one headed
"As Scheduled,” cne headed "Dzlay Midland to 12-81 and 382
or §-82 and 33," and ths last headed "Midland uot Added."
In the heading was the word “"Summer.®

Q This is oo Midland sale to co-ops and "muni's,”

but including the Palisades reduction factor, is that

correct?
A Yes,
0 And I take it Exhibit 4, or page 4 of Exhibit

12, is the converse, that is, you have recomputed Exhibit
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‘11:9 11 by leavine in the municipal and co=-o7 salag, but assuming
no further reduction in Palisedes, is that correce?
~ A Yes. Talisades i3 ia service thrcughout 6-86.
. In 1981, 'As Scheduled, w¥idlard in Se=vise,” this
shcws under this asnumptiorn 35 peErceant resarve,
3 2 What if Midiand iz delayed a year? What doszs
f page 4 show oa Exhibit 127
t 8 Tae twe delays nore 2nd uwp with the same results.
? This shows if Midlend is dalzved up to cne year om in
;f gervice dace, the reserves are 21.1 sercent ia 1381,
f Q Is that pratty gocd?
I a It meets cur reserve criteria.
‘ . % Is it presty good, 21.22
. [ A Yes, adequate,
‘ Q Well, it's mors than adzaquata, isn’t it? Twenty
i3 what you'zre satisfied with.
? A Sweuty-is our acminal target, right, and this
? oxceeds tnaﬁ.
é_ a Noninal ‘target. {2 other words, you would like
| to have even more than 20, Mr. Heins?
" ? A We have calculated 20 parcent “o be adequate for
5 b o planning purposes. The reliarility of the electric system
i ' wild incraase as tho reserves go above 20.
’ it 2 IZ you ~wre ia ciharge of the whole thing -~ picture

that, #4r, Heins -~ You weze making all of the decisions alone.

p— S —— 3 . - G G~ ———- - - ————————— R ——
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If you could spand all of the money ycu wanted, whak reserve

would you taka?

A I would go for 20 percent. That would be av
target.

Q You woulda't want it aay higher?

A Under the prgsent «<cnditions as I know thewm, I

believe 20 percent to be adequate. 2ad, as I said yesterday,

when we add the unit resservas will co abcva 20 percent for a

time.
Q Do you think 139 peicent would he adequate?
A Our planning targeu: is 20 percent.
2 I didn't ask you that. I asked you if you thought

19 percent would bz adsquate.

A No, I don't thinik it would be adequats.

Q dow about 17 percent?

A No, I don'« think it would be adequata.

Q Is there any error band in vour 20 percent, or

does it have to be exactly 2)?

A The 20 percant is « planning taryecz. ile will
allow the figure to fall below 20 percent in the year before
we add a unit if it's not very far below 20 percent.

Q How far below would vou let it fall?

A 18 or 19 percent would be reasonacle to take for
one year. Then the next year, when we add the unit, the

reserves would go up tc some level in excess of 20 percent.
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recisely the amount ¢f generating

"y

.1‘; 11 It's impessizle %o add juss
capacicy that you need at exactly the precise time you need
- it.

Q You said on pagye 9 of your testimony that the
raserves should be approxirataly 20 percent of the projected
load. Do yecu want £o change that to mean the reserves should
be exactly 20 percent oi the >reciested load?

MR, ROSSO: Liectlior, Argumentative.
CHATRMAN COUFAL: Overzuled.
THE WITHNDNSS: No, I don't want %o alier that. I

think approximately 20 pexcent i3 the correct figure tc use.

‘I 2

that approximace figure?

BY MR. CHERRY:

What's the give or take, then, on sithaer side of

MR. RCS3C: Objecticn. He's been asked that and
has answered it several times,

CHAIRMAN COUTAL: Overruled.

THE WITNESS: It would depend on conditions. The
possible availability of purchased capacity and anerqy,
anticipated availahility to purchase capicity and egéfgy in
the year in which we would fall below 20 percert, would depecd
upon what we think is going to happen t> unit availability
based on any plan that might exist concerning changes in

maintenance.

@ O
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BY MR, THIRRY:
) Bu: I'm tallking about for your testimeay. Did

youa have a low figurs below 10 and a figure higher than 20
and then selact 2n 2pproximat: 20?

MR. ROSS0O: Cbigetion. 7he question has been
asiked and answered, sir.

CHAIRMAN CCUFAL: Overrnled,

THE WITNESZ: I did not hava in miand a band within
wiilch would be acceptable. Tiis 20 percent dspends upon con-
ditions anticipatad at the time that we're expecting.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q It aight be morz tian yocu nzed?

A It could be, It could be less.

Q Do you believe it will be less than you need?
A Monday of this weei the Midland Coordinated

Electric Systems had a raserve of 37 percent and had to ¢o
intc veoltage reduction in ordar to maintain service to cus-
tomers.

Q They've got nonkeys running it. I just want to
know, do you believe the basis of your testimoay that
20 percent isn't enough?

MR. 08S0: love to strike the gratuitous comment

precading the guestioca.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Overruled.
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BY MR, CHERRY:

Q iMr. Heins?

A It is ny belief that 20 paercent reprasents a
target planning figure thac iz suitable tc provide the type
of reserves -- the type of reliability that we would like to
provide our custcmers.

Under the conditions existing on ocur system and
in the Michigan Cocrdinated Electric Systams, 20 percant
permits ue o reach the one day in ten vears loss of locad
probability.

Q The rezason why the ECAR group suffered this problem
with 35 percent resarve, was that an outage? Unscheduled
outage?

A The Michigan Coordinated Elzctric System had a
reserve of 37 percent for this wintzr seascn. The problems
that we got into were a function of weather and scme majer
pil=ups of unit ocutages.

Q Maybe that's your cne day in tan years.

A That's right. 1It's that scrt of thing that it's
intendad to allow.

Q So you're ckay for the next ten years?

MR. ROSS0: Objection. Argumentative.

CHAXRMAN CCUFAL: CSustained.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q What is your system reserve ia 1980? Did you
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project it?
MR. ROSSC: 1I'm sorry. Wwhat are vou referring
to now, Mr. Cherry?
MR. CHERRY: Ask the witness., I asked the witness
what his reserve is in 1930 based on his projecticn.
MR, ROS80: Based on the projection in his tasti-
mony?
MR. Z3ERRY: Or any other information he has. I
don’'t think he's proiacted 1900,
THE WITHESS: I den't recall.
BY MR, CHERRY:
Qe Is it over or under 207
EY 1980 is the year that Campball 3 is anticipated
to come on line and tn become commercially available. I
think it's over Z0 peorcent in that year.
o What is 't in '79?
A '79 iz the year before Campbell 3 i3 available,
and I believe in the summer of '79 the anticipated reserves

are 16 1/2 percent at this time.

Q Are vou out buying power to increase that to 20
percent?
A We have made inquiries amongst cur intarconnected

neighbors as te what the availability of purchased capacity
and energy would be in that '78, '79, '80 period.

Q I said have you gone out to buy power for the
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s2ason whan you only have 1lé 1/2 percsant reserves?

A We have had discussions on this. We have gone out
to try ¢o find ic and make some arrangements to purchase,
and they have not borne fruit vet.

Q Peonle tocld you chere's nc power available?

. No, they said, the ones that we talked to -~
Ontario Hydro especially -~ said that in the '80s their
situation --

Q '79 is what we'ra talking about, Mr. H eins., Got
ie, '797

MR. ROSSO: [Cxcuse me.

Mr. Chairman, I think I just have tc say this now.
When a witness comes before this Bcard to give testimony, I
think he's entitled to a degree of respect from everybedy
who's participating in the hearing. I think the Board owes
it to the witness to see to it that the witness is accorded
that respect.

We have had comments frcm Intervenoy's counsel to
the affect that the witness is a smart-aleck; he’s arcued
with the witness; he's tried o push the witness around. And
I ask the Chairman, please, to try tc have the Intervenor's
counsel maintain a degree and reflect a degree of respect
for the witness and a degree of decorum.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Ask your question, Mr. Cherry.

MR. CHERRY: Yes.
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M»., Rosso, if vou had thought that happenad
through the period, I tihiought you would have cbjected, and
then the Board Chairman could have ruled. I didn't hear you
object.

3% MR. CHEPRY:

Qo I was d2aling with '79, not '80. The reascn I
interrvpted ycu is you went o my guestion, ané we dgn’t
lave a lot of time.

A 1979 was the cubje:t of dizcussion with Oatario
Hydro., It was Cntaric Hydro's position thzt thay did have
capacity to sell ia '72, '79, and I relieve '80, and that

ve woulé have fur:ther discuss:.ons on it.

Q Did yeou buy it?
o~ We havan't yst.
Q Do you oparate ca the assumption that whenever

your resarve falls below 20 porcent you autcmatically go out

énd buy the difference batwese:n your reserve leval?

A No, we do not.
Q Why not?
A It scmetimes isn't necesscary. There is uSually

availadble emergency capacity -.nd energy frem the inter-
connected electric gystems.

Q How much did Catar:o tell you was available between
'78 and '80, roughly?

A The number is not »weally clear in my mind, but
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scmewhers betwsen 500 angd 2.0C0 nacawaiie was, as I remember,

available during this periecd. I ¢changec yvear to year.

Q And that wac for aktcut a 2~ to 3-vear pericd?
A My memory iz that it waz '78, '79, and ‘80.
2 Suess waat? Tou could taka dewn Palisaden ~uring

that period, buy frem Ontario, and get it all fixed gp;
couldn't you?

MR. ROSGC: Objection. Arguwrencativa.

CHAIRMAN COUTAL: Strike tae "guess what."

THE WITNESS: 1If we made that arrangament in ordar
tc take Palisades down, it would snd up costing our customers
mora for their electric energi due to the fact that Palisades
is a very econcmic generating unit.

Q It's 2 what?
N A very econcmic generating unie.

And that purchased capacity and energy ganerally
comes from higher cost units oun other systens., If we can
delay the reconditioning of Palisacas tc the period '3l and
'82, as I have described and said in my testimony, we make
the price of electricity as reasonabls and as minimum as we
can to the customers.

Q Have vou told the Public Service Commission that
you're going to reduce the ratas for '78, '79, and '80 if
you don't buy this power from Ontaric Hydro?

A Neo.
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Q So is it not only possible for you that there is
no barrier to your shutting down Palisades; you actually
have up to 1,000 megawatts that you could buy sc ycu could
£ix Palisades before 1930, right?

MR. ROSSC: Objection. Argumentatcive.

CHAIPMAN COUFAL: Well, thern are several questions.
Break it up, Mr. Cherrvy.

MR. CHERRY: All right.

BY MR. CHEPRY:

0 Barlisr =-- this is net a guesticn; it's a state~
nent -- you told ma that ther» was no imgosaibility or barrier
to your shutting down Palisadas, fixzing it up, and having it
on line in 1980. Now we leara frem vour testimony that you
could actually 3o out and by up to 1,000 megawatts of power
20 subgtitute for Palisades iZ indeed you needed a szubstitu-
:icn for you, is that aorrect?

A Ontario Hydro ©old us that this was available
and that we could have discussions cozcerninc the purchase
of it. I presume it's still available.

Whether it's the azount %o cover the entire outage
at Palisades and which years it's znvailable, I can't recall.

MR. CHERRY: 1I'd just like to tell Mr. Hoefling
that, to the extent there is : =afoty problem in connection
with Palisades, we now know it doesn't present a need for

power problem, ckay?
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a You told me, Mrx. Heins, that onz of the rszsona
you would like to run Palisadee and not buy from Catario
power during this paricd is because Palisadas i3 a very
economic generating statién?

A The cost per kilawatt-hcocu, £rom Palisades is lower
than our coal-fired units and cur oil-fired units and ocur

gas~-fired units.

e At'whnt‘meqawatt rating?
A At whatever it's runniag at.
43 Do you mean to asav if Palisades wers cparating at

300 megawatts the cost for efficiency et Palisades would
still be cheaper thap any of your other unitg?

A I don't know.

3 You don't Xknow.

So if you would derate Palisades S parcent each
year through 1980, it amight turn out the generating for
Palisades at that level was mcre expansive than buying from
Ontario Hydro; is that poasible?

A I don't thiﬁk it's possible, considering the
range that rests between thase numbers.
Q One last question about Palisades, Mr. Heins.

If your Palisades experience has been that it's

very economical, doesn't it meke sense to get it fixed as

quickly as possible sc it is operating at its fullest capacity”
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A Not recassacily.
o Havae vou dene tha: calculation?
RS Yes, we did, an econcnic zzlculatilon as to when

the least cost ‘ime would occur for the recondliticning of
Puligadss.

e Basac¢ upon sclely the gerarating capacity of
Midland ~= of Palisadesa?

What were the inpuus <0 your anda.vsis?

A We considered taikiny Paliscdes out of service for
about a 2-year period over ssevaral years and leoocked at the
cost of prcduct:.on for the rest of Lhe syscem and the an-
ticipated cost of purchasing interchange power for those
years whan we nseded to buy it.

The results indicated thet the period 1981-82 was
the cvime at which we incurred the leaszt ccst for removal of
the unit from sarvice.

This was to be exp<ctsi, since it is at that time,
1981, when the first¢ Midland unit comes on line and provides
the nuclear acenarat=d power {cr our systam and our reserves
are at the point which would peruit taking Palisades out of
service withouvt incurring a c¢reat risk ragarding system
reliability.

Q Now, what if the *idland plant is delayed? Then
your cost calculation is off, isan't it, as to the bast Zime

o shut down Palisades?



i I don'+ think z0. ~The cost calcalation sets the

least ccst vear, aad that would remain -- I'm scrry. Yes,
you're right. If the Micdland Plant were delayed, the lsast

cost year would probably caange.

2 It might be sarliex?
A Yee, it could he. It could ke later.
e If ws delayed the Midiand Plant in order to have

a hearing to get in all the facts, it zhen night turn ont to

b2 cheaper fcr you te shut dewn Palisades earliier than 19817

~ That would be a possibilicy. I haven't made the
analysis.
Q Therz's a lot of them you haven': made, Mr. Heins.

W¢'re goiag to try to do that, thcuzh, at some point.
We haven't gone through page S of Exthibit 12.

A Page 5 is a series of calcglations carried out and
adde< to zcme numbergs that appeared on an exhibit which vou
had yesterday afternoocn, the number of which I do ot racall.

I calculated from the information on that exhidit

cf yestoxday aftermoon.

Q You're talking about Midland Intervenor's Exiibit
10?

A Yes, 10 is correct.

2 And you calculated what? =

A I calculaced from the information or Midland

Intervenor's Exhibit 10 the maximum load for the years 1576
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thrmuch 1085,
M Ckzy. Aud thoss are correut?
L I :-2liev2 “hem to Le correct.
0 veu have some lines runaing through nuabers. Lo
those repraeert mistakes ir your caiculatioas?
A Mo, that was py rovndinc to cvet the nunbers with

the zerc on the end.
Q A - T

Ncw, Mr. Jaing. we'ra probably going to take a
liztle br2ik far lunszh,. but I want o jusl ask a guestion
1o that I zaa 2nticinate what I want to do a little later on
this afternccn.

Wkat we have baen talkiry abdbout this morninc is
related to 23aessing what “he capaciﬁy figuras are as
cpposed ko dealing with -- ¥z che fnéecasting ol denand,
is that correcst?

;8 Yaz,
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o So that you will agree with me that we have raised
during the examination tais morning in our coaversation with
you, Mr., Heins, scme serious inquiries inic the assumptions
you have made as their walidity?

MR. RC38SC: 1 object. I den’t think that is a
fair charactsrizatiocn at all. He has asked him to rescond to
quactions bagsed on diffarent assumptions. And he is entitled
to make his cwn assumptions andé then argue zhai: those are the
cocrract ones.

That deesn't mean to say that that raisas serious
questions about Mr. Heins' assumpiicns.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: He haan't said that Mr. Heins
has said there are serious irquirics. He has asked Mr. Heins'

if there have been sericuc ones and !ir. Hz2ins can respead to

that.
THE WITNESS: My answer is no.
BY MR. CHERRY:
Qo You don't think that anything that we discussed

this morning casts the slightast doubts on any of the assump-

tions on your generating capacity?

h That's corresct.

Q Not the slighiest? Okay. That's interesting.

A All of those factors were considered by us before
today.

a In other words, you don't think that it is
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rratioral *to consider in vow: generating foracast, sales
that haven't been made yat?

A I do not.

Q And vou don’'t thinc it is irrational to consider
in your generating forecast kieping a plant cn-liane under an
assumption that it is gcing to derzts at 2 particular year,
when yvou have no historical iiformation to base it on?

A I do not.

& And ycou dea't coneider it irrational Lo assume
that thers is gcing to be further <degradation of tube failures
when no one has told vou that?

A I do not.

a And you further doa't think it is irratiocnal, I
take it, to assume that what sver you find at Palisadas .
when ycu shut it down is gecingy to take two yzars to fix?

MR. ROSS0O: I would like that one --
BY MR. CHERRY:

Q I said ycu don't think it is irrational tc assume

that what ever you find in Palisades, if you shut it down, is

geing to take you twe vears toc fix it?

A I do not.
Q What is the basis for the two vears?
A The basis of the two years was the time required

to replace or retube the steam generatcys at the Palisades

plant.



o Uo they all need it? Do thev need to be totally
raplaced?
A At this moment w2 are =-- they don': need replacing.

The assumption I made reyardinc the continuing degradagion
required that we take scme action at some time in the future.
It was my reccmmendation and mv dacision that it should be

done in the period when Midlan< became availab'e.

Q If it has to be dene?

A It gave us th2 best reserre cushion if it has to
ba dcra.

a Zou con't know that it has to be done?

A I do not.

In addition, the unknown aspect; the best way to
handlzs the reccaditioning was noc kncwn. An estimate was
made that up to two years coculd b2 reguired to co this.
The<her it would be sglected tube replacement or total staam
genarator replacement wasn't known -- isn't known.

Q Mr. Idcefling asked vou a qua=-ion yasterday about
whether Consumers Power Campany had made scme other alter-
native about sleeving to the NRC.

And.you ultimately said: Yes; you did recollect
that thére was some discussion about sleeving. Have you
made a fcrmal recommenda‘ion to the safety authorities pur-
suant to vour Palisades interim operating license that it ir

necessary to shut down Palisades at some given point for total
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refitting of tha stz2am gerera:ors?

A I persocnally?

0. Has anyons at Consumers?

A I don't kaow.

¢ Would you believe that that would be a necessary

repercing element under the -- if you know -- under the
terms and conditions of your »>rovisional license for Palisades?
A I don't know.
Q. Then it might affect your getting a permanent
license if there are serious o>rcblems thare?
A I don't know.
2 The last questicn 2efore lunch, Mzr. Heins:

We talked about th: purchase of up to 1000 mega-
watts during the '78-'30 period from Oatario hydro; do you
recall that?

A Yes.

Q There are other utilities where power is available

beyond 1000 megawatts; isn't that corrsct, available to

Consumers?
A Not to my kncwledge. .
e I once asked a guy a quesiion ==

MR. CHERRY: This is a statement in preparaticn.
He said: Not to my knocwledge.
And I said: VYou know, if I put this glass in

front of you, which is empty, and then I covered my eyes
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and I said: Eased upon everything that is in front me, the
only glass in <he world iz empty.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q When you say not to ny hnowledge, what I want to
know is, Mr. Heins, have vou or anybody else called all of the
uctilities with which you are interconnectad to determing whe-
ther there was other power available betwzen '783 and '30?

MR, ROSSO: Mr, Chairman, I don't object to thes
question, but I cbject to the long praamtle to it and move
that it be stricken.

CHATRMAN COUPAL: Sustained.

BY MR. CTHERRY:

Q Mr. Heins?

A We have not contacted all of the interconnecting
companies. We have contacted American Zlectric Powar, talked
with Detroit Ediscn, talked with CAPCO -~ those are our primary
sources -- and we have talked with them about that pericd.

Q AEP said they had scme?

A AEP said that based on their presant forecast and
construction programs, that they did not have excess cap-
aciiy.

Q De you know if thay have any phony sales in
their forecast?

MR. ROSSQ: What was that?
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37 MR. CHERRY:

Do voa know if they have any phoay sales in their

MR. ROSSO: I object to that.
CHAIRMAN COUTPAL: = don't Inow what it geans.

MR. CHERRY: It means a sale that is nct consumated

without: an explanation ¢or a footnote or anything cn an exhibit

with the representation that it represents an ab<o’te sale.

-

That's what I call a cheny sale.

CEAIRMAN COUPAL: Answer th2 guestion based on

Mr. Cherry's definition of his own word.

Q

A

e

THE WITNBSS: Q0f AEP?

BY MR. CHERRY:

Yes.

I have no kncwlcdge of thet.

Do you think that veu think that your =xhibits

were fairly representative of what has come ocut on cross-

examipation?

RN

purposes »

Yes, I de.

MR. CEERRY: Can we braak for lunch?

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: How much time do we need?
MR. CHERRY: What time is it now; 20 of 1:007?
CEAIRMAN COUFAL: 2cughly.

MR. CHERRY: 1:75 is sufficient for me for my
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MR. ROSSO: Well, iir. Chairman -- cdo ycu want
this on the vTescord?

CHAIRMAN CCUFAL: Let's -leave it all hang out.

MR. ROSSO: Well, my only prcblem is I would like
to go back to my officez. I have several other matters =--

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: 'That's all right, Mr. Roseo.
Just tell me what time.

MR. RCSSO: What time is it ncw?

CHAIRMAN COUFAI: It i3 20 of 1:00.

MR. ROSS0: I woull lika 2:00 o'clock.

MR. CEERRY: I would cbject to that.

We can -- we are trying to work out a short day.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: ™How much more do you have on this
witness?

MR. CHEFY: A bit mora. I wculd agree to 1:30.
If Mr, Rosso can't come back, we have got Mr, Renfrow, Mr.
Bacon.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: 3o ycu think it will run all
afteranccen?

MR. CEERRY: I am going to try very much to fin-
ish everything tcday. I am going to get to Mr. Lapinski and
who ever else they have got on luad forecasting.

Just a minute.

(Pause.!

We had asked for people to talk about -~ we wonld
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like to go into lcad forecasting right after lunch. I think
that is Mr. Lapinski?

MR. ROSS0O: Long-term lcad forecasting, item P

MR. CHERRY: You don't do short-term?

Questicns on long-ierm as well as short-term?

MR. BIKEL: To some: extent.

MR. CHERRY: I wani: to get inﬁo item F; is that
you?

MR. BIXZL: Yes.

MR. CEERRY: Okay.

That is what I would like to do.

I am not finished with Mr. Heins but I hope to
wrap evervbcdy up today, but it depends on how long we get
and whether or no: Mr. Bikel -- well.

MR. HCEFLING: Can we get some idea of when we
are going to break today? We are going to have sgcme trouble
with our travel plans. National closes down at a certain
time at night and we would like to get the last flight out

into National which is at 7:25.

DR. LEEDS: Welcome to the club. I am sorry.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Don't plan on that. If we
try to get rid of these witnesses that ara testifying this
afternoon, you would have to =-- we would have to plan on
being done by 5:30 to get you to C'Hare in time to‘q;sch the

7:30 flight and I just don't think that is a reasonable
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prospect.

MB. ROSSO: Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask that
we set a time. I don't --

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: I don't have any objection to
that. What is a time that anvone would suggest?

MR. CHERRY: 8:00.

MR. ROSSD: I am sorry; L cannot stay until 8:00
o'clock. I have a personal problem. My children ara waiting
for me scmewhere and I have co be thare by 6:30.

CHALWAN CCUFAL: Do you have a suggestion for a
stopping time?

MR. ROSSO: 4:00 o'clock. At 6:00 I will already
be late for picking up my children.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Staff?

MR. HOEFLING: We prefer 5:00 o'clecck so we can
catch that plane obviously, but if we are not going to break
at 5:00; 6:00, 7:00, it nakes nc difference, really.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Couldn't Mr. Renirow or Mr.
Bac>n or Ms. Bartleman stay orn with whcever we have?

(Board conferring.)

MR, ROSSO: Mr. Chairman, there is cne other
factor here. When a witness has been on the stand all day,
you know, it is a very trying experience for him and they

get worn cdown.

MR. CHERRY: He is going to be off now for maybe the
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rast of the day. I don't thirk I have totally finished with
him,

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Let's shoot for 6:00 o'cleck.

MR. ROSSO: Thank vou.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Let's oreak for lunch and be
back in an hour.

(Whersupon, at 12:43 p.m., the hearing in tha

above-entitled matter racessad to reconvere at 1:43 p.m.

the same day.)
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.Il 8 AFTERNQOON SESSICN
MEL (ZER 2:1¢ p.m.
/j) CIAIRMAN COUFAL: Lat's resume, please.
Whereupon,

PHILI? L. BICEEL
was called as a witness on behalf of the Licensee; and having
been Iirst duly sworn, was examinzd and testified as follows:

MR, CIIERRY: Defore wu are sgatad, could you get
a copy of Exhibit 11 from vour cocunsed.

MR, ROSSO: Which Exaibit 11 is chat?

MR, CHERRY: Our Exiobit 11, Midland Intervenor's

’ Exhibit 11, which was the load forecast reference, Item F.
~ You might take a copy of Mr. Heins' testimony
with you also.

MR. ROSSO: Excuse me,Mr. Cherry, may I put the
witness on first, introduce him and go through his qualifica-
tions?

MR. CHERRY: Do you have some direct questions to
ask?

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Go ahead, Mr. Rosso.

MR. CHERRY: You are presenting the witness?

MR. ROSSO: You asked for him as a witness, we are

@

going to put him on and we are just going to identify him

' for everyone.
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DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. RCSSO:

Q Would you statz your name for th: record, please?

A "My name is Philip L. Bickel.

Q And whsre do you live, Mr. Bickel?

A My business address is 212 Michigan Avenue, Jackson,
Michigan.

Q And by whom are you employed?

A Consumers Pcwer Company.

Q And what is your position with Consumars Power
Company?

A? My position is supervisory analyst, enerxrgy planning.

Q Could you give us your aeducatiocnal background, sir?

A Yes. I have a bachelor’'s degres in mathematics

from Michigan State University, ad master's degree in business

administration from Wayne State Univarsity.

Q Could you tell us sora of your profaessional
experience.
A I joined Consumers Pcwer in 1968. I worked for

approximately five years in computer services, data processing
area, in the analysis of and implementation of compv.erized
systems.

I then worked for abcut two and a half years in
the econcmic and financial planning department. My planning

responsibility during that time being with the preparation of
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long-term energy sales forecauts for review by the Energy
Forscast .Executive Review Committee.

I was appointed to my present resition in July
of 197s.

My primary duties now are the -- again the
Pr: .aration of long-term gas and electric sales for review
by the Energy Eoracast Committee.

Irn addition to that I am responsible for the
managamant,operation and maintenance'of Consuumers plaaning model.
MR. RCSS0: I have no further questions.

CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. CHERRY:
For the Consumer's Power Ccmpany what?
Planning model.

What does it model?

2 o] R0

. It attempts tomodel essentially the overall
operatiéne of Consumers Power Company.
It consists of an electric system submcdel, a gas

gystem su modal, a market submodel and a financial submodel.

Q Have you relied upon that model in connection with
the Heins'testimony?

A No, sir. Not directly I have not.

Q Did you listen to Mr. Heins' cross-examination
this morning?

A Yes, sir, I did.

e . e, S—— -
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Q Co you agrese the data in the cross-eiamination, none

of the assumptions he nade in ais testimony have been cpen
to doubt?

MR. ROSSO: Excus2 me, now.

Which assumptions are we talking about?

MR, CHERRY: The on2s we discussed this morning.

The witness listened.

MR. ROSSO: The prcblem is, sir, that this gantleman

is put on with regard tec questions regarding the lecng~range
load ‘orecast.

The questioning of Mr. Beins this morning, as I
recall it, was asot on that point at all, but c¢a assumptions
with regard to reserves and canacity.

So I would submit that that question is not a
suitakle cne for this witness.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: I don't think you can cross-
examine this witness on Mr. Heins' testinony unless you can
link up his contribution to it, whatever.

BY MR. CHﬁRRY: ' >

Q What contribution did you have to the testimony
this morning?

A I prepared the material upon which the electric
sales forecast was prepared and introduced into Mr. Heins'
testimony.

Q Including the generating capacity assumption?



Y

s’

1869

& No, sir.

2 You didn't do that?

A No, sir.

Q .De you think it makes cense to make the assumption

in connection with the Palisades plaat, Mr. HZeins d4iqg?

MR. RO3SO: Objecticn.

The witness has just said chat he didn’'t have any

part in that part of the testinony.

MR, CHERRY: The men dezls in sconomic forecasting;

financial forecasting; he deals with the financial mecdel of
the company; he has preparzd some of the exhibits., He is
éompet}nt to anser the questicn.

CHAAIRMAN COUFAL: Ee may be competent.

I think the obiection is goecd.

MR. CHERRY: Why?

He is my witness, I called for him. Thers has
baen no direct testimony. I am entitled to ask hiin anything
I want that is relevant to the casa.

MR. ROSSO: That is simply not tre.

This witness was --

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: I don't think that -- this
witness was called, as I understand it, to provide backup
testimony for Mr. Heins' area on computer programming.

Is that right?

MR, ROSSO: That is correct.
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We specifically said yestsdav when Mr, Eeins was
on the stand and was being asked guestions which went
specifically to the methods, ¢e techniques, what are the
inputs;‘et cetera, which went intc the lcng-range energy
sales forecasts for the coumpeny, thai: it was Mr. Bickel who
did that and providec it to Mz. Heins.

At that point Mr. Cherry said he then wanted to
see Mr. 3ickel.

We said Mr. Bickel is here, we will Le glad to
put him on in order that ha may answer any cuestins which
Mr. Cherry has on that subject area.

CHAIRMAN COUTFAL: If vou want to call him later
as part of your case, chat is another matter, I guess.

MR. CHERRY: Will you be availabla, Mr. Bickel?

THE WITNESS: Yes, I will.

Perhaps I should say scmething in response to --

MR.CHERRY: You mav say it to Mr. Rosso, it is
his objection. Just as lonc as you will be available and
that commitment is ackncwledged.

MR. ROSSO: Excuse me. Wait 2 minute now. Just
as long as he will be availabie for what?

MR, CHERRY: Latar on.

MR. ROSSG: For you to call him as a witness on
generating capacity?

MR. CHERRY: On whataver I want.
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MR, ROSSO: Mr. Chairman, I will not undertake to
make this witness available to Mr., Cherry :to testify on
subjects: which either have nothing to do with che -
cace, or if they have something to do with tha case that
this witness Xncws nothing about, or didn't par:icipatce in.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Mr. Roegso, I don't now what
Mr. Cherry is going to ask him, but Mr. Cherry has the right
to call w itnesses and can ask that witneses be subpoenaed.

MR. ROSSO: Okay.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: And they can be employees, and it
may very well turn out that he doesn’t know what Mr. Cherry
i3 going to want tc know. But he is free to testify.

87 MR. CHERRY:
Q Let me ask the gquestion this way:

Do you have any expertise in the matters that were
the subject of Mr. Heins' cross-examination this morning?

MR, ROSSO: S2e, that is a very broad question.

There may hava been questions asked this morning
which related tothe load forecast. As a matter of fact, I
think there were.

If this witness answers no to that question with
the intent of saying no with regard tcthe generating part of
it, then Mr. Cherry can point tothat later.

The question is vague and I cbject to it on that

basis.
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: BY MR, CHERRY: '

Q Other than load f;:ecasting?

A My area of expertise in Mr. Heins' testimony, in
my opinion, is limited to the load forecasting. And by
load I mesan kilowatt hour 3ales projections.

Q ARe you telling me that the subject matters that
fall within your expertise as you defina them, whether or
not thav are in Mr. Heins’ teatimony, is limited to the sale
of energy in kilowatt hours?

A Perhaps you are misinterpreting what I meant as

far as the management and maintenance of the planning model.

Q wWhy den't you just answer my questiocn?
A I believe I am doing thaz, sir.
Q Well, are you telling me that your expertise, as

you understand it, based om your educational experience, is
limited to projecticn of energy sales in kilowatt hours and
nothing else?
A In relaticn to this hearing, I would say most
assuredly, yes.
Q No, no, you don’'t make the judgment as it relates
to this hearing.
I just want you to tell me if the answer to that
question is yes or no.
If it is no, then list for me the other areas of

your expertise and I will decide whether it relates to the
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MR. ROSSC: Objection.

The questicn has been asked aad answered,and
moreover, the witness has every right te gualify his answer
in the way he dicd.

MR. CEERRY: Mr. Chairman, I don't know what he
means by relate to this hearing.

BY MR. CHERRY:

C Explain that answer, Mr. Beckel?
A All right. |

When I define part of my duty as the management,
maintenance, ot cetera, of the planning mcdel, I am not the
resident expert in the major areas. I am not, for example,
the resident expert in the electric syaem area, nor am I
the resident expert in the gas system area or the financial
model area.

There are maay other people around the company
who are expert.

T handle the data collection assimilation, assurance
of consistency, ad running of the mecdel itself.

I am, however, directly responsible for what we
call the market model which generate -- pardon ma, which
projects future kilcwatt hour sales, long~-range sales
projections.

Q Is Mr. Heins an expert considered by the company
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' in this certain area?
\ A I don't understand the question.
Q You said there were resident experts in the coumpany.

~

Is Mr.Heins considered by you and those of the

company as a resident expaft in any arsa?

A Yes.
Q Which areas?
A I would say -- and again this is my opinion -=- I

would say certainly as far as system planaing.

Q System planning.
A Not necessarily limited to that.
Q No, no. I appreciate that.
' Let me ask you a question based on your expertise:

Do ycu believe that an eipert, when he issues a
- judgment, should rely upon what scomeone tcld him without
making an independent investigation of the facta?

MR. ROSS50: I object to that.

We went all through this yesterday. We explained
that ‘this is an integrated company and that people do rely
on the output from various departments in the company. And
this really isn't getting us anywhere, sir.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Mr. Cherry, limit the question

O

to what this expert would reflect upon as he was making his
. judgment, not his opinion as towhat other experts cught to do

or not.
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3Y¥ MR. CHERRY:
Q Mr. Bickel, is it fair tc sav that Midiand
Intervenor's Exhibit 11, which is tha Item P2 that we refer
to == I will rafer to as Midland Intervenor's 1ll, i3 nothing
more than a multiplicatiocon effort?
In other words, vou take residential use prééictions
which you have arrived at by scma means other than that

computer code, =d then you multiply i: times an assumed rate

growth?

A 7es.

Q So that it is not an anzlytical ccmputar ccde at
all?

A That's correct.

Q We could do the same thing this computer did if

we wanted to work it cut by hand nurbers, and thea multiply

things against scmething else, right?

A In fact, I have done that in past years. That is
corract.
Q So that the inputs in this code and hew they are

arrived at is what is really important?
A That is. precisely correct.
Q Okay.
How did you arrive at the input for space
heating use for residential customers? used in Exhibit 112

A Are you talking msidential domestic customers, or
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residential space heat customers?
Q Space Leat.
A All right.

The projection of residential space heat customers
was developed by myself in conjunction with very knowledg=able
perszons in the areas of -- with expertise in the areas of
conservation, appliancz saturation, average usages per
appliance, et cetera.

What we 2id was to loock at what our currant mlx
of cuséomers in the residantial space ha2at catagory i3, and
what the approximate average is by the type of customer. By
tyre of customer now I am talking about seasonal as one type
of space heating customer, and year-rouné as another type,
with a totally different usaga pattern,

Mobile homes and apartments alsc have scmewhat
differant usage patters in averaée use.

We then looked a2t that and attempted tc adjust
the average use figuraes by appliance by catagerv to reflect
conservation and other factors.

We then attempted to project what the mix of
customers would be in the future years. In other words, what
percentage wa anticipate would Le in a year-round category,
what percentage would be in the seasonal, et cetera. And
based on thatanalysis came up with a projection of residential

space heating average use.
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Q Mr., Bickel, we azked for the backup cof che long-
tarm forecast.

a Yes.

Q All you gave us was a mulitiplication table.

why didn't you provide us with the inforxrmaticn you
just expressaed?

MR. RCSSO: Ycu kaow, Mr. Chairman, we told this
Board Esia was going to happan: Ve ¢old this Board on
December l4th, when Mr. Cherry caid that he was gciag to put
Dz. Timm on the gkhone with the. people in Consumers, and
that Dr. Timm and the pecplz in Consumers would work out
exactly what decuments DOr. Timm wanted.

Okay?

After we came back in the room and Dr.Timm had
spcken to them and they had acrz2ed -- he had agreed as to
what documents he wanted, we came back in the room, we talked
to our own pegprle and they said to us, those documents will
not give him what he r=ally wants.

We told the Board that, 1t is in the transcript.
We told Mr. Cherry that, it ic in the transcvipt. And he
insisted that those wvere the documents he wanted and he
insisted that that is wvhat he wanted, pericd..

Nov we told ~- this is all in the record, and if
he dida't get what he wanted, he has only himself to blame

at this point, sir. And I think Dr. Leeds who was there, and
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. mmid Dr. Luebke who was there, wculd remember that dialogue quite
" explicitcly.

~ MR, CAERRY: Mr. Chairman, I think what Mr. Rosso
8 sai! is not relevant to the inquiry for the following reasons:

This witness has been tendered, and I am entitled
to cross-examine this witness on the basis of information.
We don't have that information.

Dr. Timm haé a conversaticn with Mr. Bickel, and
as a result of that coaversscion with Mr. Bicksl and others,
he had been assured that he had sufficient infcrmation with
which to understand hov the computaticns were arrived at.

We were not told that it was a computation model,

. and we were not told that the computer cocde was a mathematical
addition.

It doas not scem to me that Mr. Rosso's objection
is fair, otherwise. I have many other questions of Mr. Bickel,
and I want those dccuments.

MR. ROSSC: You know, wa off2red to provide those
documents before. We have no objection in providing them now.

‘CHAIRMAN COUFAL: All right.

MR, ROSSO: They didn't want them.

) BY MR. CHERRY:
) .
Q Now, what factorxrs other than conservation did ywou
. loock at when you generated the numbers you just described?

A Wie are talking now about the projection of
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residential space heating average use?
Q Right.
A We scertainly,as ¥ mantioned, look at the mix of

customers. That is, tnat percentage of residential space heat

customers. Additions would Le year-round homes, what

percent wouldbe seascnal,and others, because they do have
diffcrcné usage patterns.

We also attempted to iategrate studies that have
been done within the company on: such things as a2 heat problem
which could cause » home to be heated electrically with a
smaller kilowatt hour input.

We also looked at a series of studies -- I talked
with several people around the company and the department,
such as energy consultant services, the rates departmeat to
look at projected rates, and their opinion oz what the input
might be.

Q Did you consider ﬁrico elasticity?

A How would you distinguish price elasticity from
conservaticn, sir?

Q Conservation could be arrived at in a variety of
ways other than price elasticity. 1Is that possible?

A I personally have a very difficult time getting
two separate and distinct concepts; one which is price
elasticity, the other which is price conservation.

Q I am talking when I use price elasticity, I am
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talking zbout a reduced use of electric 'ty bacause of a higher

price, oxay?

When I talk about ccnservation, thers are a whole
range of wavs in which pecple can coaserve electric znergy .
For example, not having promotional enerqgy advertising, :
Dy just deciding to ' change their patterns witiout regard to
price, by having responsible appliance manufacture?s, and
by having responsible utilities.

There are an awful lot of ways in which ycu can
deal with conservation by making generating facilities more
officient;

‘l” All ri qwe?
; You can pass laws that require certain taxation.

But when I talk about price elasticity, I am
merely talking akout an increase in the price of electricity

and its impact on usage.

And as that is defined, did you factor in price

elasticity?
A Yes, we attempted to factox that*%n.
Q What do you mean you attempted’
A Well, we factored it in, but I don't know that I

can quantify the precise amount by which things were reduced
by that factor as opposed to greater appliance efficiency.
. By the way, we also assumed another factor. What

T did do, as I mentioned, is have some fairly langthy discussions
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with the persons in the company - 4om I consider to be
extremely knowledgeable in the areas of rate structure, rate
research and the overall market,

Q Can you list for me the factors that you looked at
first which tended to lcwer consumption, and those which
tended to incrz2ase consumption?

A Yes.

Certainly the consorvation price 2lasticity -- I
will call it conservation/price elasticity, but if you wish
you can separate them.

Q Well, no, how did you do it?

I mean, did you factor in just price elasticity or
did you lump it in under congservation. And if so, define the
term conservation.

A We basically lcoked at an overall ccaservation term
which reflects price effects, which would then, in your
term, I belieﬁé, reflect prica elasticity.

Q What else did you consider in your overall
conservation scheme?

A We locked at projected reduction in average use
per appliance with more efficient appliances.

Q What else?

A These again are under the heading of factors which
tend to lower awage vse.

Q What I am lcoking for now is what you lumped
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in conservaticon, ia addition to price elastlicicy.

MR. RO8S0O: Mr. Chaiiman, I think that we have
two quasticns pending at this point in time.

One is, what did you lump under energy conservation,
and the other one is what factors did vou ccasider when you
were looking at those which wculd decrease energy coasumption?

And I do want the record to be clear as to which
precise question this witness 1s tc answer, because I don't
want him to be answerirg the more limited guestion and then
ggvcftﬁh transcript lcok like he was trving to answer the
bro;Aar question and that he did not answer completaly.

CHAIRMAN CCUFAL: Mr. Bickel, can you give your
answer in such a way that your counsel's concern will be
eliminated?

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q Just give me what is included in conservation in
addition to price elasticity as you used it in the study?

A _Tha qther major fac r is raduction in average
use per applianca, either bacause of mors efficient appliances

or because of attempts by the customers to use them more

efficiently.
Q Anything else?
A Those are the major cnes to come to mind. Again

you have requestad the backup so this will come out in more

detail when you receive that backup.
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Q Can you recall any others, Mr. Bickel?
A 1 cannot right at the moment.
Q okay .

Now in additicn to conservation an tha factors
that would iower demand, hat other factors did you find
would lower demand by usage? :

MR. ROSSO: I am SOriy. Again I just Qant the
record to be clear on this.

Are we talking -~ what class of custcomers ars
we talking about both in that last gquestion and on this one?

MR. CHERRY: Mr. Rosso, you have an obligation

te follow the testimony.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q Would you tell your counsel what we are talking
about?
A Tt is my understanding t% t we are talking now

about residential space heating.
MR, CHERRY: Okay.
Are you satisfied, Mr. Rosso?
MR, ROSSO: Yes, thank you.
BY MR. CHERRY:
Q Let's go on.
What other factors in your study did you conclude
would have a lowering of usage effect besides conservation

as you have defined it?
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A There certainly could be scoma --
Q Not certain -- what I am interested 'in is what
you locked at in this study that was a factor which yeou concluded
had a tendency to lower usage.
I don't want you to tell me what factors might be
applicable I want to know what you locked at whea you
computed the projected forecast for residential space heating.
Do yau understand my gquestion?
MR. ROSSO: Mr, Chairman, I object.
The witness had started to answer the guestion.
He should be permitted to completz his answer and then Mr. Cherzvy
can always move to strike it if he thinks the answer is not
an answer to his question. But he just simply can't cut a
witness off all the time like that.
MR. CHERRY: Do you understand nmy question,
Mr. Bickel?

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Do you understand the quetion?

THE WITNESS: Are you not responding to my attorney?
Is that correct?

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: I agree with your attorney that
?ounaol shouldn't cut you off,

MR. ROSSO: But I have an objection to the second
question. I want that stricken so that we can go back to
the first gquestion that was asked, have it reread and then

let Mr. Rickel continue with his answer.
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CHAIRMAN COUTAL: ‘lers you 2ut off in the middle
of an answer, Mr., Biczkel?

THE WITHESS: Yes, sir, I wa;.

CAAIRMAN COUFAL: All right.

Finizh whatever anuwar you were making.

THE WITNESS: I was trying to say trat there
caertainiy could be some impac“ as the resul: of the revisad
rate structures, or potantial.y revized rate structures. That
is not my aresa of axpertise.

But I did have scme input from an area whe
definitely is an expert in that particular catecgory.

I cthink that cthar than that, I have summarized
the major factors that we lockad at ia projzcting residential
space heating average use as it might be dafirned.

8Y MR. CAERRY:

Q There are only two of them. Ccnservation which had
two elements, and sowme effact fremthe rise in rate structures,
is that ccrrect?

A As I say, I will bave a much better idea when I

have a chance to go back and review all of my backups.

Q You mean to cgay you didn't briung that information
with you?

A I don't believe I have all of that with me ncw.

Q Do ycu have any of it with you?

A Not in this room, I don't believe so.

e ————— S — ——— a— ———
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Iz it in Chicaco?

Would vou take a lock, please?

All right.

o » O P O

And Mr. Bickel, my question would include
documents in the possession of your attorneys,i/lxr. Lapinski,
Mr. Heins. or anybody else, not just in that briefcase.

(Pause.)

A Given my statement that we iacluded as part of
conservation the impact of more efficient appliances, I will
stand on my answer.

Q . I askad you if you brought som2 backup.

Did you comsult some papars just now?

A I did.

Q M2y I see them?

Mr. Bickal, I don't think you have understocd
my regquest.

I would like ycu to take that document ocut and
explain to me what backup you have here that your attorney
said ; cculd have had if I had asked for it and they will
sand‘;n next week: So if it is here, I might not have to
wait that long.

Do vou understand my question, Mr. Bickel?

A Yes, I think I do.

Q Would you mind remcving that briefcase, bringing

I might have z2ome of it with me. I am not certain.
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23 it to the table and explaining to me what backup to your

computer ocutput ycu hava brought with you.
Can we stop focling uround. Can we just get it?
MR, ROSSO: ALl right, let us stop foeling around.
He didn't ask that befcre, he asked him what
document -- did you consult with a document? Yes. What
document did you consult with? He said it is in my book .
He said, let me see tha document, so he went and got the
document.

Sc, lat's stop fooling around. What de you want?

MR. CHERRY: I would like to know if you brought
with you your backup material.
. You told me you brought some of it with you. After
having received taat answer I eaid, wculd you plzase tell me
what you have, not just limited to that particular question,
but limited to all of the input to the Exhibit 11.

And I s=aid, don't limit wurself toc what you have
in the briefcase, but what is in the possessicn of your lawyers,
Mr. Heins, or Mr. Lapinski in Chicago.

It might be possible for me to avoid bringing you
back here again if you havs that material with you, so I would
like to see it.

MR.ROSSO: That wasn't the way I understood it, and

' I don't think that was the way the witness understood it.

If we can have two minutes, I will try to determine
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.m24 what it is that the witness has with him.

CHAIRMAN CCOUrAL: ALl rzigaht, vou can have two
/:> minutes.

what is available in Chicago in the porsassion 2f vou,

MR, CHERRY: Not just what the witness has, odut

Mr. Lapinski or Mr. Eeians.
MR. ROSSO: That will ¢tzke a little longer.
(Pause.)
MR. ROSSO: Mr. Chaigman, I have ccaferrad with
the witness and I quess T have the following statement to

make for the record:

-

L

As we informed the Board a long time ago, there
are just an sncrmous amcunt of documants that géll within
the document request which Mr. Cherry had originally made in
this matter.

Included among those are a lot of backup material
which refers to matters which went into Mr. Bickel's
consideration in doing thiz lcad forzcast. Some of those

have already been produced for Mr. Cherry and he has copias

of them.
I am tecld that there is a good deal cf material
(‘) regarding energy conservation that he has already cbtained
copias of.
’ Soma of it has not yet been profiuced. 1t i3 in our

offices. It is currently being indexed in acccrdance with the
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system tiiat we set up for the preducing of documents. And
we expect that it can e comp.etely ’‘ndexed oy sometime this
coming week.

Now that is ona mass of documenzs. I don’'t know
how 1much that is. Ms. Bartelman in =a offhand estimace
said that it i3 a stack that could he 15 feet high. Now I don't
know that it is 15 feet high, but that is the best cffhand
estimate I have ncw.

Beyond that-~

MR. CHERRY: She is shaking ber head, no.

MR. RCS30: o?

(Mr, Recsso and Ms.Bartelman conferring)

MR. ROSSO: I'm sorry. Apvarently I misspoka.

A couple of feet high, at least, she said. But again this
is a rough estimate. There are a lot of documents there.

Now with him here today, Mr. Bickel has two notebooks
which havesome backup materiai which he brought with him which
ralates directly to the study that he did. So he would be
preparad to proceed on the basis of the material he ncw has
available to him and we woculd be prapared to proceed with
the documgnt production that we have been going along dcing,
n;xt uuqk; with regard to the other materials.,

‘ - CHAIRMAN COU?AL:. Thank vou.

BY MR, CHERRY: |

Q Mr. Bickel, just so that I can have firm in my mind
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all of the facvors that ycu lcoked at in orojecting rasidential
space heating usage, sad which had a tendency, vou concluded,

to lower demand or ‘conservaticn which included price
elasticity and more efficient use of appliances has scme

impact as the result cf revised rate structuras, is that

correct?
A That's correct.
Q When you said price elasticity, did you mean

price of electricity?

A I meant price ¢of =2lectricity as it ralates to
price of other fuels. But yes, prices of slactricity
primarily.

Q Yes.

Whea you look at altarnative prices of fuel, isan’'t
that cross alasticity?

A Yes.

Q So then am I corract ¢o say that ycu did not
lecok at price 2lasticty as part of the conservaticn elements
that you lookad at that had a tesndancy tc reduce deménd?

A Again, since I personally have -- tend to lump

consarvation with prica elasticitv, I am not sure that I

—

can respond to that.
Q You told me, Mr. Bicksl, that consS:arvation included
two elements; price elasticity and more efficient use of -

appliances.
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.“27 Was tha®t your testiinony?

A Use of mere efficient appliances.

/)'xd 18

D,
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Q ¥Wew, whan vou mentioned price slasticity and more
efficient use of apoliances, ware thosa the onlv factors
that you lumped into comservation, or were thers others?

A We would have to consult with the individuals
to_vhcm I talked, I thiuk, in order to gat whatever other
input they might have had in arriving with me at a projaction
of averaga use.

Q You deon't xnow?

RS To the best of my kncwledg=, thesa are the major
considerations, bu: thaese péaple might hava had other things
that were in their information at the :time we talked.

it} Is this a subjective study?

A It was quantitative, but obvicusly it was based
on professional judgment.

Q But, I mean, it wasn't based on any actual study
you made. It was people who draw upon their informaticn
and than subjectively produced aumbers based upon what thair
mental analysis was? Is that correcxw?

MR. RJSSO: Objection, Mr. Chairman. ©His-
characterization of the tastimcny.

CHAIQHAR COUFAL: He asked a question. If that
is not what the witness has testified to, he can say so,
Mr. Rosso.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q Mr. Bickel?
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a Thae averags usa projection for a spacific type
of reaidential space hzating for each type of customer was
rased primarily on the factors that you hava indicatsd.

We 2id, nowever, attampt to, as I meantioned
earlier, cuantitv tie 2nergv rsductions in specific eppliances
due to more 2fficient applisncss.

@ - Was it 2 subiective study, Mr. Bickal.

A Based cn the bast professicnal judgment of the
most kaowledceable perscns within tbae company, yes.

Q Right. hat’s a term that's as vet undefined,
"most knowledgsable persoms in the company.”

But what I want to get at, Mr. Bickel, ig, as
opposed to going out and lcoking at actual performance over
five years and then basing your projection on that actual
performance, you didn't do that. What you did i3 you sat
around, either in a group or a series of group interviews,
and you asked people to give you what they thought, based
upen their knowledge, what thay thought projections would be.

And the r=2ason you can't tell ma all the elements
is because you can't read everybody's mincC during the intar-

view, is that corrsct?

A I balisve I would like to rastate that statement,
if I could.
Qo Can you answer my quaestion?

A Well, which one of your questions that was
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“L .lt 3 involved in that would you like me to answer righ% now?
i ' Q2 Te that ke r2ascn you caa't tell me everytiiing
that was included in the projection, is becausze it's difficult
to rzad somecne's mind and, urless they tell you what they'ra
basing it upon, you won't really know? Is that correct?

A That is true; however --

2 Waitz a minute. Just a moment, nov.

Was that part of the reascn why you sald you
couldn't be sure of all cf the items that wers considered in
the gtudy?

MR, ROCSSO: I think we ougiht to g¢gat the "hocwever”
on the record before we get tc that second gquestion, sir. I
. rmove to strike.

CHAIRMAN C_JFAL: What'e the "however". Mr.
Bickel?

THE WITNESS: The "however” is, very =arly in
the phrasing of Mr. Cherry's guestion he said it was not
based on any studies., It was based on sone studies to the
extent that ths Rate Research Department of Consumers Power
Company has in fact been studying conservation, using a
gampling technique, of residential and commercial customers

(\\ since about the beginning of the public awareness of the
/ spargy crisis in late 1973.
' So, while I did say it was subjective, I probably

should rephrase that to say that it was subjective professional
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Judiment based on data as the rasul: of thaz study.

BY MR. CASRRY:

n What were the resultr in 1373 of that study?

CEMNIRMAN COUFAL: I'am zorry. I didn't get thal
Question, Mr. Cherrv.

MR. CHERRY: What wsze tha results ia 1973 of the
study he just mantioned?

TEE WITNESE: A3 I saild, the studies bog about
tne and of '73, the beginuirg of '74., I don't racall {he
precigae numbers., That particular study was dcn2 dy cur Rate
Rasearcih Department.

BY MR. CHEPRY:

Q Ylould you look at that and see if it rofreshes
your recollection?

(Document handad to the witness.)

MR. ROSSQ: Has this beon marked as an aexhibit?

MR, CHERRY: T don'‘t intsad to mark it. I just
intend to let the witness uua it to see if it rzefreshes his
recollsction, in which event I will take it back arnd have him
testify based on his recolla;tion.

MR. RCSSO: I3 this a document that you obtained
from our files?

MR, CHERRY: Yas.

MR. ROSSO: “Thank vou.

THE WITNESS: This igo a document prapared during
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the latter portions of that suudy,
3Y MR, CEERAY:
Q Does that reflsch vour recnllection as %c what
the results weze for 13737
A Cartaiply not -- well, let me read it in Jdctail
bafore I answer.
(Witness reading docum nt,)
MR, CHERRY: May I *take § look at this beck while
you're doing it?
TAE WITNESS: Sure. Do vou want this one? This
is the cne2 that's more relevant, in mv opinion.
(Documants handed to Mr, Cherry.)
BY MR. CHERRY:

[+ Mr. Bickel, could you answer the question now?

[ 8 You asked if it refreshed nmy memory. The answer
is yes.
Q I asked you whether or pct ycu could 421l me what

the results of your atudy were in 1973,

A There’'s a section hera that says tihe historical
data for the -~

2 Just 2 miauta, I den'‘t want you to read from
the deccument. You zclé me yeu dida't know unless vou looked
at scmething. Now I want to know if, after having loocked

at that, you can now t2ll me what the results are from your
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A Zes.
) Whae ove “hey?
A Regidential spaca heatiny in the firsc year for

the sample selectad had a decrease in average use of 13.2
perceat. In the second vear of the study, they had a decrease
of 5.9 parcent, and in the third year they had a decraase in

average use of 2.2 perczent.

a Now, Mr. Sickel -~-
A Shall wa zrade Jdecumants ne's?
Q ¥o, I'a still lacking ac yonrs,

ir. Bickel, I want %o g2 back now to rz2aliy txy to
be very, very clear abou: what you meant by "eonservation,”
becauge I'm still confused.
Do you agree with me that looking at che price
of alternative fuals is cross-elasticicy ang not price
elasticity? I3 that corrace?
A I do. L
0 Now, define "price elasticity® for me cs you under=-
stand the term.
A Price elasticity is the pPercent changa in quantity

demand divided by the percent change in price.

Q 0f any fuel?
A Of any commedity,
2 Now, did you do a price eliasticitcy study in connec-

tion with conservatioa?
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A Mr. Cherry, this line of questioninag would be
much more adequately dirzscted at another individual in our
company, who ias responsible for not cnly the conservation
atudies but also a price elasticity astudy.

MR, CEERRY: Mr., Chairman, I'd just like to take
a moment to say something.

Ona of the favorita techniques of utilities in
rate hearings is to bring a man ©© a hearing who doesn't
know very much about anythiag and then try to wear down the
regulators, which they gengrally do, by saving, *"That's back
at the office; that's back here; that's back there.”

I don't know whethar or nct the Board is aware
that Consumers Powar has an cdligatcion to put on the case.
Now, without regard to making any conclusory statements about
Mr, Heins' sxhibits, it's gquite clzar, at least to the
average reader, if ycn had no backup information you wouldn‘t
have been able to determine whether or no:t those prices,
those sales were real in the assumptions for Palisades. You
just wouldn't have known that.

I don't know if yoa want to know that or if that's
important to you. That's a different quection. I happen
to think those assumptions ar: important. If I were an
attorney preparing those exhisits, I would have put in foot-
notes and I would have set forth all of those matters.

Now, this hearing can take a long time if this
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‘u:s is the Xind of answar I gat every time I ask a reasonably
imoortant inquiry. That's not my job. I can't continuve to
try a case like that, and I would like some guidance from
the Board as to whether or not tha Board is at this point
aufficiently disposed to tell Consumers Power that it does
not believe its studies based vpon the cross-examination thus
far or whether it hasn't nade up its mind it's goirg to direct
Consumers Power tc briag the people heres whe can answer the
gquestiong without my wasting time to do so.
I will continue to do so, but my obligation in
this cagse is not the find the right guestion to ask cf a
man who %will then tell me, "That's not my study.”
. . I an asking questions of a man that wae tendered
to me as zomeone who can explain how ths .crecest is wvade.
I asked him whether or not it included price elasticity,
and I didn't get a diract answer. He told me “hat it had ¢o
do #th cross-elasticity.
Ther I asked him to define it. Ha talls me for
that definition I have 0 go scmewhere 2lae.
I'd like scme guidance from the Board as to how
you want me to proceed, because, after all, I'm‘trying to
{a) put in a case and convince you that this license ocught to
be suspended.
‘ | But the Board has an indspandent obligation to
N\

find out if it has sufficient material upon which to rely
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not to suspend the license if it has that shapa of mind,
and I want to be guideé by it. What do you want me to do?
Continue to cope with this and have this hearing last six
weeks?
MR. ROSSO: Mr. Chairman, may I respond?
CHAIRMAN COUPAL: Yes.

MR. RCSSO: Mr., Chairman, cne of the issues in

this case was the need for power. The man at Ccnsumners Power

Company who is the logical man to testifv to that, who is

the man who puts together all of the inputs that come in from

the company, is Mr. Heirps.

Mr. d eins was put on the stand, and he presented
the result of his studies which synthesize all these other
materials that he gets: the material he ge‘s from Mr.
Bickel with regard to the lorng-range energy forecast, the
material he geta fr.m Mr. Lapinski, the material he gets
from Mr. Climer with regard to conzervaticn of ensrgy, and
a variety of other exparts.

You cannot run a company like Consumers Power
Company with cne man who is an expert on everything, who
knows everything, who does everything. It’'s a team effeort;
it's an integrated company.

We believe that Consumers Power has some of the
top experts in the company working in the specific areas of

input which went into the evaluations that Mr. Heins then
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put into his testirony and presentad to this Boaxd.
Now, all we can do i3 come in here and prasent
you with the concluaions of the study. Otherwise, we would

have submittad exhibits.

If T had taken Mr. Cherry's suggastion, for exampla,

that would have includad, just for starters, and just with
regard to Mr. Bickel, these two volumes, plua any other
material that Mr. Cherry has already obtainad from our docu-
mants, plus any other materials which we are currently
indexing.

What he in effect is telling this Board is that
he wants us %o put in every pizce of papcer in evidance which
led up to the final conclusions that Mr. Heins brought before
the Board.

Now, the way a case is put on is that you put on
your conclusiocns, ycu put on your stufy. Then somebody else
says, "I've got some guesticns about this study. I want %o
see your backup materials. I want toc see your dccuments,”
He looks through them) and he picks out what he thinks is
wrong with the study or the assumptions that he would like
to change in ozdc:.io make his case.

He comes in; he cross-examineg you; he tries tn
see whethar he can poke holes in it. If he can or he can't,

that's another guestion. Then he puts on his own case to

say, "I think their assumptions are dumb because, and ow’s
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ara gocd becauss,” and he puts on an expert whc gives you
his assumptions and his csacluisiocs.

There is nc other way that we cculd have put this
case on.

Now, as to the final pcint on this, wvhen he got
to a point with Mr. Heins where he got intec the inputs that
came froem Mr. Bickel, Mr. Bickel was heras. We had him in
this rocm within minutss.

Now, wvhen he warts to talk to Mr. Lapinski, Mr.
Lapinski is here. If he wants to talk to Mr. Climer, we
will bring Mr. Climer here. !le will bring here whoever this
Board feels it nezds to talk o with recard to the input into
the work that Mr. Heins final'ly presentad tc the Board.

That's all we can do, .sir. That is all we can do.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: 0o you want to continue your
crossg with this witness, !ir. Cherry?

MR. CHERRY: I'm sorry I brought the guestion up,
sir.

CHAIRMAM COUFAL: It's a gocd gqusstion to bring
up. I'm glad you both aired vour points of view. I learned
sonething from each of you.

BY MR, CHERRY:

e Mr. Bickel, my pending guestion was, what is your
understanding of price elasticity? T want your understanding.

A Price elasticity is the percent change in quantity
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demand divided by the percent chance in price.

Qe Did you consider nrice elasticity as part of
conservation, &s8 uae of the factors that vou believe would
lover demand in comnection with projecting residential space

heating requirements?

A Lower de&and -= yOu mean lcwer average use?
Q Tes.
A Yes, I did. That was inherent in the material

that I derived with and from Jim Climer.

As far as how it was incorporated in Mr, Climer's
miad, I think it would be inappropriate for me to try to
respond. He would be the begt ocne o respond to that,

Q Didn't he give you a piece of paper which explaired
what he believed?

A Most of this was deone in discussions.

Q You went arcund and talked te pecple anéd chey
gave you conclusions, and Mr, Climer gave vcu some, which
you believe included price slasticity, is that correct?

A That's certainiy a very, very gross genegnlization.
That's not at all ¢he wav it occurred in all cases.

Q Did it occur in connection with Mr. Climer's
case?

;S With Mr, C’imer, I had -- Mr. Climer and I have
a very good working relationship. I feel free to go into

his office, sit 4 -
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Q I'm real happy for you. I just want to know,
have you talked to Mr. Climer -

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Just a minute.

Finish your answer.

THE WITNESS: When I talked to Mr. Climer, ves,
he did give me his insight into what he thought the lcgical
decrease in average use per appliance per residential
custcmer for a specific type of residential customer would
be. I'm sure that did inclule scme price elasticity.

Q You're sure it included price elasticity?

A I'm sure --Mr, Climer would be the one to raispond
to that question, but in my mind I'4d be amazed if he did not.

Q And what are you basing that cn?

A On knowing Mr. Climer and knowing he's an ex-
tremely thorough and ccmpetert men.

e Did Mr. Climer tell you that he had done a study
which factored in price elasticity?

MR. ROSS50: If you remember,

THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. What was that?

MR. ROSSO: If you remember.

THE WITNEES: I was very much aware of the study
which you have just refreshed my memory on.

| BY MR. CHERRY:
Q Did Mr. Climer tell ycu that the figures he gave

you for use as an input, that you used in connection with
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the testimony vresented here teday, azpresslv iacluded a
factox for prica elasticity?

A I do not recall whather he specifically menticned
that cr not.

Q What was the factor guantified for price 2las-
ticity? 1In other words, how did it have an impact in Mz,
Climer's input that you used?

MR. ROSSO: May I ask the witness a gquestion?

Do you ne=2d your backup bcolks in order o answer
that?

THE WITNESS: It would certainly bDe beneficial,
yes,

MR. ROSSO: Siace Mr, Cherry has the bacikup books,
I would ask that they be returned te the witness so he can
try to answer these guestions.

BY MR, CHERRY:

Q Is Mr. c1ime;‘3 report in writing?

MR. ROSSO: Excuse me, 2ir. I have a motion
pending before the Boaxd.,
CHAIRMAN COUPAL: Yonu do.
If the witness needs his books to testify, please
give them back to him.
BY MR. C-ERRY:
Q Mr, Climer has a report in here that you can find?

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Mr. Cherry, give him the books,
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will you pleaze?

(Socuments handed o the witness.)

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q Does Mr., Climer have a report in here?

A To the best of my inowladge, ha does not have a
report per sa. What I do hav:, I kelleve, are notes of a
conversation.

If I don't have thom here, I most asauredly have
them scmewhere. They were in the packet that was put
together in an attempt to comply with your oriainal request.

Q Now that you have :he bocks, would vou licok?

A Yes.

(Withess reading documents.)

I do not believe I have those specific items with
me. I know I have notes from the discussion. I will cer-
tainly try ;o find ihem.

Q When you had this discuszion with Mr. Climer,
he gave you his judgment based on what he thought would
happen in the future based on factors that you beliave in-
cluded price elasticity?

A I would phrase it by saying that Mr. Climer and
Mr. Baker and myself arrived at a projection which we believe
was reasonable. This projection was done, proposed and pro-
s2nted, along with many other factors, to the Energy Forevrst-

ing Review Committee, and it was their decision to adopt
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that particular projection of average usa.

e I thought Mr. Heins said that your study was
independent and confirmed what they arrived at. You're now
telling me that they arrived at their study by taking your
stuff and arriving at a result, and vour study cenfirmed
thet it was the same irput in both studies? I'm 2 little
confused.

A I's. sorzry. Let me rephrose this.,

Forecasting is, as I know you're aware, is con~
tingal.‘ Forecagting is going on all the time. We're con-
tinually gathering information and ravising previcus studies.

The confinatory study that we're talking about
now, you're right, the Porecast Committee has not seen that.
8o the confirmation I'm raeferring to iz a review of the
Forecast Commititaa which actually ook place, I believe, in
1975, but I'm not absolutelv cerxtain of that.

e The study that you preparad was FAsne iun 1975, tﬁlt
you'trastified about?

A The original study that I did, that I was invelved
in, oa rssidential snace heat averages, IAput togotg;ilin
June of 1974 with Mr, Climer. I have ruvfied that and gone
over the assumptions with him and.adjusted'it as appe;rad

necessary at least twice since that time.
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/10 Q When is the first #ime you adjusted it?
i A The first time I adjustad the »/74 version-
- Q Yes.
~ A I don't recall; scunetime @ither in liate '74 or
early '75.

Qe Then the next time you adjustea it? That ycu re-
call?

A I believe it was very late '75.

Q Has it been adjusted since then?

A I have made some aljustments or my cwn, based on
previous discussions with My. Climer which I have not yet
reviewed with Mr. Climer which are in the affirmatory

‘ study, usino essentially the same assumptions.

o But the forecast is based upon the study you did

in '74 a¢ amended by the late '74, late '75 corraction?
- A As I say, it is a continuum; yes.

Q Is the answer to my question yes, Mr. Bickel?

A As I said; yes.

Q This is 1977. Y u mean that the data upon which
the testimory is based doesn't include any '76 input?

A Ne, sir; I don't mean that.

(») 4 0 ff the forecast was made based upon a report that
you did in '74 and it was revised twice and the latest being
‘ in late '75, explain your answer.

A I made a review of that study within the last two



1909

months, a2 review of the projection of averages and I don't
believe ~- no; in fact I am sure I did not -- get back in
touqb with Mr. Kleimer.

I believe I may have made scme minor adjustments
@t certain points, but for the most part, the results still
lcok very vaiid to me.

Q You said that you rely upon a lot of knowladgeable
people in the company for that forecast.

A That's corract?

Q Well, since your last update ia 1975 in coznection
‘with this study presentasd to this Board, did you t;lk‘tﬁ any
of those knowledgeable people specifically about this fora-
cast?

A Spacifically ubout this fcrecast; yes, I have,
althcugh not necessarily to everyone that provided input in
'75, nor necessarily to everyomne that provided input in '7..

e Then how do you know you have gottan everybody's
up-to-date view?

A Obviously, there is no way to be absolutely
certain, but I am quite convinced =- ai least 35 percent
convinced -- that I do have verv (.:cint views.

o Even though you ¢ .¢ ‘' zalk to a lot of people
in 1976 about it?

A Based on my judgment, having talked with them for

a couple of years; yes.
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0. Who elsa Desides M. (Climer 2ave vou beecn talking
to?

A In what area, sir?

43 Rasidenzial space .aeating.

A I have talikked also with Mr. Baler of the rates

resedrsh departmenc.

Q Did you talk to Mr. Baker in 1976, smecifically
about your forecast zhat you are supporting here todav?

A I don’'t have any document tc the effect that I did.
But I certainly have zaliked to hiin within the last two or
three months about this type »f thing; how the conversaticn
study was going and that sort of thing.

Qe Your answar is no, than?

MR. ROSS0: I didn’'t uncdarstand the answer +o be

BY MR. CHEPRY:

Q Did yeou talk to Mr, Baker spscifically about
' 5.
forecasts that ycu are suppor:ing here today, such converza-

tion occurrir: any time in 19767

A If sc, it would have been in early '76.
v} But you are not sure you did?
A I am not sure I did. It was either extremely late

'75 -- by that I m=2an November -December ~- or early '76.
Mr. Cherry, cculd I make one comment on this. As

I pointed cut earlier, I have been in the load forecasting
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area since November of '73. Diring first couple of rears,
it was very aecessary for me o sacisfy myself that I was
the doing job, in crder -- L© kzep in relati&ely censtant
contact with people.

Hopefully since that time I have developed exncugh
expertise tc be abls to look a: conditions as they ars cur-
rently going with occasional feedback from cartain areas and
make some of my own judgments in certain azresas.

BY MR. CHERRY:

0 So thz forecast y=u are supperiiag now is ycur
own judgment and isn't relying om those other experts?

A Yes; my judgment based on prior discussion with
the experts.

o Mg, Climer, vou did not review your wost recent
'76 input with him; is that correst?

A Yes: I belisve that 1is correct.

Q Who else besides Climer and Balker did you talk
to, to raly upon, or did ycu walk in their offices =--

MR. R0SSO: Could I have the guestion rersad or
restated? I didn't hear it.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q Who else besides Climer and Baker do ycu corn.sider
as pecple that you rely upon in conrection with your load
forecasting study? |

A I have talked with individuals in the energy
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consulting services denarimen:., They were -- they have pre-
pared at least oue study; pariaps a seriss cf studies, speci-

fically dezaling with the impact of the hz2at pump. E9 I

hav -
Q When did you taikx o0 then?
i I taiked with tham -- that was again late '75.
Q 0id you taik with caem in ‘7§ ?
A I talked to them again in eavriy '75.

0 Why dida't you have toese gantlzmen vou talk td

read Mr. Beins' testimony and vour axhikzits bafore you sus-

mitted it?
A That cartainly wculd have been a cgocd thing te do.
Q It sure would have.
A Time constraints w2re the main problem.
Qe Well, you have had --

MR. ROSSC: Could [ nave the answer reread. I

am having zroubi2 pickiug up ==

MR. CHERFY: He said that tine constraints preventsxi

him frem deing what he considsred a geod thing; to talk to
his experts before he susmittzd his testimcny.

MR. ROSSC: I don't think‘£hat that is what he
said.

Read it »ack, please.

(Whereupen, the resorter read the previous ansver

as requestced.
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BY MR. CHELRY:

) ir. Bickal, do ycu know what value is used in
computing the price elasticity, what value for aslsctricity?

A Do you mean what »rojected prices for elactricity?
What éo you mean; what valu=zs for slactriciiy?

Q What I am trying to arrive at so that I can under-
stand whether or not your price elasuicity studies aﬁg cor-
rect or not is: Is thare scme coefficiant or value that you
used ia ccmputing the 2£ffect of price elasticity on the
usage of electricity.

A There is not a specific coefficient that I have
used per =2; no, sir.

Q Bave you ever reviawed aar studies that have sug-~
gested particular ccaificients, having particular effects?

A Yes, sir. |

Q And have any of those studies been used by you in
connection with this testimony?

A No, sir. I found that the studies had price
elasticities which ranged wildly.

Q How do you know that Mr. Climer's coefficient did
not involve a wild rarnge? You trust him?

A I believe in the integricy, honest and ability of
Mr. Climer.

Q Mr. Bickel, how can I realistically find out'whe-

ther or not the price coefficient, if any, used by



“r. Climer =- was used by ir. Climer with an answer like
that? Can you helr me out?

MR. ROSEC: You car ask Mr. Climer.

MR. THERRY: I know I could.

BY MR. CHERRI:

Q You were brought aere to supporu this residential
soace h2ating study and vou toléd ma that -- now that yon
have been an exp2rt for two or thrae yaars -- and vou told me
that you are sure that Mr. cilimer has.considered the study.
Yot have two notebooks full ard you tall re that you aras sure
that ha used a good price coefficient study bacause you
trust him. Is that vour answer?

MR. ROSS0: I cbject. I think the guestion is
arcumentative. I think it is an unfair statement of the
witness' tastimony and really, it is just so tctally unnec-
essary in view of the discussion we had on the record before.

IZ e wants tc find that cut, we will bring Mr,
Climer here.

CHAIRMAN COUTAL: Is thiz just a numker you ars
lcoking for, Mr. Cherry. I don't understand.-- Is it a
figure that can be easily supplied. Is that what your =--

MR, ROSSO: We would be glad to supply it to him
if he wculd ask him for it.

MR. CHERRY: Mr., Chairman, the problem is that

there is no figure that was uszed.
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What Mr. Bickel did is sit down and have a con-
versation in 1977 with a lot of people and taat is the basis
for this proie« 1. 4nd if we got Mr. Climer hare, ha could
not tell us wnat number was ussd either.

bBY MR. CHERRY:

Isn't that ~orrect, Mr. Bickel?

A Only Mr. Climer can answer that.

e What is your best judgment, that Mr. Climsr has a
figure that he has used that is in some report?

A The price elasticity study as conducted by Con-
sumers Power Company,. I believe, was finished within the
last month or so -- or scheduled to be finished within the

last month or sc. I have not seen, yet, any results frcm that

gtudy.
Q So «hat study is not the basisz of your testimony?
A That particular study is not the basis cf my
testimony.
Q Well, but the Climer study that you say in part

the basis of your testimeony wasn't the -- a study at all but
a series of subjective conversations with Mr., Climer; is
that correct?
A I don't recall using the phrase: The Climer study.
0 Did Mr. Climer tell you akout price elasticity in
a conversation, or did he do calculations on a report and

send it to pu or was there some other methed by which you
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determined that he used price elasticity?

A As I discussed earlier, it was arrived at in a
discussion with Mr. Climer primarily based on his judgment,
based on many years of vorking in the wmarketing ressarch area.

Q Dic he do ény calculations in the course of
that conversation?

A I am sura he did although I don't have copies of
them.

Q Do you remember his using a calculaticn with a
specific price elasticity cocefficient?

A No: I seriously doubt that he would usz a specific
price elasticity coefficient, because a pric: elasticity co-
efficient, as you well know, is deperndent upon many factors,
not the least of which is the level of price.

Q Did ycu look at those factors in connecticn with
you- testimony?

A The factors that I just said do not exist.

Q No , the ones that are dependent upon =--

MR. ROSSO: I am not sure what the question is.
BY MR. CHERRY:

Q Mr. Bickel, let's go back now:

The factors that you used in connection with
conversations with -- conservation --.anow include crégs-

elasticity? Price elasticity? And more efficient use of

appliances; is that correct?
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A And advent of acceptance of the heat pump.
Q Advent and acceptaace2 ci the heat pump.
Anything else?
A Those are, I believe, the ones that I had mentioned

this far; vyes.

Q Anything else?
A No.
Q You had at cne point gone over your bocks and

pulled out a particular decument and back -- came back and
confirmed to me scmething or other is there.

Is there a decument in that couple of volumes you
have which can tell me what you included in the coacept of
conservation which vou concluded would lower demand in con-
nection with average residential space heat uscge?

A Mr. Cherry, the spscific documents that I was lock-
ing for were the notes that I made during scme of my conver-
sations with Mr. Climer and I have not been able to lccate
them. I don't believe they are in any of these beoks. -

Qe Were there any mathematical studies done that you

have relied on other than the conservation study done in late

'73, '74 and '7S5?
A We have attempted -- and when I say we I am talk-~

ing of Consumers Power Company. Any particular ipput that I

get from the rate ressarch department, we have attempted to

look at a series of price elasticities studies that were done
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but none of them seem applicable or acceptable or even reason-
able by the pecple whose expertise lie in that area.
Q My Qiestion was:
Did Consumers Power Campany do any mathematical
or arithmetic studies in connection with your testimony other
than the study dealing with conservaticn for late '73, '74
and '757?
A Speaking for myself speficially; no. Speaking for
the Company; I can't say. There are none that I am aware of.
Qa I see.
You are the forecaster,or one of them, for the
company?
A I prepare projected or proposed forecasts for re-
view and approval by the forecast committee. That is the

office that has responsibility for the forecast.

e Did you say you prepare proposed forecasts?
A Yes.
Q Co vceu use any mathematical cor arithmetic studies

in connection with those propcsed forecasts?
A What do you mean by studies?
Q Well, let me ask it another way:
Does your forecast essentially come down to your
talking to a lot of people at the company?
A It certainly consists of gathering ianput from a

lot of people at the company in conversation and in document
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form. I then take the information -- and again this iz as a
general rule the best informaticn I can find available -- and
make calculaticns and try to come up with scmething that looks
reasonable to me, review it with the pecple from whom I got
the information, try to get an overall consensus of som2thing
that locks reascnable to the kXnowledgcable pecple within the
company before I present it to the forecast ccmmittee. -

And on numercus occasions I will present alternate
projecticns to the forecast conmitise, based on different
input assumptions. And in the final analysis, as you kaow;'
we get down to the input assumptions.

o} Is it fair to say, Mr. Bickel, tiaat the forecast
which is the subject of your testimony hers tcday is more or
less a result of conversations with a lot of people at
Consuners Powar.

A It is fair to sey that it is tha result of my
function as a2 focal point for rzlevant information that
relates to long~-range forecasts.

2 Did you answer my qu sticn, Mr. Bickel?

MR. ROSSO: Objection, I think the gquestion was
answered.

CHAIPMAN COUFAL: HNeo; I don't think that was
responsive at all.

THE WITNESS: Would you please repeat the question,
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BY MR. CHERRY:

1} Is it fair to say that the forecast that you are
supporting hara today is more or less a result of conversa-
tions with people at Consumers Powar?

A When you say conversations, are you talking about =--
strictly verbal convarsations, or written communication with
feedback loops?

Q What is a feedback loor, Mr. Bickel.

A A feedback lcop, to my way of thinking, will be when
I get information from scmebcdy, make some calculations that
I think incorporates their information, give it back to them
for confirmation, if this does in fact reflect --

o Let me see if I can help you with this jargon.

Is it fair to say that the study which you are
supporting here today was more or less based upon entirely
subjective considerations, whether verbal, documentary or
feedback loops.

A The forecast was based primarily on professional
judgment and in fact, anry forecast -- I defy anyone to
show me a forecast that is not based on Subjeactive judgment.

Purely statistical forecasts, for example, are
balgd on an inherent assumption that the future will b.:aino-
ilar to the past.

Q Would you answer my question, Mr. Bickel?

A The answer to your question is ves.
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I would prefer that the phrase be profassicnal

instead of subjective judgrent.

Q Do you agree that they are the same?

A You can get a subjective judgment frcm someone who
may not have a gcod basis for tmaking a subiective judgment.

Qo Here is what I am trying to get at, Mr. Bickel, aad
maybe I can do it this way:

I can turn around <o Dr. Timm who is helping me
and I can say: Dr. Timm, I weuld like you to tall me kow
much I am going toc earn im 1930. Dr. Timm can go about that
study in cne cf two ways. He can lcok at how much money I
have earned up until now. Ha can compute what kind of clients
I will have and what their probably rate wiil be. He can
compute wrether or not any expansion factors will affect my
income. And he can put error bamds on that and he can list
verv carefully his assumptions. I would call that, although

it has scme assumptions in it, a mathematical study.

Okay?
A Yes.
Q Or I can turn arocund to Dr. Timm and say: Dr.

Timm, how much money do you think I will earn in 1980, and
he can say: Well, you are a good lawyer. I have known a

lot of lawyers and have been arocund a lot of them for five
or 10 years. They usually pratty good when they are 45. I

think you will make $80,000. I would call tha%t a subjective
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study.
A Yes.
Q Mow using those as examplas, would it be fair to

gtate that the forecast that you have arrived at, that you
are supporting today, was basc¢d substantially on the mathemat-
ical type investigation that I have dascribed, or the sub-

jective type investigation that I have described?

A The mathematical tvpe.
Q Show me the mathematical projections that you made.
A I believe that's one of the things that we will

be, at your request, praparing again for you.

Q You don't have them here?
A I have many of them, vas,
Q Show me the ones you have.

DR. LEEDS: Let me ask a cquestion hera. We have
been talking abcut residential space heating. And now we
are talking about forecasts that ycu are supporting tcday,
and I am a little off as to which one he is answering with
respect to. Can you straighten that out for me.

MR. CEERRY: Yes.

BY MR, CHERRY:

o Did you interpret my question as residential space
heatinq or the entirety of the forecast?

A The entire forecast.

Q If you restrict your answer to residential space



heating, would ycur answer be the zame?

A in my opinion, Mr. Cherry, vou are getting clos»
to a point where you are at one of “he variables at which you
need subjective judgnent.

As vcu phrased vour example, you said that Dx.
Timm would make his Jrojection, his mathematical projection
based upon subjective judoments of these saries of factors.

I would look at residential spac2 heating average
use as one of the key factors. And I think that it is largely
based on subjective. It is then usad in mathamatical appli-
cations to arrive at the total forecast.

Q “Yes, but that is like the computer code we talked
about earlier. Tﬁé'i;thematical application is muiiplying
input against assumed growth ratzs. That is sﬁbjactivc. That
is just mathematics.

A That is a result of the prior subjective.

Q Se that you would agree with me that the conclusions
reached with respect to residential spacs heating were '
more or less subjective in nature as orposed tc based upon
mathematical studies; is that correct?

A I believe that I would have to have scme input
from Mr. Climer 1in order to know to what extent he utilized
mathematical studies. Given the result that he gave, that
he provided to me I would say that from my point of view,

locking at it strictly as I did, it was in your definiticn, a
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subjectiv: factor.

2 pid Mr. Climer tender anythinc to ycu that you
can now recall that would fa.l into a mathematical study?

A No, sir; nothing that I can recall.

Q2 And nothing you reviawed in connection with your
potential cross-examination ere?

A That is correct.

Q I£ you thought tha: thsre wis someching relevant,
I assume you would have reviawed it?

Is that corresct, Mrs. Bickel? tthen you made a
salection when you came here about what you kelieved was mst
most relevant to the questions you vwould be asiked about
forecusting; is that correct?

A Yes, sir.
Q And studies, as I have asked for, do noct appear in

the information you brought with you, is that corract?

A They do not appear; I adnit that is ccrrect, yes.
Q Or in thc books ycu brought?
A The type of study, the mathematical study, to come

with res.idential space heating there is some mathematics to
it, because as 1 say, we =--

Q But vou get a figure and then y:u multiply it.
But do you know what I am galking about?

h Mr. Cherry, we project the mix of residential

space heating customers with a different averace use for each
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type cf residential spac2 heacing customer and apply mathe-
matics to coms up with a composite projection of resicdential
space heatino average use.

Q Now that vou have agreed with me that the projec-
tion of residential space heating was subjective in nature,
you will also agree with me, will you, Mr, Bickel, that the
information £rom perscns you regularly rely upon in connec-
tion with the very testimony you are supporting is lats 15875
information at the maximum?

A Much of it is. Are we still talking residential
space heating?

Q Yes.

{Pause.)

The answer is, Mr. Bickel? No such studies were
brought with you in the documents vou sslected as relevant?

MR. ROSSO: I am afraid I have lost track again.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q The information that the -- was at the maximum
late '75.

MR, ROSSO: I didn't know there was a guestion
pending.

MR. CHERRY: I think that was the question. The
information upon which vou base the residential space heating
projection is at best last *75 information?

MR. ROSSO: I guass I have a problem here and I am
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’bzo not just sure. Are we talking about %he residential space
' heating projection, or talking about the conservation facter
(:> . in the residential space heating proiection? Are we talking
about the tntal residential space heating projecticn? Or
are wea talking abqut the mix?
I think the :ccord is extracrdinarily confused, and -
;‘think the question is vagu2 and I cbject to it.
MR. CHERRY: I am talking abocut the entire forecast
for the residential part,

BY MR, CHERRY:

=

Is that how you understood me?
I understand the gquastion, yes.

And that iz what w2 have been talking about.

-

Yes, it is.

L =]

And now you did answer that in connection with

that analysis, the information is at maximum late '75; cor -

rect?
i The informaticn that I receiveé from other persons?
Q Yes.
A That is ccrrect; yes.
Q Tell me something, Mr. Bickel, hcw did you get your
/T) s in:truceiona to prepare your portion of the testimony here?

MR. RCSSO: I am sorry; I missed the question.

. Can I have it read back?
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BY MR. CHERRY:

Q How did you get your instructions in connecticn
with your participation in this testimony?

A ire you asking me who told me to prepars a fore-
cast?

Qe No; whe told you to prepare what ever it is that
your part plays in the Heins' testimony? How did it come
about that you gave Mr. Heins this information, specifically
for this hearing?

A He requestaed ocur most current forecas: of pro-
jected electric sales ard this was then provided to them.

2 If your most current forecast had been 1971, you
would have given him that?

A My most recent forecast, the one that I have de-
veloped most recently, is in fact - wall, let me check the
date on it -~ late '76.

Q My question was:

If your most current foracast was ‘71, would
you have given that to Mr. Heins in response to his inquiry?
MR. RCSSO: Objection. That is argumentative
and irrelevant.
CHAIRMAN COUFAL: I think what he is trying to
find out is was there a special fcrecast made for this
hearing. And if that is what he is trying to find out,

then that is relevant.
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BY MR. CHERRY:

Q M=. Bickel?

A You are saying: If the latest forscast was pre-
pared in 1971, would I provide thatc?

Q ¥es; if he said: Give me the latest forecast. 2ad
the latest one was 1971, would you have given him that
foracast?

MR. ROSSO: Okav. Now I object igain.

I don't have any objecticn to thes cuestion that
the Chairman propounded, but I certzinly have an cbjectiocn
to the one that Mr. Cherry insistz on asking. and I don't
think that they are the same.

MR. CHERRY: I thoughit you covarruled the cbijecticn.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: I think it is a good obisction.
I thought that I was going to convince you te change your
question, Mr. Cherry.

I will sustain that objection and 2llow 2 question
that is aleng the lines of what I suggestad.

MR. CHERRY: Ycu can do that if you like.

BY MR.CHERRY:

Q What was the elsctric price elasticity coefficient
used in your confirmation studies, Mr. Bickel?

A I believe I have answered that,

CHAIRMAN CCOUFAL: Please ansver.
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BY MR. CHERRY:

Q for residential space heating.

A Please repeat the question. I think I have lost
scmething.

e What wz2s che 2lectxic price elasticity coefficient

used in your comservaiion studiess in connection with resi-
dential space heating?
A I believe we conf.rmed carlier that I do not have

a ccefficient per se.

11 Do you have a range of cozificiesnts?
A No.
Qe How would I deternine whethar or not vour projec-

tion was sound, if I was particularlvy interasted in impact
of price elasticity.

A I woeuld rescommend that you come up with a range
that looks reasonable to you, make a forascast based on the
information that we can provide you and see how significant
the differencs may be. ]

Q No. My gJuestion was:

How can I find ocut if you did a good job, whether
I could dc a job ~=- a good jok? -

A I guess by analyzing the resulted forecast of

average use and seeing if it makes any sense to you. I

don't see how there is any way that you can determine whe-

ther it is goecd, bad or indiiferent without having a feel for
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‘ o Buz if I were particularly iaterested on the im~-
" pact of alectric usage residential space heating, based upon
<

price elasticity and I wanted to kncw how you factored that
in, get scme quantification, I couldn't do that, could I,
based cn ycur study?

A Tha: is basically ccrract?

Q I couldn’t do it.

And by the same tokan, you couldn't explain <c
me what impact prica elastic.ty would have specifically in
your judgment in the fuiura?

2 Well, we <an cert.:inly lcck back at the results
‘ of the conservation studies -thich are largely price elastici-
tvy ztudies as well -- or not maybe largely, but they include
part o< that.

And we can lcok a: the results of the price
elasticity study which I believe has been very recently
completed by our rate research department.

Again, I want to make very clear the point that
as I have said numerous times, forecasting is a continuum.
I do not consider this particular forecast to be the best

() s possible forecast. But I dc consider it to be the best
possible forecast that can b2 made at this time.
‘ I think it can be =-- and will be -- improved as

we get nore information and is we get more studies to aprly
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.25 the results of.
Q What exparience do you have ia finarce, Mr.
N\ Bickel?
- A As part of my MBA program, I zock a ccuple of

finance courses. I worked in a departmentc called econcmic
and financial planning for about two and a half years. My
primary duty thera, as I mentioned sarlier, was the electric
sales forecasting, altheugh cn cecaslon I did get involved
to some extent with scme miscellanc~us financial studies,
2 Mr., Bickel, 1if you wers a banker zand asked to
lené £2 billior on the basis of that forecast, would you
. : do it, or would you want more informaticn?
MR. ROSSO: Objection. That is argumentacive.
MR. CHERRY: I don't think =--
CHAIRMAN COUFAL: OCverrulad.
THE WITNESS: That is a very strange guesztion.
would you please respeat it?
BY MR. CHERRY:
Q If you were a banker, based upcn your firpancial
;conamic experience and you were asked to loan someone
$2 - "lion to build generating facilities basad uron the

projection that you have just given here today and are

3

supporting, would ycu risk $2 billion?

. A Yes.

Q Of your own moneyf
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A Yes. I belisve I would.
Mr. Renfrow said he would asxk if I were going to
be the lawyer on the other side. I guess he doesn’'t have
very much confideance in his witness' answer.

BY MR. CHERRRY:

Q Mr. Bickel, do you mean to say that as a financial

man, you would not want to heve any independent way of test-
ing the fcorecast?

MR. ROSSO: I am sorry; I missed the question.
Cculd I have it restated or reread?

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q I said, did you mean to say, as a financial man,
you would not want to have any independent way of retesting
the forecast?

A Perhaps I read “oc much into your question, Mr.
Cherry. I interpreted that assuming that I Qas a banker

with my current of information regarding this forecast.

Q But not working for Consumars Power; working for
the bank?
A Yes, assuning tha< I own my own bank and have

$2 billion, I believe that I -- I have considerble confi-
dent in this forecast, and y2s; I would give them -~ given
my current status of informa:cion, be wiliing to do that.

Q Do you think that as a financial man or an

economist you would like to know exactly how impacts of the
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variocus measures work guanrtitatively?

A What various matters?
Q Price elasticity, cross elasticity.
A Yes, and I think as a fcrecaster I would like to

know much more about that, too. It is my professiocnal opinicn
that we are reflecting price effacts relatively well in our
current forecast.

I hope we will do them bettar in the future, but

we are doing about 28 well a; wa can nov.

Q You really think :0?
A Yes.
Q Why is Consumers doing this study in the rate

department of price elasticity?

A Well, two reasons. One is that it is believed
by the company to be a reasonable study to undertake. And
secondly and perhaps more pertinent, it was ordered by the
Michigan Public Service Commission.

e Oh, I see.

This is not scmething that Consumers undertook on
its own.

A I would not say i: is something that Consumars
Power would not have undertaken on its own, but .it in a
joint project with Detroit Ediscn, as ordered by the Michigan
Public Service Cuﬁmission.

Q When is that going to be completed?
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A To the best of my knowledge, it is completad now.
MR. CEERRY: Mav I have a copy.
THE WITNESS: I have s2en nc results on it.
MR. CHERRY: Wher:c is it.
BY MR. CHERRY:
Q Mr. Bickel, how would I get a cocpy? Who has it?
A I would say that that question will best be
addressed to Mr. Climer, beciusa it was done --
(4] I am asking vou, Mr. Bickel. If you wanted a

copy, where would you qo?

A I would go to Mr, Climer.
Q He would have a copy?
A I sincerely hope so. I think he wculd be able

to get one, if one is available, which I am nct at sure of.
Q Do vou have any knowledge of the parameters of
that study; how it was done?
A Only very curscry knowledge. I was involved a
little bit in the early stages, but nc, I don't have any de-
tailed knowledge of the studv.

Q Has Mr. Climer ever made a long-rarnge forecast for
any sector which included price slasticity? .

A A long-range forecast for any seéfor?

Q Residential space heating, cormercial, 2t cetera;

any kind of a long-range forecast; a narrow cne or a large

one, overall one which included price elasticity.
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A Myr. Climer's peoplz2 based on scme saturation
studies, appliance saturation studies, did make a projection
of rasidential, domestic average uce and I believe the year
was 1972. I don't know to what extent they ccnsidered price
elasticity, Rkut that would be the one that would be the
highes* probability, [ would say, of having included price

elasticity ¢onsiderations. I am not sure.

o} ¥You are not sure?
A That's correct.
Q But Mr. Climer was the cne who vou believed

factored price elasticity into his subjective remarks to
you?

A Mr. Cliger and Mr. Baker, vss.

Q Has Mr. Baker ever done a long-range studies using
price elasticity?

A Mr., Baker was verv much involved in the study
that was just completed.

Q I mean the Mr. Balier that you talked to in 197%5
and '74 when most of this information was compiled; has he
ever done a long-range study using price elasticity?

A I don't know.

Q Well, if you don't know if Mr. Baker did éna and
you don't know if Mr. Cl’:er did ore, how are you so sure
Mr. Climer’'s subject remarks included price elasticity?

A Althouch I am not sure that either one .¢f. them
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could pull a report out of the book case which they had deone,
I do know from my conversaticns with them that they are both
quite knowledgeable in that area and especially being concerned
with market research, rate research, it is my professional
opinion that they most certainly did do that.

I do definitely recall that the concept of price
elasticity was discussed when we prcjected averages. The
thing that I am really not sure of is how it was reflected
in the projections, their subjective judements or profaessional
judgments that they made at +hat tima,

Q If it was at all.
A If it was at all. But I perscnally believe very

strongly that it was.

e Because Mr. Climer and Mr. Baker are studious
pecpla?
A Well, they arz very professional; they are very
competant.
1 Qe Sc 2t least ycu agrze that price elasticity is

tretty important?
A I don't think there is any quegticn that price
elasticity is very important.
Q Let's get the rest of the matters now, that --
CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Mr. Cherry, before we go on to
another topic, can I interject here a minute ~- and maybe

this has .all beenaanswered, but I missed it,cr some of it,



1937

‘bzl I guess.
\

MR, CHERRY: I am missing a littls, too.

/j) CHAIRMAN COUPAL: The study referred to that was
oraered by the Public Service Ccmmission ia Michigan was a
jeint study between Datroit Edicon and Consumers, the point
of which was what?

THE WITNESS: It was a price elasticity study
to attempt to determine price alasticity in a -- diffarent
sub groups of customers. And I am net sur=2 what the sub-
grouping was.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: ©Did it include forescasts of

, electrical usage in your service area?

THE WITNESS: To Che best of my kncwledge the
intent of the study was to esta_lish price elasticity as it
currently exists and probably to try %o project what price

lasticities would be under different scenarics. But ay
knowledge of that study is not detailed enocugh to answer on
it.

CHAIRMP) COUFAL: Does the Staff krow anything
about that study?

MR. ROSSO: Mr. Chairman, I believe the study is

O set forth -- or the fact that the study i.s taking placg -
is set forth in the Env ronment Report somewhere, that we

@ fiiea.

MR. RENFROW: As far as we know, it is not completed
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vet, Mr. Chairman.

MR, CHEERRY: #Mr. Cickel said it was conpleted.
THE WITNESS: E=xcu:e me, Mrx. Cherry; it was sche-
duled for completion in verv late '75.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: I think that if such a study
existe it 13 a matter “hat ouvght to be investigated in this
proceeding. |

MR. -RENFRMw¢: Mr, Climer's instructicns are, Mr.
Chairman, as scon as that price elasﬁicity cores -- study
coues in, == and we have referred to it in & number of the
documents -~ he is to get thce study, indead, as soon as it
ccnes in and if these proceeding is going on, we will let
you know, as cne of the thincs that is ongo: ag for the
Michigan area.

And if you. would like the information I can
double check with Mr. Climer -- I am gecing to have to do
it right now.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: I am ncot interested in finding
cut right this instance.

But ,Mr. Hocefling, can I ask you to have your
people review that work, too, if it 1s in sxistence, to
help us out with vhether or not --

MR. HCEFLING: When we get it we will lock at it,
Mr. Chairman, absolutely.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: I mean; would you maka some
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effort to cet it?

MR. HOEFLING: Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Okay.

DR. LEZDS: Tha: is a lot different. ie want to
make sure that you do somzthing to go get chat study; okay?

MR, HOEFLING: I think we have a commitment from
the L.cansee when that study becomes availabla, to get it
to the 3ocard and the parties.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: What I want from the Staff, is
from the Staff.

MR. HOEFLING: We will make continuing inquiry
ae to whether the study ias availakle and when it is avail -
able we will certainly look at it; absclutaly.

CHAAIRMAN COUFAL: I don't want to put all the
burden on the Applicant here. I think the STaff has got
a respensibility of their cwn to check into this, where
ever the information may be available, and report to us
about that.

Would you “o that, please?

MR. HOEFLING: Yes.

DR. LEEDS: It would seem that since the study
is being done for the Michigan Public Service Commission,
that might also chock with them, in addition to the Applicant
-- I am sorry =-- Licensee,

MR. RENFROW: Mr. Chairman and Dr. Leeds, as socon
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as that studvy is availab’e, I will t=211 vou and I will give
it to you.

CHAIRMAN COUPAL: We cdon't mistrust you, Mr.
Renfrow. We are not casting asgersions on Consumars Power
Company. We 'are giving the Staff an exercice in performing -~

MR. RENFROW: I have beesn asked a couple of times
by the Staff where that repc:i't is and I have to tell them
the same thing I am telling r’cu;that i% is not done vet.

MR. CHEERRY: Mr. Chairman, for my purpcses I would
ask that the Beoard dirzct the Staff nct to just wait for tha
study, because we waited for Mr. Heins' testimony and that
didn't tell us very much, in ny view.

Sut to physically gec down tc Consumers Power
Company, the Stafi, and assess the status of vhere it is,
look at the informaticn they have compiled. Maybe they can
make scme independent judgments instzad of just reading the
study, so that when they have: their testimony they may be
helpful.

And if they have o0 go to the Michigan Public
Service Ccrmission and gain independent information; you

-

know --
MR. HOEFLING: Mr, Chairman, the Staff willrely
cn the representation of the Licensee.

CHAIRMAN CCUFAL: Just a minute. Let Mr. Cherry
finish.
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MR. CHERRY: A wwo or three-dav field «rip on an
issue that is significant as this tc gataer iaformation, I
think, would be extremely helpful.

And I would put forward a motion that the goard
direct the Staff tc undertake during next weak or at least
before they testify, that study upcn pain of putting the
testimony in, some penalty,

MR. RENFROW: We welcome anybody frcm the Regu-
latory Staff to do what MNr. Cherry aska. If you read the
ER yoea will find thet it is being dorne in Illinoisz outside
of tle company, so I doubt that it would be very beneficial
for him to come out there, Mr. Chairman.

MR. CEERRY: Could I have access to those pecple?
Would you give me a lstter and I will g0 to the place in
Iliinois,next wezk, and I will lock at if the St2ff doesn't

‘want to.

The peint is that I no lenger am convinced that
if we let a Licensee who has got a lot %o lose by, for
example, Dow being precise, tailor what it is we are gcing
to get, we are going %o not get all the information.

And it seems to me that the Board, particularly
in light of today's cross-examination, ocugit to take some
Steps. And if this thing is in Illincis, one of the Staff's
members should be directad to get the underlying information.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: I still don't understand.

- ~ Sk - e e e e
S il e S e e e e e R — —_—
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MR. ROSSC: This rtudy is being conducted not
by Consumers Power Campany directly but by independent con-
sultants who have been hired to dec the study. The study is
being done in cooperatcion between Datreit Ediscn, Consumers
Power Company and the Michigan Public Service Commission by
independent consultants.

And as soon as it is don2 -~ I mean it is fully
enclosed in the Environmental Report supplement; we have
told ev ery about it and we want it too. As soon as it
come about, it will be anothar one of the pilaces of informa-
tion which on an ongoing, thiz continuum of a projection of
long~term forecasting that Mr. Bickel was talking about be-
fore, it will be another piece of information which will :
helpful in making thias and even morz exact science than it
now and we will provide it to everyone.

However, that study does not at all, or the lack
of it at this point in time, dces not at all impeach the
use of a price elasticity factor in the study that was done.

MR. CHERRY: If you can find it.

I put a moticn to the Board. I don't want to
over step my bounds, but it seems to pretty clear that when
you read the Staff testimony, what the Staff testimony has
done is adopted without recouputing by-and-large, the
Applicant's lesad forecasts and generating capacity.

If the Staff had done its job, they would have
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known about the Palisades assumptione, what we found 2ut todar.

If the staff had done its job we would have known about this
and 30 it doesn't make any sense to wait for that testimony
that is going to come in, which all it i= going to tell us
is that they read the FEA report and a couple of other re-
ports and they read Mr. Heins' testimony and :hey think it
is a gocd idea.

So I think that the Beoard snoculd direct the
Staff to do scxe work in this proceeding. That's all. Do
it or den't. I don't care. I am going to try to make fools
out of them, anyway.

(Bocard conferring.)

Well, we have another subject we want to talx to
the Staff about.

Dr. Luekke has scmething he wants to talk to the
staff about. Can we do that?

DR, LUEBKE: Earlisr today some questions were
raised on creoss-examination pesed by the Staff and by Inter-
venor counsel regarding steam generator tubes ard remedies
to steam generator tubes and consideration of their deterior-
ation.

We would ask the Staff to update us on the tech-
nical background of the status of the stzam generator prob-
lems. And a good place to look is the Prairie Island

doeket file, where the Appeal Board has been doing a lot of
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Staff, hava 2 person who I think

should be.quite familiar with the steam generator tubes. And

weuld you'bring that in the future, as prepared testimony.

MR. HCEFLING:

You are interested in, Dr.

ﬂﬁcbke, specifically in the Falisades zteam generator tube

problem?

DR. LUEBKE:

In general aand particularly Palisades,

yes, because it has been madec an important factor in cross-

examination ¢oday.

Lo
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MR. EOEFLING: Well, I am not sur2 that the

Prairie Island steam generator tube problem and the Palisades
steam generator tube problem are the same.

DR. LUEBXE: Thare isn't any =-- excuss ne, tiat
is probably =--

MR, BOEFLING: I <think tha Pr=~irie Island problem --

DR. LUEBKE: The Prairie Island case is being
used in my view as a vehicle for gathserirg testimcnv and
technical information on tha state o affairs on 3team
genarator tubes.

And I am just suggesting, I am giving the Staff a
lead as towhere to look so you don't have to start from
scratech finding this informatiom. ST

DR. LEEDS: What we are looking for, I.think, in
my mind -- at least I will speak for myself, is that we are
looking to the Staff for an independent.aasassmant of it.

DR. LUEBKE: , Of what?

DR. LEEDS: Of anything thev have aasessed or
they should assess, the tubas being one of them.

MR. HOEFLING: As relates to capacity, Palisades
capacity over the next -- as relates to Palisades dereqg?

DR, LUEBKE: I heard this mormning therzs is .
going to be an inspection.l ->‘.There were certain predictions
made aktout what might or might not happen during that

inspection, and so on. Thaie is a big history on secam



generator tubes, other than Palisades.

Put this all togather and it wouvld Le lelpfiul to
the Board in forming scme judgment as to the importance of
this factor.

MR. BOEFLING: GCae point c¢f informaticn.

For the Board's bhenefit the Staff bas performed
an analysis, at least 2 vower analysis, and the Staff's
aralysis Palisades was not considered. So in that respect --

CHAIRMAN COUTAL: “ou mean vou disccunted
Palisades complet;ly in making veur --

MR. HOEFLING: Yes, that is correct.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: So you assumed that it was going
to be down all during the period of your study?

MR. HCEFLING: No, we assumed that Palisades
capacity would be available, which in thke need for power
analysis is the most conservative case that that capacity
would be available and vou would not nesd supplemental at
full power.

DR. LUEBKE: At full powar.

MR. HOEPLING: Right.

DR. LUZDKE: That means you have made an assumption
that the sleeve which we as a Board know not much about,
is a good solution.

MR. HOEFLING: We have assumed that sleeving would

work and that the plant would be available for full capacity.
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CR. LUEBRE: Well we, the Board, are asking you
to give us the technircal background information ¢f hew you
get ther=2, and there are some cther factors known as waiar
chemistry, et cetera, et cetera.

I mean, thers is more to steam generator tubes
than sleeves.

MR. BOEFLING: Well, I think that the Staff has
not aszessed the tube sleeving zolution.

The way we attempted o @t arcund assessing the

tube sleeving solution was to assume that the Palisades

facility would be available, which iz the worst case.

The Staff has not reviewed the tube sleeving
proposal.

MR. RCSSC: 1Is it my understandinag that what the
Staff is saying is they did not icokx at the tubgmsleeving
proposal but they simply assumed the worst case f;um the
Licensee's point of view with regard to the nead for power?
That being that Palisades would be on line throughout this
period and still concluded that the Applicant -- the Licensee,
rather, did need the power.

Is that what my  understandirg is?

MR. HOEFLING: The analysis assumed that Palisades
was available, and that the assumption Consumers made that
there would:‘. be a derating of 5 percent a year, which of

course would give rise to a greater needs.,we did not employ
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that assumption in our analysis.
DR. LUEBRE: So there 1s a differance of position.
MR. ROSSO: No, sir.
I édoen't think that's right.
MR. HCEFLING: A differance in assumption.
DR. LUEBKE: All right, a difference in assumption.
We, the Board, would like more background
information to better understand that difference of assumption.
MR. HOEFLING: Wel, I think, Dr. Lusbke, what I
am trying to say ia that the Staff has not evaluated the
tube sleeving proposal, and doesn’'t contemplate evaluating
it until Consumers comes in with an application for a --

MR. LUEBKE: I may not have been listening

correctly this morning, but I thcught that your cross-examination

inferred that that was a geod idea and that it worked, and
that therefore vour assumptioa was valid.
MR. BENFROW: Dr. Luebke, perhaps I can go through
this thing.
cOn;unnrs Power Company has put twelve sleeves into
the Falisades reactor. Part of the problem is, as we
state, we don't know if the sleeves are gcing to work or not.
For planning purposes we have have to make certain assumptions.
If this Board so raquires, since it is our case,
we will put on ¢ man who is familiar with the Palisades

steam generators to support our question that in planning
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purposes, that we may have to take Palisaces out and the
bases for um cetting that forth.

We have put an assumption -- wa hava not said
to the Staff in any formal proposal, that we prop§a¢ to sleeve
the tubes at Palisades. We have staed acd will state that

sleeving is a possible solution. We dou't know if it is

- going to work yet.

So I think you are putting the wrang burden over

there.

We will present in our testimeny, possible fixes

. to Palisades that indeed may work. But then again, indeed they

may not.

DR. LUEBRZ: Well, as I see it,the Staff if it
makes the invsstigation we are asking, may come to a similar
conclusion, different from the one they have arrived at or
implied this morning.

MR. RENFROW: Yes, sir.

But the proklem with that is you =ve now iocking at
a safety question. And on the Palisades docket, which is

not the question before th’s Board, the only reason that

Palisades would come befrrs this Beard is for planning purposes:

Must you assume that the tubes will continue to
degrade at the same rate they havebeen and thus you will
lose power, or will you be able to stop the degradation?

Ard the answer to that is, right ncw, robody knows.
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I mean, in the testimony that I would put on,
would be tnat testimcay. And we will do that. An3 I am not
sure how they are going o ancwer the question tc lock at
the other slzeves, because we can't.

DR. LUEBRE: I want more than sleeves.

I want water chemistry, the whole bag.

MR. HOEFLING: Dr. Lusbke, the rsascn the Staff
made &t . assumption that Palisades would be operating at
full capacity was just to avo..d having to get into gquestions
of what Palisades' performance would bes. Assuming that it
operates at full capacity, has no problems with degradaticn,
no probiams with water chemistry, is the worst possible case
from the Applicant’'s point cf view as a conservative approach
to the need for power.

Having made -=hat assumpticn, we shouldn't have to
be addressing questions that night go to increasing the
need for the Midland facility by reducing the capabilities
of the Palisades unit.

That is exactly why the Staff took that approach,
so they wouldn't get into an elaborate discussion here,
which is really not necessary once you take the posizion
that Palisades is going to be available. Any cther approach
just increases your need for the Midland facility.

CHAIRMANl COUFAL: Have ycu got your testimony

on file with regard tc forecasting?
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MR. AOCFLINC: Yes.

CEAIRMAN COUFAL: Well, this weuld be 2 good time
to take a break. Fifteen minutes.

MR. CHERRY: I would like the Foard to read the
testinony of the Staff in light of this, '

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: That is vhy I aéked him,

Mr. Che: .

MR. CHCRRY: Bacause I made come ramerks aktout
the need for a power case atout Consumers, and I wmill make
gome about the Staff,

The Staff has copied the testimony of Mr. Heins,

a substantial part, has donez no independent analysis and their
major scurce of review has been --

MR. HOEFLING: Mr, Cherry doesn't know what he
is talking about.

MR. CHERRY: I know what I am talking about.

MR. HOEFLING: You don't know whgg you are talking
about.

MR. CHERRY: And reading an FEA study and and
PTC study, and talking on the telephone to Mr. Heins has
been the extent of their analysis,

MR. HOEPLING: I hope you develop all that on your
c:oss;:nr. Cherry. I am going to rold you to it,

MR. CHERRY: You can be sure T will.

MR. HOEFLING: You can't do it.
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CHAIFMAN CCUFAL: 211 right.

r

We willi take fifteen minutas.

(Pecess.)
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MR, CHERRY: I want to acir complete my list
as to the reaidential epace heating.

MR. HOETFLING: Excuse ma. If I may intarrupt,
Mr. Chairman, on the Palisades uestion, the Starf still
isn't clear exactly as to what the Board wants.

CHAIRMAN CCUFAL: Well, we'll tell you. Wa're
saving that.

MR. HOEFLING: OQkay, fine. I'm sorry, Mr.

Chairman.
DR. LSEDS: We'll clean it up next week.
BY MR. CHERRY: N
g In connecticon with the residential space heating

part cf the forecast, you toid me, I beliave, that in those
factors you observed with the lowsr demand you included
conservation, which included price alasticity, cross-
elasticity -- although you kind of qualified those facto;s,
more efiactive usage of appliances, and the advent and
arveptance of heat pumps.
Ara there any others?

A I'm sorry, the third one, would you please repeat

what you said?
.;Q The advent and ~cceptance of heat pumps would not

be part of conservation?

A That was the fourth cne. Tne third item?

o} More effective -- efficient usa of appliances.
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A Zes, I think the intention there is not oaly
more efficient use of anpliances but also the advent and
acceptance of mecre efficient upoliances~-more efficient
refrigerators, et cetera.

Q Is there anything alse in the conservation
section?

MR. ROSSO: ZIxcuse ma, Mr, Chairmian.

Mr, Cherry borrowed Mr. Bickel's books during
the break, and I think it wouid probably be more helpful for
Mr. Bickel to have tham while he is testifying. I wonder
if he could return them to Mr. Bickel at this time?

MR. CHERRY: I have a couple of questions about
it. If there ig a question for which you need the book, I
will return it to you.

Do you need the book to answer my question, Mr.
Bickel?

.MR. ROSS0: Mr. Chairman --

CHEAZRMAN COUFAL: They're his books, Mr. Cherry.

MR.ROSSO: They are. They'rzs his books.

MR. CHERRY: I want to ask him scme guestions
about some documents in there. If he needs the bocks, I'll
give them back to him.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: You mean you'ra going to refar
to the bocks?

MR. CHERRY: That is correct.
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MR. ROSSO: He cculd refer to the bocks just as
easily if they're sittiag up thera, though, Mr. Chairman.
L mean, the witness should have the liberty of zhecking
through to see if there's a particular decumant that would
refresh his recollaction.

They're hiz booksa, and they should be with him,

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: I agree with you. If he wants
his books, he should have hiz beoks. If counsel wants him
to have his books, he should hava his hooks.

MR, CHERRY: Do ycu =ezd the bocks to answer the
questions?

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Just give him the books, Mr.
Cherry.

MR. CHERRY: I will; but I want tc know if you
need the books to answer the question, !Mr, Bickel? -

MR. ROSSO: May I have the beoks, Mr. Cherry?

MR, CHERRY: As scon as I get the answer.

MR. ROSSO: He will not answer the question until
he gets the bocks,

MR. CHERRY: Does he need the books to answer the
question that I just asked him?

CHATRMAN COUPAL: What was the question you just
agked him?

MR. CHERRY: Have you now told me all of those

factors that fall within the conservation porticn of those
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factors which You contend lowered demand in your examination
of residantial space heatiag in the lcai forascast?

THE WITNESS: To the extent of my recocllecticsz:,
Yas. T believe wa'va covered the list rather well.

MR. CHERRY: Do you nced o iook at the Looks in
order to give me a coxplete answver?

THE QITNESS: I would like to hava the books back.
I think I've completed the answer to that quastion.

#R. CHERRY: Okay. Whanever you need the booksa,
I'1l give them back to you,

CHAIRMAN COUFAL Ho, Mr. Charry. You don't hold
the man's books hostages. 3ive him tha becoks.

MR. CHERRY: Am T not entitled to us2 these during
my crosn-exaninatioq?- e

MR. ROSSO: v¥-u ray use theas by going ur to the
table and referring «c them.

MR. CHERRY: I want to merk some exhibits out of
thegﬁ ({,moving documants from Loolk).

(Documente {books) bandad to the witness.)

BY MR, CHERRY:

Q Now, Mr. Bickel, what other factors besides
congervation did you assume weuld have a lowering effect of
usage in the residential srace heating portion of the lcad
forecast?

MR. ROSSO: wMr. Chairman, I only have one questicn,
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and that is: do any of the{do;hﬁentz currently in !"r,. Cherry's

f
possession, those that he pulled out from the Looks, refer

specifically to the question which he has just asl:ed the
witness?

MR. CICRRY: llo.

MR. ROSSO: Okay.

THE WITNHESS: Is therc some reason that vou're
holding them?

I guess I have answered that question.

BY MR. CICRRY: . ]

Q You answered what was in.conservation. Is that

all? I mean, are there any otﬂer factors?

[IR. ROSSO: Objection. The question is vague.
I don't know == any othier factors to what?

CHAIRIAU COUTAL: Do you understand the question,
Mr. Bickel?

TIC UITNESS: I thouoht I had answered it twice.

CIAIRIMAN QUIAL: Do you understand the muestion?

THE UILIIESS: I guess not. ‘

BY MR. CIICRRY:

Q Mr. Biclel, what I started out was to try to get

a listing of those factors which you looked at with connection

with the residential space heating portion of the load fore-
cast in which there would Le lowered usage.

A Yes.

-4
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@ Sc that in 1984, the relaticnrhip Latween cars
and trucks as vehicles has incraased, thu: cz2rs hava been --
become a greater parczntage of veticlas,

A I haven't macde that calculation.

I will make the calculation.

(Pausa.)

Fer 1976, we ara saving that cars amount %o
73.6 percent. Fcr '84 we are saying that cars amount to

80.8 percent.

Q 19762

A 1984,

Q 80.8?

A Yes,

Q '767?

A 78.2.

Q Do you know the rel:itive cost of energy for cars
and trucks?

A I do-not know. Again, as I mentioned earlier,

the energy consulting services department has done a fair
amount of work on that.
2 Mr. Bickel, do you know whether it costs more in
terms of energy to make a car or a truck?
MR. ROSSO: Mr. Bickel, were you finished with
your previous answer?

THE WITNESS: No, I wasa't.
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MR. ROSSO: Mr. Chairman, may he be allowed to
answer his previous gquestion?

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Finish your previous answer.

MR. CHERRY: Mr, Chairman, part of the difficulty
is that I do not get an answar to the subject of cross-exam-
ination. I am told that scmecne in Jackson, Michigan has
got something and then the information goes in the record.
We have had Mr. Heins talk about information that we could
have gotten from a cab driver so far 2s I know, andé it ccmes
in the record. Hcw meaningful i3 that?

I askad this maa if he knows. He is the man who
is tendered. I am then going tc ask nhim if it is in his
backup informatiocn and I wan: to know the relationship to
it.

If he wants to answer that there is some other
gentlemen -~ I am entitled 2o ask my questions. Cross-
examination it an art form. It is not a slovenly, garbage
project. I am entitled to get my guestion answered, and I
am entitled to interrupt the witness if he is not answering
my question.

MR. ROSS0: Mr., Chairman, I thought I had a
ruling that the witness could finish his answer.

CHAIRMAN COUPAL: Yes, I did rule that,Mr. Rosso.

THE WITNESS: The peoint that I was making, Mr.

Cherry, is that certainly studies have been in the past tc
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try to correlate kilcowatt hours per vehicle, car and truck
et cetara, and tc the best cf ry knowladge, none of these
have beer anything that the ensrgv coasulting depariment

was ready -- willing to accept or ralease as being valid.
They have had a great deal of difficulty in attempting to
detarmine that particular relationship.

Censequently, that is not the way the energy
forecast ~- that is not the way that we oroject sales to
General Motors Acccunts, per se.

BY MR. CH.RRY:

Q In your judgment, Mr. Bickel, does it take more
electrical energy to produce a car or a truck?

A I would certainly anticipate that it would take
more to produce a truck. However, I am sura that there are
‘scme mini trucks that cculd be put together with less than
some of the larger vehicles.

Q Now you said that you had a regrassion analysis

equation for energy consumpticn. D¢ you remember mention=

ing that?

A Yes.

Q What are the independent variables to that equa-
tion?

A The independent variables are General Motors

vehicle and time.

Q Are there any cthers?
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A Those are the only two indevendent variables.

o Now what I wan: 7ou to o la make the computation
you made for 1976 on usage per vehicle vaere you arrived
at 598.7 for 1984,

A Without double checking that, §86.4 kilowatt
hours per vehicle.

Q That confirms what I got.

Now you have therefore projected per vehicle
electric energy usage per vehicie for GM to increase oy what
percent?

MR. ROSSO: I think I am going to object to
that guestion.

Over what period of time or -- and hetween which
two refarence points in time?

MR. CHERRY: The ones we just did, Mr. Resso.

MR. ROSSO: So the question is between the re-
farance point of 1976 and the reference point of 1984, yocu
want to figure out what the percentage increase is?

MR.CHERRY: I would never have asked the questicn
so artfully, but that is the sense of it.

THE WITNESS: Over that eight-year period, the
kilowatt hours per vehicle as calculated in the way we jsut
have it, increases by a total of 14.66 percent.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q 14.66 percent.



A Yes, sir.

Q Sut the mix that we have ccmputed would indicate
that the average use per vehicle wculd be down; wouldn't it,
because we have got more cars and your notes indicate that
General Motors is going %c smaller cars, therefore, less
energy per car; is that correct?

A I am not -- these notes were in my bcok. I am not

sure who wrote thesq, gquite frankly.

Q Do you think that they are cerrect or incorrect
copies?
A I would havz tc evalute tham and reviaw them to

see. I know that thara has certaialy been a trend for =--
towards increasing kilowatt hour per vehicles. It has been
ongoing. And this sort of a progression does not Surprise me
at all.
0 Didn't you do a load management study July of
1976 where vou contacted General Motors and they told you
that their overall use of electrical enerdy was goiné to
go down, or is that scmeone else's department?
MR. ROSSQO: 1If there is a dccument that is avail-
able on that, perhaps that could be shown to the witness.
MR. CHERRY: I will show it to him.
BY MR. CHERRY:
Qo I want to know if you know of a study done by a

load management committee where General Motors was contacted
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down? Do you kncw of such a study?

O A I do aot recall having seen that study.
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[+] Per vaaiicle, that it was going to down, usage was

going tc gJo down per veshicle. Do you kncw of such a study?

A No, I den't., Thiz is what General Motors has
told us?
Qe What you concluded?

What yoauccncluded prapared by the rate research

department of Consumers Power Company. Dc you?

A Concluded what?

’ e Have you considersd such a study in your projec-

tiop you just discussed; energy usage per vehicle in your

forecast for General Motors.

A I believe I just responded that I éc not recall

having seen that study.

" MR, CHERRY: Cculd I have this marked as 21,

please? It i3 entitled Lcad Management Survey for Large

Commercial Custcmers -- Conmercial and Industrial Customers,

prepared by Consumers Power rate research department,

project 7613, July 1976.

O

(Wherespon, the above-mentioned

document was marked Intervenor's

‘ : No. 21 for identification.)

MR. CHERRY: I have selected excerpts from the
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study although it is available in its entirety. I have

Xeroxed the cover page, plus the sscti~n entitled General
MOsor corporate responses to Conswnars Peower Company Electric
Load Managment Survey, which is 10 pages.

The GM response is included in its entizety.

MR. ROSSO: So this is clear on the record; these
are excerpts from the stuayv? But not the studv as a whole;
is that correct?

MR, CHERRY: No; they &ve the entire responses
by Ceneral Mctors. The study covers other large commercia)
and industrial custcmers, but I have inc luded everything
that relstes to General Motors. That was a document that
wae producsd by Concumers Power Company, nunber D-400-016.

MR, HOEFLING: Mr. Chairman, I don't thiank we
have ever gotten an identification of the four exhibits
that went before this.

MR, CHERRY: I know thut.

DR. LUEBKE: BExactly; we are getting a bunch of
locose papers.

MR. CHERRY: I will do it ia time. If Mr. Rosso
haédn't interrupted me, I weuld have done it already.

MR. ROSSO: But if I hadn't, the witness would
not have had those specific working papers in front of him
which related to the questions you were asking him.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: This doesn't get us anvwhere.



MR, CHERRY: It sure does. I think so. I anm
pleased with this week.

BY MR. CHERRZ:

2 Have you evaer seen that exhibit, 21, bafore?
A To the best of my kncwledce, I have not.
" Would you raview it and tell me whether or not

it supports or sontradicts your projection of electric
energy use per vehicle by General lctors during the period
1976-34.

(Pause.)

Have you had sufficient time to lcok at the
document, Mr. Bickel?

A I have not vet found any secticn that I thought
you referred to, which gave a projection of kilowatt hour
per vehicle and trends thereof.

Q My question was:

Pe using Exhibit 21 and the informaticn that
was supplied to Consumers_Power Ccmpany's rate dspartment by
General Motbra, dces it tend to support or countradict the
increase in electrical energy per vehicle uses which your
forecast predicts?

A First of all, I would like to point out that this
summarized -- this is summarized material pigvided by
Ceneral Motors and it certainly is not -- and it certainly

does not attempt to present a Consumers Power position, but
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it obviocusly does have very noble gcals for consexvaticn.

Q Does it tend to suppert cr tend to contradict the
projection of slectrical energy per use -- use per vehicle
that ycu projected?

MR. ROSSO: Mr. Chairman, I am going to have to
object, because what was computed here waz for the year
1976 and for the year 1984. Thoss ars two data reierence
points. I have no ideca, or <does aanybedy in this roecm,
whether those twc ars represcentative in terms of a long-term
trend.

And he keeps deacribing this is a trend and I
am nct sure that is accurats, and I object.

BY MR. CSCRRY:

Q Mr. Bickel, if you want, you can go ahead and
ccmpute the rest of them. They just go on up.

But I want to know if, based on your perusal of
that report, it has in your judgment what is contained there,
a tendency to support or con:radict that lcad forescast you
made for General Motors on energy use per vehicle.

A I am not certain without studying it in more
detail, that ycu can really say either one.

Granted, they are trying to conserve asmmuch as
they can, but it is possible that the kilowatt hour per
vehicle could still go up. YOu have to Qgccgnize that there

has been a pretty realthy trend, growth trend, in kilowatt
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hour sales to Usneral Motors Acccounts.
Q Have you ever heard of the Energy Fclicy

Conservration Act?

i I belicve I have. I am nct particularly familiar
with it.
Q Have ycu evar heard cf the Federal Epergy

Agency, Industrial Energy Conservation Program?
A Again it sounds familiar but I am not particularly
famiiiar with it.
Q2 Do you know commitments in Genaral Motors and
the other members of the txanspo:tatiod ipdustry group in
the United States committed ©c the FEA's target date in

reducticn of elecerical energy uses per output up until

1980 ?

.

A I know that GM has frequantly had targets of
making such reductions. I am rot sure that they achieve
them.

Q Well, dcesn't the report you just read szy they

achieve them, at least through 19762

A You are talking now about reduction in electrical
usage?
Qe Yes.

How does that correlate with kilowatt hour per =--
A I am not sure --

Q Because they say in the report that electric use
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'11 is part of their production cost. They say reducing electric
usage where possikle has alwavs been an importanc part of
/*) every energy conservation program. *Throughout '75 GM has
o reduced its tozal energy consumption 17.7 percent, compared
with 1972. Appreximately 10 percent of this apcunt is due
to the energy consarvaiicn progran,“et cetera.
"4 corporate gozl of 3 perceat savings in
total enercy use suggestad for production of major
vehicles has been estabiished for '75."

Now what I am acking you is whether or not you
considered in comnection with your forecast the information
that Consumers Power rate company tac. I take it the answer

"l' is no.
A The answer is no. .I have not seen the document.
o And you have not considerad the commitment made by '
the transpertation industry to the Federal Energy Adninistra-

tion with respect to a percentage of energy consumption per

output by 13867

A That's sorrect.

Q Do you know what that figure is?

A No, sir.
‘j - Q Would it surprise you if I told you it was 60
i 67 percent?
. . A 67 percent reduction?

¢ Yes.
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MR. ROSS0O: Excuse nme.

BY MR. CEERRY:

Qe In enexrgy per unit of output?

A I suprose it wouldn't surprise me to hear that
as an objective, havinc seen on a cursory view scme cf the
other unattainable objectives that General Motors has had
in the past.

o Would you consider that, if General Motors
héﬁ coamitted to the Fedaral Energy Administration pursuant
the law passed by Congress and pursuant to swcrn statenents,
would you say that ought to be considefgd in your forzcast
of what thay are going to procduce?

MR. ROSSO: I must cbject to the guestion as
totally without foundation in the record. MNone of this is
in the record. I have no idea whether any of those state-
ments ars true or not.

Now if he is willing to state that -as3 a hypo-
theticel question, that is one thing. Bui if he is going to
try to put statements of fact in the record . in his
own question, that is totally improper.

MR. CHERRY: Can we have a ruling, please?

C3AAIRMAN COUFAL: I took the guest.on to inéludc
those assumptions. Is that the way it was intended.

MR. CHERRY: Yes.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: All right.
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You man answer, then.
THE WITNESS: Assuming that those are just assump-
tions and not necessarily =-
CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Assuning what he says is true;
do you think Qou should have considered them?
THE WITNESS: I would say that if what he said
is true, I would certainly very nmuch like to have been aware
of it when I made that foracast. I am not sure of what the
impact would have been, but I think it certainly wculd have =--
it certain would have --
BY MR. CHERRY:
Q You don't know what the impact wculd have been
if General Motors is committed to reduce its energy output
per unit by 67 percent over 10 yesrs; you have no idea what
the impact would be?
A I have no idea what the realistic reflection of
that goal would be on a2 projected sales to General Motars.
Q If I told you to assume that that would be true,
that in fact GM would attain that goal, how would that impact

ocn your forecast?

A Clearly, that would reduce it substantially.
Qe It would makes it arroneous?

A It would make the forecast errcnecus?

Q Yes.

A It would make the forecsst somewhat; ves.
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Q Now do you not believe that we are in a pericd of
time when energy conservation is bscoming nct conly voluntazy
but mandatorv?

A Mandatory in what sens2, ir. Cherry.

4} We are going to pass laws to pravent utilicies
from not helping us. We are gecing to forrce people to usa
lass energy by passing laws %o mandate more efficient use
of appliances. Ve are going to make taxes on inefficient
use of appliances.

I am talking about a whole kind cf trené that is
going on both lecgislatively and voluntarilv.
Are you aware of that trand?

A I am aware that there are certain rumors in the

directions which you have discussed.

Q Now have you coasidered that trend in your pro-

jection of lcad forecast?
* A In the past, that has showed up --

Q Have you considered it in this load forscast?
That trend; that is my question. Mr. Bickel, vou can give
me a speech after you answer my question.

A Yes; in the sense that =-- this load forecast is
based to some extent on previous lcad forecasts which were
reviewe by the forecast committee, which wers reviewed in
great detail as per assumpticns with relevant peopie who

were familiar with the attempts being made to do this sort
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.arbls of thing that you described.

Q

/\
N/

I thohght that your study was a vsrification of

the exescutive review study done by -- what was that word?

Prokability encoding?

Now you are telliag me that your study culiminated

ard they are approving. Which is it?

A

2

I den't undarstand your statment.

Mr. Heins said that the Bickel analysis was a

confirmaticn of an independant study done by the executive

energy review committee.

A That is correct.
Q Is it correct?
,' A Yes. -
e You are certain of that?
A Yes.
1] Does Midland 17 come from your bocks and records?
A~ Yes, it dces.
Q And is that part of the.work papers on the Bickel
study?
A Yes, it is. S
Q Okay.
o So the Bickel study says that the basis for pro-
: jection of annual growth includes judgment of energy fore-
‘ cast executive review committee; correct?

A

Mr. Cherry, I am getting back to the continuum



\

.arbls

/

"

1996

point. We did not start forascasting in Septamber of this
year. We have been forecasting for many years. The judgpent
that I am talking about here is a judgment that has been
expressed in past years, not necessarily what the state of
information was of each member of the forscast ccomittae when
he was -- this year,

Q Mr. Bickel, when Mr Heins was on the stand, he
led me to believe very clearly that the sxecutive review com-
mittee is studying pretty contemporanaously with the
praparation of the testimony.--

And then you went ahead and did a confirmation

of it.

As a matter of fact, when Mr. Rosso called me
the othaf’n;;ht and gave me the changes in the Heins testi-
mony, I specifically believed that there was a study done
by the executive forecast review committee here, contempor -

aneous with his testimony and then a Bickel confirmatory

study.
A Yes.
Q That isn't what occurred at all, is it?
A IT certainly is what occurred.
o Iffyou would look at all of the machinations over

a period of two or three years —--

A You ara proposing that I completely forget anything

that was ever done in the past, and start over and do :
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‘bu'bn a totally new forecast and use totally new techniques. I
propose that that is an inappropriate way to proceed.
Q When d4did the energy review committee project the

W

load forecast that you confirmed by your study?

A That was during September of 19757
Q They did that study?
A Yes.
2 And you confirmed that foracast after September
19762
A Yes.
o Using date that in large part goes back to '72,
- '73 and '747?
. A Primarily 1975. Yes.
2 Early 197S.

Do you know the factors that the energy executive
review committee used?

A I have them, yes. I have seen summaries. I was

not involved, now, in any of the probability enceding sessions.

But I have seen summaries.
e Now the probability encoding session i3 just a
fancy word for conversation; isn’'t it?
s, - MR. ROSSO: Objection. Argumentacive.
CHAIRMAN COUPAL: Overruled.

. - THE WITNESS: Most assuredly not.
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BY MR. CHERRY:

Q What is probability enceding?

A A probability enceding session is -- it is verbal
in the sense that it is a discussion, but it ic an attempt of
one party to determine what ancther persoan's views are as to
the probabilities of certain events and basad on certain
assumptions.

It is not just a casual discussion where you say:

" Well, do you think 50 cercent probabilility of this or what. It

is a porticn of decision analysis and it is a rather well
documented means of attempting to glean information from
kxnowledgeable people, not by asking what you think the prob-
ab‘lity is of this event by asking them a series of questions
in which they define scenarios, which then enablies you to

draw a probability curve.

Q Do you know a gentleman by the name of Dentcn?
B Yes, I do.

e Who his he?

A He is our corporate cconomist.

Q What?

A The corpeorate economist of Consumers.

Q A pretty smart guy?

A I believa he is.

Q When he makes statements about economic prospects

over the next 10 yvears, are they regarded as fairly substantial
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in the company?

A Mr, Denton’s aprrcach =-- the answer Lo your ques-
tion is yes. Bu:t Mr. Denton's apprcach is to attempt to get
a consensus of the lezading ecorcmizts viaws. He is very good
at collecting information and ccllecting proiecticns made by
other econcmists, assimilating them and ccming up with a
consensus projection.

(1% If Mr. Denton wrote a memorandum saying these are
my views, would you expect that hat he really did was col-
lect scmeone 21se'’'s views, or would you d2elieve him?

A I would believe that those arz his views, based on
his review of the views of other people and hiz cwn perscnal
beliefs,

Q We know, at least if Denton says something we can
take it as pretty good econcmic information insofar as
Congumers is concerned?

A I believe zo.

Q What did ne think about power production over the
next 10 vears; do you know?

A Yes. The proj=actions that I provided you with
earlier are -- pardon me -- the proiactions that are centained
in ==~ I believe it is Exhibit 11 -- wers made by Mr. Denton.

Qe Did Mr. Denton believe that energy use per vehicle
would go up or down over the next 10 vears?

A I don't know.
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MR. RCSSO0: Agair, Mr. Chairman, as Mr. Cherry
has refarence to a documeat I submit it would de muck fzirer
to the witness to show him the dcoccument befo?a asking the
Tuestien.

MR. CEERRY: Wh not? This man looked at them
and talked to him.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q Have vou ever sear Exhibi:c 22 before?
A Yes, sir; I have.
Q Now turning tc the second page, last paragraph and

tell me if you ever discussac the concept there with HMr.
Centon wherz he said that he proizcts that mére cars will be
assembled in suppliers' factories, all ¢f which have a
tendency to be growing up outside Michigan, which would
therefore tend to lessen General Motors' consumption of
energy, both absolutely and as use per vehicle.
(Pause.)
A Could you pleasza repesat the questicn,sir?
MR. CHERRY: Coulcd we have it reread, please?
(Whereupen, the reporter rzad the pending ques-
tion as requested.)
THE WITNESS: I think it is imporrtant to
tncoqni-e. Mr. Cherry, that there are many components and
many different factors in producing cars. The odaino can

be produced in one location; other components can be produced
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~..n other locations. And then they might very well --

e Ycu haven't answarzd my questicn. 7You go ahead
and when vou get doue you can answer ny guaestion.

A I believe I just did.

Q You geo ahead and you finish your statement and
then I will answer my cuestion.

MR, ROSS0: Do you remember where you were or do
you want it read back?

A THE WITNESS: That's all right.

Let me make a statement. As you will recall, this
was a probability encoding session, and I am sure that this
view was in fact reflecied on the individual probability
curves as generatad by the mambars of the energy forecast
comuittae.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q Bow do I know that this was a prcbability en-

coding session? This is just a memorandum to Mosley with

carbon copies to Boris, Parker and Bicksl, none of wham --

not all of whom were on the axecutive review committee, as

told to me by Mr., Heins.

A That is correct.
Qe Sc that this is nct a probability encoding session.
A That is -- no, but I believe that that -- and I

guess thage is no reason you weuld kncw this -- I believe

that that particular document was distributed to the members
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.Arbzz of the forecast committae some time prior %o the coding

sesgion.

/,\ Q I am not so sure how you would Xnow that. Did

you participata in the cecdinc session?

A I report tc Mr, Mosley.

Q Did you participate in the ccding session?
A As I said earlier --

Q Did you participate --

A I did not.

MR. ROSSO: My, Chairman --
CHAIRMAN CCUFAL: Gentleman =--
MR. ROSSO: Mr. _Cherry -
‘ MR. CHERRY: Don't raise vour voices o me.
MR. ROSSO: Don't raise your voice to me.
CHAIRMAN COUFAL: All of you just sit down.
BY MR, CHERRY:
Q My question was --
cnaznngn COUFAL: Now I don’t know where we are
and where we are going but let's everybedy calm down. If
you have a question; put the question.

BY MR. CHERRY:

,i> Q Did you participate in the ccding session?
A I did not.
. Q Therefore, vou were not around when any docurents

were distributed; is that correct?
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A I recaived carbon copias of some of the cocuments
and I believe .-~ I am gciné from memorv -- I helieve tihat
when Mr. Mosley sent out macerial to the forazcast committee
members telling them that this was going to take place, .
believe he attached that document. 1 am not certain, but I
believe he did.

Q pDid you take into consideration what Mr. Denton
said about no increase in the state posulation within the
foreseeable future in your liocad forecast, or did you predict

an incraase in population?
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A We are projecting ¢n increase in statz populaticn.

Q Bven thcugh vour =2conomist said that the best
available informaticon says no chang2 in sta2 populacion?

A I'm not certain that he said axactly what he
intended there.

If you assume that he did, then you would have to

say -- I am pot utilizipng that information. L4

Q You are now going to tall m2 that Mr. Centon

didn't mean what is literzlly on a pisce of paper that he

wrote?
A I won't try to interpret what he writes.
Q Because of scnething !r. Mcsely might have

told you-took place in a session that ycu didn't go to.

Well, you save tha* one for later, will you.

MR. ROSSO: I move that that entire diatribe
be stricken.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Strike the part that said,
"We'll save that for later,” will you.

Now Dr. Leeds says that --

.

DR. LEEDS: I am not sure we got an answer to the
question that Mr. Cherry asiked you akbout car productiom in
the State of Michigan. And I thoucht you were going toc go
back to make sure we get that answer.

MR. CEERRY: Well, I am running a bit out of time,

but pose the question and I'l. ask it.
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OR. LEEDS: Mg, it was your question. zbout the

last paragraph in your exhibi: with respect to car productionm

in Michigan.

Q

MR. CEERRY: Yes.
BY MR. CHERRY:

I believe I asked you if you factored in iir. Denton ?

views that there would be a decrease of car production azd

energy usage per vehicle,

were Mr.

And ycu then told me that you <¢ida’t zhink those
Denton's views, and :hat is why I stopped.

MR. ROSSO: No, I object to that.

That is a mischaracterizatica of the testimony.

CHAIRMAN COU AL: Well, wkat is the pending

question, do you know, Doctor?

DR. LEEDS: I thought it was flcating ia the air

unanswered.

’ Could we get ar answer to zhat one?

MR, RCSSO: I am not sure of what the question is.

If you will pose it, we will try to answer it.

simply:

page of
page of

perhaps

DR. LEEDS: well, let me just ask you very

Did ycu consider any comments made in tha last
Intervenor's Exhibit, last paragraph ¢f the second
Intervenor's Exhibit 22, expressing a view that

increases in production would cccur ocutside of Michigan?
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MR. ROS30: Jr. Leads, he doesn’'t have a copy cf
that. I would like toshow him yours.

DR. LEEDS: Okay.

(Janding to witness)

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. The possibility of
increased production cutside of this State certainl§ has been
discussed before the forecast committee meetings, and it is
considered to be a_ very real »ossibility. ’

DR, LEZDS: Excuse me for asking it once more.

Did" yeu consider taat in ycur load foracast?

THE WITNESS: Yes, I believe I did.

DR. LEEDS: Explicitiy?

THE WITNESS: Not explicitly.

But it was a subjective consideration that
went into the production of Ganeral Motors salas, kilowatt
hour sales to General Motors.

DR. LEEDS: Does our projecticn show an increase:
in the aumber of cars prcduced or a cecrease, or what?

THE WITNESS: It shows an increace in the number
6g car§ preduced as prepared by Mr., Denton.

DR. LEEDS: Thank you.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q When did Mr. Denton prapare tnat projection?

Late 1975?

A The projection tha: I have used in my confirmatory



study?
I telieve tha date was Cctobsr 27, 1376.
Q Why do you say it was Octeckar27, 15767
A Because that is thu figure that sticks iA my nind.
Q Do ycu have the sroiection?
A Yes, I do.

MR. ROSSO: Weuld vou let him describs for
the record, wkat he is showing you?
THE WITNESS: I am showing him Mr. Centon's
economic proijections prepared on Ochckhar 27, 1376.
2Y MR. CHERRY:
Q Mr. Bickel, you tcld me that tha independent
variable in the consumption equation that was used in connectioa

with preduction of Ceneral Xotors power forscast --

A Yes.

Q -=- was vehicles anc tima?
A Yes.

Q Okay.

Would . not Exhibit 21, the lcad managament,
sucgest. that another indepandent variable should be p:ice??
A Price is certainly one that would be very
raascnable toattempt to tie into their recression model.
Q Di¢ you do iw?
A I d4id not do it this year.

We have attempted to tie price and other factors
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in the éast, but we have aot come out with as gced a
statiatical fit as using Generzl Motors wehiclesz and time.,
Q So that price has not een considared at all in
your General Moteors procduction?
A No; sir. That really i=n't correct.
c Not comsidered as a variable, anindepencent

variable in your regression .agquation?

A That i3 correct.
Q But you think it would be reasonacla to do =o?
A T think it would e reasonable tc coatinue to

analyze that and see if we can improve our ragression
equation.

Q Do you beclisve you wculd get 2 more cr less scund
regult if you added as cre of :he independent variables. in
your regressicn equation, price?

A If you had a good 3“<atistical fit, and most
significantly, if you had a gocod projecticon of that indecandent
variable, then you should get at least as good, probably a
better projection.

The key, of cours=, 2s you well know, is that aay
time you have independent variables, you must ther project
them in order to project the depandent variable.

Q Would you identify ![1idland Intervenor's Exhibit 18
as coming from your workpapapers.

(Eanding IJlocument to witness)
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Would vHu describe ic?

A This is a projec:sion ¢f kilowats hour -- wali,
megawatt hour sales anéd megawazi demwnd usad oy Dow in tetal,
gencrated on thelr ocwn generating eguipment azd purchased from
ConsumersPower Company.

Q Was the Midland Intervenor’s Exhibit 13 used in

any way in your forecas:?

A Yas, it is.

Q How is it used?

A It was used as a direct iuput,
Q Qkay.

So that if it is wrong, to the extent chac it has

impact, then the forecas:t is incorresce?

A That is correct. Dy the same rercent, same amount.
Q Can you identify Midland Iantervznor's Zxhibit 19 "=-

(Eanding document <o witnass) -

-= as coming from your workpapers?

A I believe it did, vyes.
Q Well, I took it out of your book.
A Well, then it must have.

MR, ROSS0: We will stipulate that it ccmes out
of the working papers.
BY MR, CHERRY:
Q Now can you tell me who put these -- this is a

handwritten page entitled "Industrizl Sales Growth.”
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A Yes.

Q Is this a backup for the Industrial Sales Growth
projection?

A No, those are miscellaneous comments that

somebody, I believe Gordon Heins, but I am not certain, put

together.

Q Now Mr. Heins changed a couple of numbers in his

testimony the other night, and there is a circle around §

percent, and then it is written in hand 5.5 percent =--

A Yes.

Q == as the amount of the change in testimony

increase that was.

Is that correct?

That was made two days ago in the testimony.

Do you know if Mr. lleins did that just a couple

of days ago?

A No, I did that.

And I did that--

Q When did you do that?

A Sometime subsequent to November 30th, 1976.

Sometime after that.
Q Why did you do
A Because we had

sales and this is now the

Q How did you do

it?
revised our projection of industrial
correct humber.

it?
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MR. ROSSO: Which is now the correct number?

THE WITNESS: The 5.5 percent growth is now the
correct number,

MR. ROSSO: I'm sorry, I just wanted to keep the
record clear.

‘ MR.CHERRY: You are supposed to do that on
direct -examination.

MR. ROSSQO: Okay.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q Now, can you tell me the process you went thrcough
to go from 5 to 5.5 percent?
A Yes.

I went back through and rera; our traditional
model, first of all of sales to General Motors accounts.

I came up with a reviséd projection of sa;es to General
MOtors accounts.

I then went back and analyzed what had happened, or
what your projection would be, using the traditional
methcdologies.on iddugtéigl éales, excluding éenéral Métors
and Dow.

.I then added those two to the pr.jection that
we just referred to of Dow sales and came up with a total.
The average annual growth rate over the ten-year period

1977 through 1987 was 5.5 percent per year,

Q Mr. Bickel, when you did your residential space



O
(]

«

&

—
wn

17

18

19

20

21

2012

heating costs forecast -- part of the forecast -- are you with
me?

A Yes?

Q You gave me a list of standards that had a tendency
to decrease usage, and one that had a tendency to increase,
depending on what the mix was.

Do you remember that conversation?
A Yes.
Q Can you remember any other factors now that you

want to add to that?

A Well, we talked, of course, about the cross
elasticity problem. I guess there is one thing that I assume
was inherent in that and perhaps I should state it
explicitly, is that obviously the availability of alternate
forms of energy would have a very qreﬁt impact on the number
of customers who would utilize residential -- electric space

heating, and therefore that would have an impact on the

average usage.

Q We are talking dout use per customer?

A Average usage per customer, yes, indeed.
Q That would increase or decrease?
X

That would increase average use per customer,

because those customers who would otherwise opt for natural gas

for heating or fuel oil or propane or whatever else, would

have less otr that available, and consequently =--
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Q You are talking about electrical?

A -- and consequently wouldhave to use electricity
for space heating,due to either the inavailability or fear of
supply of alternate fuels.

Q Mr, Bickel, my questions have to do with use for
space heating customers, electrical space heating customers.

A So do my responses.

Q And you are saying that this is now aﬁ additional

factor which would tend to inérease consumption?

A It certainly would, yes.

Q Are there any others?

A I'm sure there are.

Q What you just said would tend to increase

consumption per customer?

A Per customer.

Q How would addirmg on more customers increase the
usage per customer?

A Because you would tend to add those year-round
hém;s, wha woﬁld otherwise noé oég for eleééric.heat, ércbably,‘
if something else were available, which given our mix situation.
would increase the composite residential average use.

Q Okay.

But that is the same as you told me before that
it could go up and down, depending upon what the mix is?

A Yes, but it is another factor that I am not sure
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;
ot ‘a I made explicit before.
3? Q Well it is another example of the mix, is all it is?
3; A Right. That's correct.
(T\ 4 Q Do you know of any other independent factors that
5 you can think of now that have a tendency tc‘decrease average
Kl rsidential space heating per customer? :
7& A I'm sure that there may be some more, but as I stated
ei earlier, I cannot think of any.
9 Q Nothing brings it to mind. %
10 How about insulation standards, would that have
“, any effect on the amount of average use for space heating
‘2| customers? _ i
‘ 13 | A Certainly.
14| Q And thus be conservation? E
15 A Yes. |
16 Q You didn't mention it in conservation.
17 A Well, I apologize for not mentioning it.
" Q . Well, that's fine.
19 | Wﬁa£ did.foﬁ iﬁvestiéaté aboﬁt ﬁhe.future of
20 insulation standards and how you would quantify its impact
21 in your forecast? |
22! A We have done ==~
23 Q This forecast now, the one that you are supporting
.‘ Lok 3:; now, not a speech. The one you are supporting.
35 MR.ROSSO: Mr. Chairman, again will the witness
|
!
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please be permitted to answer the question.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Answer the question, Mr. Bickel.

THE WITNESS: The forecast that I am now supporting
again pulled upon a great deal of analysis that was done in
the past, which does look into the impact of high levels of
insulation.

In addition to that there have been other studies
that have been used to impact the residential space heat
average use which considers such things as the heat pump,
air changes, et cetera.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q Did you consider changes in real per capita income?

A That is a factor --- to answer your question, no, I
have not specifically considered that because I have not been
able to get any sort of a good statiétical’relationehip in the
past.

Q Mr. Denton said it was going to go down.

Why didn't you go to your economxst’ Did you look
at the exhlblt where Mr. Denton said over the next year,
ten years, real per capita income was going to decrease?

MR. ROSSO: Now, I object.

]

What he said was, he couldn't get a good statistical:

fit. That doesn't have anything to do with what Dr. Denton

said.

It is a question of whether he can put it into a
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regression analysis with a gnod statistical fit. That is
how regression analyses are made.
Object. Unfair question.
CHAIRMAN COUFAL: I don't think it is, Mr. Rosso.
You may answer, Mr, Bickel. ‘
Did you look at Dr. Denton's whatever?
THE WITNESS: Yes, I looked at it.
BY MR. CHERRY:
Q Did you discuss with Mr. Denton as to whether or
not ke had a good statistical fit?

A Mr. Denton does not do statistical studies.

I am talking about a statistical fit using disposablei

income as an independent variable and average use as a
dependent variable.

Q What investigations did you make in search of this
statistical fit?

A I tried a series of regression runs looking at
this in combinations, and different components of that
particular variable. ' : .. bl ' :

Q Is that all?

A ?all, in the past, going back over the past since
1973 when I first got inco this area, I have done a vast
number of that type of study, regression runs, trying
different variables,trying different combinations of

variables, and trying to come up with the best statistical fit.

|
1
|
|
|
!
I

i
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Q Income,I am talking about per capita income only.
Did you try to find a good statistical fit when
your own regression studies didn't come up with one?

A The attempt was to find one when the studies did
not come up with one?

Q What did you do?

A I am not sure -- I don't understand the questioﬁ.

MR. ROSSO: I am afraid I don't understand the
question either.

The objection is, vague.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q Yousmid you went ahead and made a lot of equations,
but you couldn't come up with something.

Did you go to a higher consultant?

A No, sir.

Q Did you go to any of the resident experts at
Consumers Power and have a probability encoding session?

A No, I did not.

Q | Did you ao an&thing ﬁo éee if you.could find
someone with significantly more experience than you, who
micht have a statistical fit on per capita income? |

A Yes.

I consulted with a couple of other knowledgeable
persons in the company. Specifically I worked to some extent

with a gentleman who does our short-range forecasts.
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Q Do you know of any studies that you would accept
as valid that you would consider per capita income as a
critical factor in projecting use?
MR. ROSSO: Projecting use of what?
Objection. The question is vague.
.MR. CHERRY: Use of air.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Q Use of electricity, Mr. Bickel.
A You are talking residential space heat, now?
Q ¥es.
A I don;t know of any.
Q You have never read any?‘
A If so, I do not recall them.
I do not believe I have read any.
Q If there were generally accepted studies -- forget
it.
Have you seen Exhibit 20? Midland Intervenor's
Exhibit 20?
(Handing document to witness)
CHAIRMAN COUFAL: We are running out of time,
Mr Cherry. .

MR. CHERRY: I have until 6 o'clock.
CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Yes, that's right.
MR. CHERRY: It is ten of.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Right.
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THE WITNESS: Yes, I have.

MR, CHERRY: Mark this as Exhibit 23.
(WHereupon, a handwritten .
document titled "Projection as
of 3/25/76 was marked as Midland
Intervenor's Exhibit 23 for
identification.)

BY MR. CHERRY:

Can you identify this?

What exhibit are you referring to?

The one I just gave you.

You just gave me Exhibit 20. You were just

Exhibit 23. i

If we are talking dout ==

\ wve is the word of art. The one I just gave you,

MR. ROSSO: 1Is it Exhibit No. 20 that you are asking
Cherry?

BY MR. CHERRY:

Yes,

Yes, I have seen that.

What is it?

That is some backup notes that were extracted

from my backup book for this hearing. Specifically regarding

commercial

sales growth.
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Q And in commercial sales growth, it is true that you
say factors such as price elasticity have not been specifically

gquantified, is that correct?

quantified.
Q Do you think it would have been a better forecast

if you had specifically quantified price elasticity?
A If we had specifically quantified it -- well, yes., If

we had specifically quantified it orally, no.
Q Did you try?

A We looked at price elasticity studies that had

been done and determined that give the conditions at that time! !

with the combined impact of conservation and recession, the ;

|
i
results did not appear necessarily to be valid. i

Q Which studies did you look at? .

A I don't recall. I don't recall any specific
names, but there were .a series of summaries and studies.

Q Can you get a list of them for me?

' Wheh i see you again I would iike to have them. ;

A They might have been destroyed, but I will see |
whac I can do.

Q Now finally, I want tc go back to Exhibit 18.

You said these are the figuies you used for

Dow's input?

A Yes.

{

|

A That is correct. They have not been specifically ;
|

|

|




MR. CHERRY: Okay.

I represent that Exhibit 23 is a response to

an oral interrogatory which was made by Dow Chemical as

presented by Mr. Nute, which is being confirmed in

writing.

Is that right, !Mr. Nute?
MR. NUTE: That is correct, Mr. Cherry.

MR. CHERRY: And this is information Mr. Temple

will swear to when he comes here?

MR. NUTE: Yes. Mr., Temple will affirm the

interrogatories.

Q

I don't know if that ans&ers that gquestion.
MR. CHERRY: Including this information?
MR. NUTE: Yes, he will.

MR. CHERRY: Okay.

BY MR. CHERRY:

Now we asked Dow what their projected energy

use was going to be, given certain cases.

I now show you Exhibit 23 and ask if it conflicts

with the Dow input you used in the locad forecast?

A

have, no.

Q

- (Handing document to witness)

Neither one of these is precisely the same as we

You can't tell from what I gave you whether or not

it conflicts with tle input you put in?
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A I said neither one of these compares with what
we have. No.

They do conflict, yes.

Q I see.

If Exhibit 23 were more correct, then Midland
Exhibit 18, would that have a tendency to decrease or
increase your forecast?

MR. ROSSO: Excuse me, may I ask cne Question here
for clarification, of Mr. Nute?

Does Exhibit 23 purport to indicate all Dow
consumption from Consumers Power Company, or does it purport
to indicate only consumption at certain points?

MR. CHERRY: It indicates usage.

Isn't that right, Mr. N.te?

MR. NUTE: VI believe it purports to be exactly
what it is,

It is usage in the Midland plant under the
contract, of projected uses under the contract for electric
sérvice, plus my understandinq of the information I was given.

Of course that will have to be confirmed when we
look at the written interrogatory. But that is my understanding.

MR. ROSSO: So that this Exhibit 23 refers only
to consumption of the Midland plant, is that correct?

MR.NUTE: That is my understanding of the

information, Mr. Rosso, but I don't know for sure.
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MR. ROSSO: Thank you.
BY MR. CHERRY:
Q Do you want to answer the question, Mr. Bickel?
A Your question, I believe was, would this cause
us to change our sales forecast?
Q I don't know that you would change anything.
I just want to know, would it impact it negatively
or positively?
A Well, the factors listed here, as you know,
are megawatts. And I project megawatt hours in kilowatt
hours.
Now if the relationship betweenthe two remains
the same, then it would decrease them. But it certainly
is possible to have higher kilowatt hour sales and still have
the megawatts as projected by Dnw.
Q You cannot tell me whether or not it would
have a tendency to increase or decrease your forecast from
looking at these two exhibits?
A My assumption is that it would probably would
decrease it, but one cannot be certain.
MR. CHERRY: Mr. Chairman, I am willing to stop
now.
I am not through with Mr. Bickel.
I haven't gottén yet to Mr. Lapinski.

But I do request this: That the next time we
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meet, everybody who has anything to do with the Heins
testimony, I want them commanded to be here. I don't .ant
this stuff again,so that if they are sitting here an< he
says Kilmer has got the answer, then we put Kilmer on and
ask him.

I do not think it is fair to me, and I ask you to
consider that very seriously. They pick out all the people
they think are necessary. |

So, don't play these games any more. So I get
an answer and they bring all the information with them they
need so when I ask a question I want to get an answer now.

MR. ROSSO: Just a minute, Mr. Chairman.

MR. CHERRY: Excuse me, Dr. Luebke is asking me
a question.

DR. LUEBKE: You are thinking in terms the next
time will be a half day, Monday, as I understand our program?

MR. CHERRY: No.

What I am going to do on Monday when we return,
is start with Mr.Howell.

DR. LUEBKE: Oh?

MR. CHERPY: They want to have all the Dow and
the Power people together.

DR. LUEBKE: We are talking about some time in

February?
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mm22 1 MR. CHERRY: The following week, when Mr. Heins

2 and Mr. Bickel and the team who comes back, I want everybody
3 who has got anything to do with it.

4* So I don't want -- if a witness says, that is

5 someone else, that guy is going to be in the room, or he

- can't answer the gquestion that way. Okay? That's fair.
7 CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Let's see the response we

8 are going to get from Consumers Power.

9 MR. ROSSO: Okay.

lo‘g Now, as we told this Board before, this is an

1 integrated compaﬁy. There are many, many people who have
12’ input to Mr Heins' work here. We .ould -- we just took

13 kind of a quick estimate here at the table to try to figure
14 out about how many would have been involved pretty directly
15 on it. And we came up without about 15 to 20 people. ;
16 There are other people that undoubtedly work for
17 those people, too.

18 Beyond that, again I asked Ms. Bartelman with

19 regard to what the documentation involved might be, and she
20 can't give us a very firm estimate, but she said that

2)3 I would probably be on the conservative side if I said 20 tc

22 25 file drawers of material. And it may be a good deal more

23 than that. |
24 Now we are prepared to provide whatever documentation

25 this Board feels is necessary. |
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We are prepared to bring every one of thcse
persons here if and when it proves necessary to bring them

here. But we just can't be asked to load up a bus and
bring 15, 20, 30, whatever the number is, here or to be
subjected to the kind of sanctions that Mr. Cherry is asking
if we guess wrong, and the guy who is the fourth one down in
the department, who we didn't think would come up and who was
a guy who did a specific thing, can't be here.

Now we are prepared tohave with us next time,
Mr.Heins, Mr. Lapinski, Mr. Bickel, Mr. Carter and we will
bring Mr. Climer next time. But beyond that, unless we can
have some identification from Mr. Cherry as to specifically

who else he believes he will need to call, ‘and he will

have a chance -- he has had a lot of the documents and he will

hawe a chance to look at some more in the meantime, but
we just can'ﬁ make it just like that;

We just can't bring them all here.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: All right.

It seems to me that Consumers has the best
knowledge of what went into Mr. Heins' testimony, and who
you would have to look to to be cross-examined on the
information in the Heins report.

I don't know how anybody else is going to know

that.

MR. RENFROW: The one person who knows it,
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is Mr. Cherry. If he can indicate the areas, we will try to
provide the people.

The difficulty really is that we don't mind
providing them on some kind of notice, but I went around,
for example, and got the documents, and tried to follow
the path by which the information got to Mr. Bickel
SO0 I could comply with Mr. Cherry's request.

Mr. Chairman, it took me a week. I could go back
down to the people who actually did the studies to get the
input data on, for example, for the space heat -- go out and
get all the data that comes in and goes through Climer's
office back to Bickel. That is just one example.

If I can know t..e areas, then we can get a better
idea who needs to be here.

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: Areas of what?

MR. RENFROW: Areas in which Mr; Cherry and

Dr. Timm wish to inquire.

The material that goes into Mr. Bickel's long-term

forecast are many, many inputs. Give us an idea of the input

area, we can probably track down the right people. But to
try to get gll the people who have any input into that long-
range forecast is really impossible.

DR. LEEDS: Well excuse me, Mr. Renfrow, let

me ask you a question.

In the forecast there are certain numbers, and
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there are certain equations used to generate those numbers.

And there were certain numbers that went into those
equations.

Part of the problem, it seems to me today, is that
we miss having the person here who developed the numbers that
went into the equations. It may have gotten transmitted to
Mr. Bickel, but the person who<ieveioped that number is not
here.

Is it possible to indicate who those people are?

Or again, is that the 20 pecple, is that what you are talking
about?

MR. RENFROW: If you are going to have allthe
people that put inputs in the numbers, I will £ill up this
room and another one for wu. That is my problem, Lr. Leeds.

MR. CHERRY: I frankly don't believe that. If they
were ordered by the Chairman of the Board of Consumer's
Power to bring them to the Board of Directors' meeting, the
people who did the work cn the forecast, ycu know in five
minutes they would do it.

It is the same old baloney. The utilities push
around the regulators, and the only way we are going tn do
it, sir, without an insult to you, is to decide whether or not
you want the information and order them to have here those
peoplg who can be responsive to the questions, and let them

worry about it.
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You are just going to get speeches. I have bee
at ICC proceedings, BSC proceedings, AEC proceedings,and the
reuson is because utilities, they have got a lot of people,
a lot of information, a lot of equipment, and no one says %o
them -- and this is no offense to the Board because I am

not displeased with the way the Board has acted in this

Pproceeding, but what I think that you have got to do is

move forward and say, damnit, I am tired of this crap. We
are not going to sit and have two people tell us that they
heard it from other people. I want the information.

Your probiem -=- you want that information, bring
them here. You have got a problem with it, that is your
problem.

MR. RENFROW: Mr. Chairman, I don't have any

objection to bringing them here. But I really do object to

bringing them all down here and letting them sit to whatever

time we finally get to them.

Give me an idea of who you want, when you want themJ

we will bring them. That is not my problem. }
|

My problem is trying to bring everybody down, who

|

might have an input and might be called to testify, md have i
them sit here for whatever time it takes to get through. '

That is my problem.

Give me 24 hours, I will produce anybody. |

Move me to Jackson and set us up in an office,
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1 and we will have them on 15-minute call to get them there.
’ 2 But I do not want to bring them to Chicago, put them up in
3| hotels, make them sit around and wait until and if we get to

(t\¢ 4W them.

S That is my problem.

6 DR. LEEDS: You made a suggestion. Would it solve
7 the problem if we went to Jackson for this particular one? |

8 MR. RENFROW: We would have them there by the

?|| phone, call them and they would be in the building doing the |

10 work.

1 MR, cﬁERRY: Unless my expenses are paid, I am not

12|l going. %3
‘ 13 DR. LUEBKE: The 24 hours you mentioned, would that

|
,4H be satisfactory? If a name or two or three come up on Monday'si

!
15 cross-examination, Consumers Power have them here on Tuesday.
16 If four more names come up on Tuesday, Consumers

'7¥ Power has them here on Wednesday.

18H Is that a fair way of operating?
end $14.19 ?
20 :
. |
22 %
& 23 |

g
uéz
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'IN. ROUrNOY: I can agree to that except for cer-
tain hours, Lecause qgetting out of Jaclson is difficult. I
thinli I could do that.

Sometimes I might Le alble to do that. Iy diffi-
“‘

culty is getting thém down here.

MR. CHERRY: Dr. Lse@s, the point I'm really
interested in is the peopnle wiio deal with the backup material
and cost production models and loss of load nodels.

DR, "CCDS: It seems like -- isn't trere some set
of numkers that one would call signifie;;:_;or these things,
these kind of forecasts? There must be some group of people
vho supply what I would call significant numbers.

MR. PNUrRO!': That's what I'm trying to explain
to you.

DR. LICDS: There are plenty of those?

MR, REUTNO!Y: There's a bunch of people called
the the Research Pepartment, yes, sir. They go out, depend-
ing on which particular area you want to get into, they pro-
vide base raw data_ﬁ}@?ﬁfﬁdtf tr. Climer, for example -- and
they providcﬂznlot of numbers.

"e. Climer takes those nurbers and other knowl dge
that he gets -- for example, from the Accountiny Departnent,
on how many space heating custeomers the; now have, which

comes off the bills -- and puts that together, he and his

people, and comes up with a number.

.
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Those people then sit down, for exarple, in a
sroup togethe+, as the vitness talked about. They tale the
information that just those people we've now talked about
hgve there and put it with the cconomist's information and
with him, and that's the input that goes into the long-range
forecast.

DR. LLCDS: Is this committee that we've talked

¢Lout, the Probability Cncoding, the conmittee that actually

nalkes the decision what the forecast is?
Mn. RONTROT:  They are the ones who approve the
forecast. The bLasis for the approval -- T have to be careful

liecre because the way it was done this year is not the way

that it's nornally done.

The coding that took place was basec on those
people’s -- whatever it was. I, Dick:IT;”;meers have con-
firmed that independently, so you're really dealing with two
separate.

PR. LCEDS: ‘'That I want to know is what is

Consurers Power's forecast? 1Is it the group that the com-

nittee put tegether, or is it !r, Sickel’s?

“r, PNSen: The Torecast is what was evidenced in

—

*r. lleins' testinony.

nn, TLoDDS: ™as it the committee's, !'r. leins’',

or i'r. Pickel's?

ive

'Mm. RIONTROW: lay we just have a charnce to sce?
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I have to ¢et the formal number. There's a technical numler

tiiat occurs when they say "This is it," all right? That's

viat I want to clieck Lefore I say this is it.
i pDnN. LICDS: That's the one, isn't it? Isn't that
the crucial forecast, the one that the company says "That's
12°? '

1N, ROITRO!’: Yes, sir, I Lelieve that's the one.

Yes. The one in ir, ileins' testimony is Consurers'
formal forecast at this time.

DR. LNCDS: If I caire back nexit year, I'd ask the
saiie group of pcople? Isn't that committee going to do -~

M., RIOITNO*': I knovw, for example, that Itr, l'oseley
nas retired this year. Ile would not be there.

DR. LLLDS: 1tlell, equivalé#t cormittee. 'r. 'oseley
is not there, hut somebody else is going to take his place.

i IR, REIUFRO!: et year we would have !'r, nickcl's

analysis Jdone, presented to the Forecast Ccnmittée. They
would then asl: certain questions. Ile would re-do it. They
would then ap rove the forecast which lLe had done.

DR. LCLDS: Dut they did their own this year, is
that right?

THE U'ITIIESS: There were really two approaclies
taken this year.

DR. LCEDS: DNid they do the corporate forecast?

Tho did the corporate fore.ast?
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TIC UVITUESS: They're Loth the same.
MR, RFUTTO!U: They're botl: the same. ilow, they
ware not at one tine. That's the dif7iculty in communicating

and vhy I Lave to be ca=r ful.

DR. LECDS: !'Mo macde the corporate forecast that's
contained in !'r, lleins' testimony?

I'"R. RONTROU: I just answered that question for
you. That I35 vhat we Lave here, and thst is what !MMr. Biclel
has testified to.

At ocue tire the cencoding process, since this occurred

—

after, was the formal testimony; Lut, since time has now
marched -on, we now have anotlhier one. Andﬂ if we let time
rarch en again, we'll have to come back and give you a new one.

You have now what is the official company forecast.

DR, LECDS: If I got that committee here, would
that ke the ¢roup that could tell me how the Licensce made
their forecast? |

I'R. REUTRO™: llot the questions I'r. Cherry is ask-
inyg.

[IN. ROSS0: Ile's geoing into all sorts of detail on
inputs on various things.

llow, the committee gets that input. If he wants
to talk about a specific input, he will have to get the guy
who did it.

PR. LCEDS: I'm tryingy to get 'he guy who made the

R i Ry e . AR K B e
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Gecision. It gseems like to ne --

{IM. RONTROY: You want a different man than he
does. If you want to tall: to the man who made the decision,
thca we'll Lring hin, too.

DR. LUEBKIT: You know about chiefs and Indians.

IIR. CHERRY: Dr. Leeds, I think that !lr. Renfrow
is not being candid with you. There was a change made on
lage 2 of the testimony of !'r. lieins, and it says the long-termj
5.2 percent growth rate was Jdetcrmined in 1276 by probability
encoding of the Energy Forecast Comnittee on the basis of
informaticn available to them, including prior Torecasts.

Those are the people who must core here, the

people wiio are on that committee who made that forecast, lLe-

cause it's been represcnted the corporate forecast was made

by them aud confirmed in a scparate study Ly Dichel.

I don't think the testimony supports that, but at
lcast the change that was made two days ago on tﬁe testimony
says it was done by the Inergy Torccast Comnittee. And that's
wiio I wvant, av a miniuuan,

BR. LLEDS: Do they havc‘thc corporate resi«nsi-
bility to walic tac forccaut?

(. RLUTRCY:  Yes, and that's what I'm saying. If
veu want the people wihio actually do is.

i'r, Cherry almost has it right. That's why I was

very careful. I thcy had not approvaed those chanqged nurhers,
L]

e
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i 1 they vould net have be . changed, That would le the o7ficial

2] corvany fereenst.

- 3 PR, LECDS: !'he Jdo rou want to tall to, Ilir. Cherry?
4 That comrnittce or some cthers?

5 M. CHERDY: I want to tallk to -- just a monent.

6| (*r. Cherry and Dr, Timn conferring.)

7 if the Liccutive Cermittee did the forecast, then
li I think wo nced thea here. I also want soreone vho can deal
9j ‘ith the Laclup to the loss of loacd probability study and

Wl the cost production roccl that Iir. Dickel says he can use to
"J confirm with, that !'r, lleins based his cost production inodels
12 on.

13: ‘M. RENrnot’: Olkay. ~éost p;g:;ct;;;“hodelgi theouah,
4 ore different than what we've been dealinc with,

15 MR. CHRRRY: I'v. Cickel, I'm going to have one

S8 'nthcr cquestion, so don't leave.

17 MR, POSSO: Yeu 'new it's 'G:10,

18 | MR, CNZRRY: I've cot to have this for my weork.

Wl Just one question.

20 DR. LEEDS: Let's get his one question.

2'; MR, NOSS0: I do have to go, s=ir, I have an obli-
2| ocation that really to me is inportant.

23: CITAI ALY C”'VPL Ask your aquestion, !r. Cherry.

24 DY MM, CHOnM

Reporwrs, Inc. ]
5| ¢ In tho 11idland Cxhihit 12, the Dow figures, just

| —— 2 s { . S A — - -
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pracisely vhat dees that axhibit contain insofar as Dow is
cencerned? All of its gcnuraﬁion and sales, or iust purchases
fron Cousuners, just the 'tidland EEQiéion, br what?

. A This is Consumers Power's projection ol Dow dsaqc,

Dov main plant usage, brolen up into three parts.

First of all, there is a projection of load

g merated by Dow on their own equipment.

Secoﬁdly, there is a projection of lecad purchased
from Consumers Power,
And, third, the total of the f'rst two,
\ Vhaé—gggs "Dow main plant" mean?
L That's the liidland complex. It's comparable to
the same nurbers, I Felieve, that were in ' the other exihiihit
hat vou shoved me earlicr.
c zhibit 237
N I believe that's correct, yes.
IN. CIIERRY: That's all.
CHAIR'AIl COUFAL: IIr. Cherry, you're talking about
the memhers of the committee and another group.
Mr. Penfrow, do you uncerstand who this other group
is that tir. Cherrv is talking abcut? ’
MR, RENPROY: I'm sorrvy?

CITAINIAIl COUFAL: Iir. Cherry asked for the members

of the committee. Ile also asked for people that could b2ck tf

—

or supply backup for another study, the name of which I've

— s - —
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forqgotten. Do you lknov vho those people cre? TCo you know by
his reference who he wanis to‘have here?

N, RCUTROM: TFor the production cost progran,
we have !'r. Lapinski liere. I do not know what arecas of the
program he intends to ¢et into. Iir. Lapinski runs that pro-
gram and can tall: to that program and actually does it.

I 'nov fron following that program through that if
we want to get down to actual heat rate curves I'll have to
get somebody clse. 1It's the same Indian problem that Pr.
Lucbke has referred to.

I have the nan here, though, whe puts the curve=.
toggther that went into M'r. Neins' testimony. I will have
him here ne:xt weelk.

cﬁgfﬁrnn COUraL: 1I'm trying Lo work out a way
to do this that won't sink Consumers for the rest of their
vear as far as personnel qoes.

I also thinlk !r. Clerry's recquest is entirely’
legitimate. Trrankly, the cross-cxamination that I listened
to today was interesting to me. I think it's wvaluable, and
I think it's iwportant that we get these people.

It secns to re that you could come up with a
plan that would ..ot shut the company down for lack ¢f per-
sounel and would® still accormedate what we want to hear.

0. RENTNO™’: I think we've oflered that. 1I've

offered :zwo things:

2 9 y g - . T ———
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Onae, if I ecould

have an idea of the arecas that

 ——

hw wvants to ¢et into, T would attempt to have them herc en

the dates. It will again be rv judgment as to the areas
tﬂu£ he wishes to co into.

CIMINTI COUTAL: Can you give him soire indication
of the arcan vou want to go into, !ir. Cherrv?

IiN. CHZTRY: I jusct did. T rant the members of
thie Cixecutive Review Cormittac.

CIAIRWIT COUTAL: e understand that, but bevond
that.

"R. CHCRNY: Loss of load probability studies
and cost production models, people who can deal with the backup
anc understand those natters in detail. |

M. ROITROT: And that's where I get my difficulty,
as I've said, hecause when yvou say those backup péople the
inpuls to tliose are trerendous in terms of the actual peopnle
wio == well, if vou trace then aown, énﬁ I indeed do not l:now
how far he wishes to go.

The other suggestion that I've o”ferad --

MR. CLTLMRY: (fait a minute. I've got a suggestion.

fiow al.out by nooa on Tuesday we have a list of all
of the puople that he says would Le so cumbersome to bring in
| connection with loss of load and cost production model yith

| a lescription of what input tliey had, and then we'll male the

| judgment?

it S ———_ - S = R —————
- - ——
T ———




I'm not prepared to take represcentations that
Lhere are tons of people. I've heard it Lefore, and I don't
Lelieve it.

. I think what we ought to liave is a statement Ly
noon on Tuesday that can bLe delivered to my office of the
names of people, what input :hey have, and we'll make a de-
cisian fron that. 1I'll make it probably witchin 24 hcurs.

Dl. HEENS: As a Doard mnemiler, what I think we a
least need is somelody who can explain to us prcbability
enceding and what was ac£ually cdone on that basis. That's
oneg thing we're going to have Lo have, becausc I don't thinl

I heard ecnough today to understand it.

iM. NOSS0: Dlay, we'll talke csre of that. 1o
Jrobler..

CIHAINVIALI COUTAL: Can you get Ilr. Cherry's list
on noon on Tuescay?

iR. RCITRNOT: llo.

DR. LULSKI: 1'e're not going to do this for two or
thiree wecelks, arc wa?

CIUAIRTIAL COUTAL: fMhat Tuesday are you talking
alout?

{IR. CHERRY: {lext Tuesday. !T have one weel: off,
and then we're going to bLe lLack lere.

DR. LUCDLC: llext weel we're going to do executives,

Dow executives.
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IR, CHCRNY: tllo, I know that. Trut Ir. Rosso haa
told me thiere 1s all this information Lehind it, et cetera.
There was a commitment in Midland that all the documents would
Le indexed Ly December 30, 1276. llere we are almost to
February, and all the documents haven't lLeen indexed.

IIR. ROGSS80: What? 1!'o, that's not t:rue.

hn. RCUFROU: 1lo, sir, that's not the ~ormmitment
that was wade. Indeed ve told --

MR, CUERRY: I'm asling the Board to order them

to do it Ly Tuesday.

+ -

CIAIRN'AIT COUTAL: TI'll tell vou what we're going
to do: |

You come up with a plan. Wc'ré going to be =--
Pr. Leeds and I are goiug to be in my office in "fashington
on tlednesday, in Cethesca on ""ednesday. You come up with a
plan and have it to us by then that you thinl: you can live
vith Lut will still aceaoplish vhat we're after, and we'll
act oﬁ it one way or the other.

DP. LULDKRI: Do you wan: i* in writin; or on the
phone?

CIHAIPI'ALl COUTAL: I'm sympathetic with 'z, Cherry
on this.

[iIR. REUTROY: I'r., Chairman, I'm sympathetic; too,
Lecause I vant whatever person that's necded to answer the

questions to satisfy this Board, I want to provide him.

had TR e e —.
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IR, ROES0: rfure, we Jo.

(. NLUTROT: Ly problem is you want nme to male
the list, and, olkay, I guess wvhat I could do is yo and qet
cach input off every couputer code that we've used and give
it to hin.

I don't think that's feasille. I've given him
tae cohputef codes for the iapuis on there. If they can indi-
cate Lo us which iuput Lley want te inquire inteo, I can then
tell this Loard =--

CHAIRMAN COUFAL: “an you do that?

M. CLERNY: ‘Mhat ;f I do this, Mr. Chairran:
"het if T tell vou that I have uohplctcd ny cross-examinatien

+ for a fow questions of !r. "cins? Do you thinl: vou

—

have enouch inforratian =o vou can <ontinue the licensc?
CIMITIAI CoUriL: I indicated we're interested
i

in hearing nore, i'r. Cherry.

AR, LEENT: I'e answered tltat cquestion.
CHAIMMIT COUTAL: '™at I'm trying to do is work out

a sray that ve can gat it.

—_—

M. CICERRY: As far as I'm concerncc, the problem
iz up to Consuners., I have laid out harc now sicnificant
arcas that I thinlk have gaping holes in the record.

'n foing to nalke a motion after we f£inish tle

.Dov testineny to suspend the license on the basis of my

cross-2rranination, and I may or may not ask lleins more
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éncstion:. If I get moxe answvers to the peopnle who have been
the supporting pecnle to the testimony, "I don't know: I
don't notr; I den't know," terrific,
UAITZL COUFAL: '"hat we'll "0 =-
M. CIUCRNY: Let then fool around with their record.
I an not coing to go throuch every computer code and pick up

every 2utput, If the lawvers who prenared this testimony,

K\

who have a responsibility of officers of thec court to produce
people who can aaswer the testimony, zannot procduce the sig-
éificant reople, so be it. hat will e a finding of fact
that I'll asli. I'm just not going to do any meore vork on it.

CHAIMNINIl COUTAL: As I'indicated, come up with a
plan by "ednesday of how you want to handle it and we'll rule
on it one vray or the other.

Mr. éherry, you corme up with a plan, too, on
"ednesday cor Ly "ednesday, if you've ¢got onec.

M. CHERRY: I!My plan is simply this: the members

of the Cxecutive Committee ard those people who are capable
of discussing in deptic the signifisant parameters of the loss
of load probability study «nd the production cost model.

I don't thinl: they've got morc than three people
tho Iinow how Lo do preoduction cost models in the whole bloedy
utility. It's a very complicated area, and so is loss of
load probability.. The idea that they would have zillions of

people is just incredible.

—— —_— s e e e A T AT TR . o anad
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I've seen the character of people that they've
put up on the stand, and we don't have to go very far lLefore
we don't find any dep:h.

- MR. ROUFROT: IMr. Chairman, the simple answer to

the question is a very close one. Let's move the hearings to
Jackson if we're going in tlat depth. The company can operate,
and this Doard can have at its fingertips each and every person
that it wishes to talk on cach and every subject, and we will
not have the difficulty of travel. It's a very simple

answer.

ilR. CIT"RRY: I'r. ’Qairman, it is not my difficulty
and it's not the Noard's difficulty. Consumers Towver has got
to put a case in.

This Deard has already made a judgnent that was
uased upon sicnificant information, some off the record and
some on the record, and I cannot participate in the hearing
outside of Chicago. I'm not going to (o it,

. DR. LICD5: Careful. You said "some off the record.
I's not sure I know what you mean by that.

MR, CICRRY: I'll withdraw tlie statement,

The Loard made a decision bascd upon argument on
the record; and that dercision so far as I'm coacerneu is law
in the case, and I am not moving out of Chicago. '

I'm not saying that arbitrarily. I just cannot

alford to pwticipate in this case outside of Chicago.
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IZ Consumers wants to pic!: up ry eipenses and
cover soue of the otihier problews I've got as a condition of
going there, that's a different question.

: CR. LILDS: You nmean the decision on the record
with respect to moving from Chicaco.

Me. TNMPRCY: I'nm willing to providle ny witness
on 2{-hcur notice in Chicago. If you want me to come up with
another plan, I'll wrv.

PR. LUCIIT: "hat's so impossible akout the 24-
hour notice?

CIIINNAT COUTAL: I cdon't knowvre T den't know
that there's anything inpcssible.' That may be the route
we'll tale; I don't laov.

{iM. CHETRY: If we did it today, we would have

2

ucver cotten anything fone;

O, LULDET: You would have had something donq
Ly "ednesday.

M. CHCNRY: I think we've said enouch.

Pr. Luebie, cae of the things that this Board has
got to realize is that they were given testimony which in ny
julgnent is an insult to an intelligent persen. The people
vlio were given up are an insult to an intelligent person.

That's not my problem anymore. !y proklem is only

demonstrating that., I don't have the Lurden of proof in this

case. The Applicant has.
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PR. LICSIRZ: CTut vou want more people to do it
with,
fIR. CHNRRY: I think I've done it, okay?
I'R. ROUTNOM: Providing you provide some hasis
for your lLiypothesis, iou may have done it, but I haver't
seen the basis yet.
CIIAINNIALl COUFAL: ‘'lell, we're getting nowhere.
Get us a plan, and we're going to cdo it one way

if it tales all spring long somewherec.

HR; CHERRY: e have !'r. !llowell beginning at 1:30
en !londay, the 3lst of January.

liR. ROUITROY': That's fine with us.

CIIAIRTAII COUTAL: And the Dow people will follow.

NN, RONTRO™: I will talk to I'r. cnerry to sece
what he wishes and try to work something out.

M. CI'ERRY: I want tc start with !lr, liowell. I
don't want to talk to you, Ir. Renfrow. I will be at léast
the afternoon with lir. llowell, and then we're coing to staft
with the Mow people the following morning.

"hen we finish the Dow people, I'll continuc with
I'r. Jlowell, and I'll go on with !Mr,  ymond and !'r. Youngdahl.
I don't want any arguments about it. That was the ag;eemcnt
ve nade.

IR, ROGS50: 1Ue're prepared to start with lir.

ilowell on the 3Ilst in the afternoon. Did I understand you
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to say you vanted to go with the Dow witnesses then?

M. CnNNY: That is the agreement we made on
thic basis of their schedule. You didn't cume up with any
schedule, and we all agreed on the basis of Dow's schedule.

M. NOSSO: Okay, I'm not arguing with you.

CILAIRIIALI COUFAL: !le'll be adjourned untdl 1:30
p.m. on the 3lst of January.

(‘Mereupon, at 6:20 p.m., the hearing in the

aLove-entitled matter was adjourned, to reconvene ol

ltonday, 31 January 1%77, at 1:30 p.m.)
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